
UNIVERSITY of MISSOURI 
RESEARCH REACTOR CENTER 

April 8, 2016 

U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Attention: Document Control Desk 
Mail Station Pl-37 
Washington, DC 20555-0001 

REFERENCE: Docket 50-186 

SUBJECT: 

University of Missouri-Columbia Research Reactor 
Amended Facility Operating License R-103 

Written communication as specified by 10 CFR 50.4(b)(l) regarding responses to the 
"University of Missouri at Columbia - Request . for Additional Information RE: 
Updated Financial Information for Renewal of Facility Operating License No. R-103 
for the University of Missouri at Columbia Research Reactor (TAC No. ME1580)," 
dated February 8, 2016 

By letter dated August 31, 2006, the University of Missouri-Columbia Research Reactor (MURR) 
submitted a request to the U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission (NRC) to renew Amended Facility 
Operating License No. R-103. 

By letter dated May 6, 2010, the NRC requested additional information and clarification regarding the 
renewal request in the form of nineteen (19) Complex Questions. By letter dated September 3, 2010, 
MURR responded to seven (7) of those Complex Questions. 

By letter dated June 1, 2010, the NRC requested additional information and clarification regarding the 
renewal request in the form of one hundred and sixty-seven (167) 45-Day Response Questions. By letter 
dated July 16, 2010, MURR responded to forty-seven ( 4 7) of those 45-Day Response Questions. 

On July 14, 2010, via electronic mail (email), MURR requested additional time to respond to the 
remaining one hundred and twenty (120) 45-Day Response Questions. By letter dated August 4, 2010, 
the NRC granted the request. By letter dated August 31, 2010, MURR responded to fifty-three (53) of the 
45-Day Response Questions. 

On September 1, 2010, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining twelve 
(12) Complex Questions. By letter dated September 27, 2010, the NRC granted the request. 
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On September 29, 2010, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining sixty­
seven (67) 45-Day Response Questions. By letter dated September 30, 2010, MURR responded to 
sixteen (16) of the remaining 45-Day Questions. By letter dated October 13, 2010, the NRC granted the 
extension request. 

By letter dated October 29, 2010, MURR responded to sixteen (16) of the remaining 45-Day Response 
Questions and two (2) of the remaining Complex Questions. 

By letter dated November 30, 2010, MURR responded to twelve (12) of the remaining 45-Day Response 
Questions. 

On December 1, 2010, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining 45-Day 
Response and Complex Questions. By letter dated December 13, 2010, the NRC granted the extension 
request. 

On January 14, 2011, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining 45-Day 
Response and Complex Questions. By letter dated February 1, 2011, the NRC granted the extension 
request. 

By letter dated March 11, 2011, MURR responded to twenty-one (21) of the remaining 45-Day Response 
Questions. 

On May 27, 2011, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining 45-Day 
Response and Complex Questions. By letter dated July 5, 2011, the NRC granted the request. 

By letter dated September 8, 2011, MURR responded to six (6) of the remaining 45-Day Response and 
Complex Questions. 

On September 30, 2011, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining the 
remaining 45-Day Response and Complex Questions. By letter dated November 10, 2011, the NRC 
granted the request. 

By letter dated January 6, 2012, MURR responded to four (4) of the remaining 45-Day Response and 
Complex Questions. Also submitted was an updated version of the MURR Technical Specifications. 

On January 23, 2012, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the remaining the 
remaining 45-Day Response and Complex Questions. By letter dated January 26, 2012, the NRC granted 
the request. 

On April 12, 2012, via email, MURR requested additional tinie to respond to the remaining the remaining 
45-Day Response and Complex Questions. 

By letter dated June 28, 2012, MURR responded to the remaining six (6) 45-Day Response and Complex 
Questions. With that set of responses, all 45-Day Response and Complex Questions had been addressed. 
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By letter dated December 20, 2012, the NRC requested a copy of the current Physical Security Plan (PSP) 
and Operator Requalification Program. 

By letter dated January 4, 2013, MURR provided the NRC a copy of the current PSP and Operator 
Requalification Program. 

By letter dated February 11, 2013, the NRC requested updated financial information in the form of four 
(4) questions because the information provided by the September 14, 2009 response had become 
outdated. 

By letter dated March 12, 2013, MURR responded to the four (4) questions. 

By letter dated December 3, 2014, the NRC requested additional information in the form of two (2) 
questions regarding significant changes to the MURR facility since submittal of the licensing renewal 
application in August 2006. 

By letter dated January 28, 2015, MURR responded to the two (2) questions. 

By letter dated April 17, 2015, the NRC requested additional information in the form of ten (10) 
questions. 

On May 29, 2015, via email, MURR requested additional time to respond to the ten (10) questions. 

By letter dated June 18, 2015, the NRC requested additional information in the form of two (2) questions. 

By letter dated July 31, 2015, MURR responded to the two (2) questions from the June 18, 2015 request. 

On September 14, 2015, via telephone, the NRC requested a copy of the Emergency Plan (EP). 

By letter dated September 14, 2015, the NRC requested additional information in the form of fifteen (15) 
questions regarding the PSP. 

By letter dated September 15, 2015, MURR provided the NRC a copy of the current EP. 

By letter dated October 1, 2015, MURR responded to the ten (10) questions from the April 17, 2015 
request. 

By letter dated December 2, 2015, MURR responded to the fifteen (15) questions from the September 14, 
2015 request regarding the PSP. 

By letter dated December 17, 2015, the NRC requested additional information in the form of thirteen (13) 
questions regarding follow-up information from MURR's October 1, 2015 responses to the NRC's April 
1 7, 2015 request for additional information. 
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By letter dated February 8, 2016, MURR responded to the thirteen (13) questions. 

By letter dated February 8, 2016, the NRC requested updated financial information in the form of four (4) 
questions because the information provided by the March 12, 2013 response had become outdated. 

By letter dated March 23, 2016, the NRC requested additional information in the form of twenty-one (21) 
questions regarding follow-up information from MURR's February 8, 2016 responses to the NRC's April 
17, 2015 request for additional information. 

Those questions, and MURR' s responses to those questions, are attached. 

Attached are the updated financial information questions, and MURR's responses to those questions, 
from the February 8, 2016 request. 

If there are any questions regarding this response, please contact me at (573) 882-5319 or 
FruitsJ@missouri.edu. I declare under penalty of perjury that the foregoing is true and correct. 

Sincerely, 

John L. Fruits 
Reactor Manager 

xc: Reactor Advisory Committee 
Reactor Safety Subcommittee 
Dr. Garnett S. Stokes, Provost 

ENDORSEMENT: 
Reviewed and Approved, 

Ralph A. Butler, P.E. 
Director 

JACQUELINE L.,BQHM 
Notary Public-Notary Seal 
ST ATE OF MISSOURI 

Commissioned for I toward County 
M Commissi\)11 Expires: March 26. 2019 

-~ . Commission # I 5634308 

Dr. Mark Mcintosh, Vice Chancellor for Research, Graduate Studies and Economic Development 

Mr. Alexander Adams Jr., U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Mr. Geoffrey Wertz, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 
Mr. Johnny Eads, U.S. Nuclear Regulatory Commission 

Attachments: 
1. University of Missouri System - 2014 Financial Report 

2. University of Missouri System - 2015 Financial Report 

3. Statement of Intent, from the Office of the Vice Chancellor for Finance, University of Missouri­
Columbia, dated March 29, 2016 
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1. NRC staff will analyze the financial statements for the current year, which are required by 10 CFR 
50. 71 (b), to determine if the applicant is financially qualified to operate the MURR. Since MU's 
financial statements included with the application are out of date, please provide a copy of the 

latest financial statements for the NRC staff's review. 

Attached you will find the 2014 and 2015 Financial Reports for the University of Missouri System. 
Each report provides an overview of the financial position and activities of the University for the 
fiscal years that ended June 30, 2014 and 2013, and June 30, 2015 and 2014 (Attachments 1 and 2). 
The University is a component of the state of Missouri and an integral part of the state's 

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

The University of Missouri System 2014 and 2015 Financial Reports include the following five (5) 

financial statements: 

• The three (3) financial statements for the University of Missouri, its blended Component 

Unit, and its Discretely Presented Component Unit include the Statement of Net Position, 

the Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, and the Statement of 
Cash Flows, where applicable. 

• The two (2) financial statements for the University's fiduciary fund, which includes the 
Retirement and the Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Funds, are the Statement of Plan 
Net Position and the Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position. 

The University's financial statements are prepared in accordance with U.S. generally accepted 
accounting principles as prescribed by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB), 
which establishes financial reporting standards for public colleges and universities. 

2. Pursuant to I 0 CFR 50.33(/)(2), "[t]he applicant shall submit estimates for total annual operating 

costs for each of the first five years of operations of the facility. " Since the information included in 

the application is now out of date, please provide the following additional information: 

a. Projected operating costs of the MURR/or each of the fiscal years (FY) 2016 thru FY 2020 (the 

first five year period after the projected license renewal). 
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TABLEl 
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2020 PROJECTED EXPENDITURES 

(in thousands of dollars) 

FY 2016 FY 2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

Salaries/Wages & Benefits 12,615 12,993 13,383 13,785 14,198 

Supplies/Services/Equipment < $5K 3,652 3,762 3,847 3,991 4,110 

Debt Service 378 378 378 378 378 

Reserves 1,325 1,365 1,406 1,448 1,491 

Grants 4,761 4,904 5,051 5,202 5,359 

Other 2,919 3,007 3,097 3,190 3,285 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES $ 25,650 $ 26,408 $ 27,189 $ 27,993 $ 28,882 

Notes: 

1. The University of Missouri fiscal year (FY XXXX) begins July 1 and ends June 30. 

2. All projected revenues and expenditures reflect a 3% increase per year except for Debt 

Service and Campus Allocation. 
3. MURR reserves will be used to cover fiscal year end deficits, as needed. 

b. MU's source(s) of funding to cover the operating costs for the above fiscal years. 

TABLE2 
FISCAL YEAR 2016-2020 PROJECTED REVENUES 

(in thousands of dollars) 

FY 2016 FY2017 FY 2018 FY 2019 FY 2020 

Projected Projected Projected Projected Projected 

Campus Allocation 2,728 2,673 2,673 2,673 2,673 

Service Operations 17,001 17,511 18,036 18,577 19,135 

Partnerships 50 52 53 55 56 

Grants 4,761 4,904 5,051 5,202 5,359 

Other 1,150 1,185 l,220 1.257 1,294 

TOTAL REVENUES $ 25,690 $ 26,324 $ 27,034 $ 27,765 $ 28,517 

Notes: 
1. The University of Missouri fiscal year (FY XXXX) begins July 1 and ends June 30. 

2. All projected revenues and expenditures reflect a 3% increase per year except for Debt 

Service and Campus Allocation. 
3. MURR reserves will be used to cover fiscal year end deficits, as needed. 
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"Campus Allocation" represents an annual allocation from the University of Missouri. "Service 
Operations" is primarily based on the sale of irradiation, processing and analytical services. 
Revenue is subject to market fluctuations; however, many of the MURR's major customers have 
been clients for several years and the MURR continues to develop significant new customers each 
year. "Grants" are a revenue source received from non-University sources. 

3. The application references a decommissioning cost estimate for the MURR that was developed 
using NUREGICR-1756, Technology. Safety and Costs of Decommissioning Reference Research 
and Test Reactors. The application states that the decommissioning cost estimate was $47.3 
million in 2009 dollars, including safe storage (SAFSTOR) costs, and a 25 percent contingency 
factor. The NRC staff needs the following additional information to complete its review of the 
MURR decommissioning cost estimate: 

a. A current decommissioning cost estimate in 2016 dollars for the MURR to meet the NRC's 
radiological release criteria for decommissioning the facility for unrestricted use, pursuant to 
JO CFR 50.75(d)(2). Accordingly, describe the basis for how the cost estimate was developed 
(ifNUREGICR-1756 is still the basis for the decommissioning cost estimate, please so state). 

The current decommissioning cost estimate is $58.41 million in 2016 dollars. The original 
decommissioning cost estimate was developed using the methodology proposed in NUREG/CR-
1756, Technology, Safety and Costs of Decommissioning Reference Research and Test Reactors, 
for a reference test reactor using the passive safe storage (SAFSTOR) option for a period of 30 
years. The reference test reactor approach was used because this was thought to more closely 
represent the decommissioning efforts that would be needed for the MURR. The original 
decommissioning estimate was transmitted to the NRC in a letter dated June 29, 1990. In this 
letter, the MURR committed to adjusting our cost estimate at five year intervals using the 
decommissioning inflation formula provided in 10 CFR 50.75(c)(2). 

Our initial decommissioning cost estimate was $9.0 million, which included a 25% contingency. In 
1995 this estimate was revised to delete the 30-year annuity method of determining the present 
values of the annual costs associated with SAFSTOR. This revision to the original estimate, which 
changed the cost estimate to $11.8 million (1989 $), was made to assure that this aspect of the 
decommissioning cost would not introduce significant under-estimation of the annual costs. 

The current decommissioning cost estimate was developed using the inflation formula provided in 
10 CFR 50.75(c)(2). The use of this formula requires information from the most recently published 
NUREG-1307, Report on Waste Burial Charges; in this case Revision 15, dated January 2013. 

The calculation also requires information from Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) data for 
Employment Cost Index (ECI) to develop Lx and for Producer Price Index (PPI) to develop Ex for 
the formula. These BLS datasets currently contain Lx data for December 2015 and Ex data for 
January 2016. 
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b. A summary of total decommissioning costs by labor, waste disposal, other items (such as 
energy, equipment, and supplies) in current dollars, and a 25 percent contingency factor. 

The following Table 3, an update of Table 17-2 found in Chapter 17 of the Safety Analysis Report 
(SAR) that was submitted as part of the MURR' s renewal application, provides a summary of the 
breakdown of categories in current dollars. This table contains the categories the MURR used to 
develop our initial decommissioning estimate using the guidance of NUREG/CR-1756 that was 
submitted to the NRC by letter dated June 29, 1990. 

Labor 

Equipment 

Radioactive Shipments 

Termination Survey 

Annual Storage Cost 

Category 

TABLE3 
SUMMARY OF COST 
(in millions of dollars) 

Subtotal 

Contingency (25%) 

Total 

Cost (1989 $) Cost (2016 $) 

4.9 24.26 

0.27 1.35 

0.6 2.98 

0.06 0.31 

3.6 17.83 

$ 9.43 $ 46.73 

$ 2.36 $ 11.68 

$11.8 $ 58.41 

c. Provide an update of the total and annual MURR SAFSTOR costs provided in your March 12, 
2013 response to RAJ No. 3. (c) to current dollars as well as the supporting bases for the costs 
associated with the SAFSTOR option. Also, please provide a numerical example showing how 
the SAFSTOR costs will be escalated each year. 

The following Table 4, an update of Table 17-1 found in Chapter 17 of the SAR, indicates the 
annual cost estimates from the original cost estimate as revised in 1995 as well as these same 
annual costs in current dollars as escalated using the cost inflation formula of 10 CPR 50.75(c)(2). 
Table 4 is an example of the items in each category of the table. These examples are taken from 
NUREG/CR-1756, Volume 2 of2, page J-79. 

By letter dated June 29, 1990, the MURR committed to escalating the decommissioning cost 
estimates at five (5) year intervals using the methodology proposed in 10 CPR 50.75(c)(2). There 
is no regulatory requirement to escalate these costs on a yearly basis. With the 25% contingency 
included in the estimate, because of the uncertainty of an estimate, an annual escalation exercise 
would provide little benefit. 

The supporting bases for the annual costs associated with the SAPSTOR option were the categories 
specified in NUREG/CR-1756, adjusted to our judgment in 1990 where the reference test reactor 
estimates could be revised. One example was the cost for security systems. MURR decided the 
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current system we have in use would provide more than adequate security for the safe storage 
period so that category estimate was reduced. 

TABLE4 
ANNUAL COST DURING SAFSTOR 

(in thousands of dollars) 

SAFSTOR Categories Cost (1989 $) 

Security 15.0 

Minor Maintenance and Repair 10.0 

Major Repair 10.0 

Offsite Laboratory Work and Equipment Repair 6.0 

Reactor Facility Services 50.0 

Laboratory Samples, EPA Reports, and Surveillance 30.0 

Total $ 121.0 

Cost (2016 $) 

74.3 

49.5 

49.5 

29.7 

247.5 

148.5 

$ 599.03 

3The summation of the estimated annual cost during SAFSTOR is $17 .97 million dollars 
($599,000/year x 30 years). 

Examples of Items in Each SAFSTOR Category of Table 4 

Security: 

• Maintenance of existing security system 

• Monitoring, supervision and security patrols 

Offsite Laboratory Work and Equipment Repairs: 

• Sample analysis 

• Contamination counter repairs 

Reactor Facility Services: 

• Electrical 

• Water 

• HVAC 

• Sewer 

Minor Maintenance and Repair: 

• 

• 

Custodial 

Grounds and yard 

Laboratory Samples, EPA Reports, and Surveillance: 

• 

• 
Surveys 

Regulatory reports 

Major Repair: 

• 

• 

• 

Roof repairs 

Ventilation system repairs 

Water systems repair 

d. Provide a numerical example showing how the 2016 cost estimate will be updated periodically 

in the future. 

Future cost estimates will be performed using the same methodology that was used for the most 
recent 2016 estimate, as described below. 
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Adjustment Factor: 

The adjustment factor was designed for updating reference Pressurized Water Reactor (PWR) and 
Boiling Water Reactor (BWR) decommissioning estimates, but serves as a convenient method to 
adjust the MURR decommissioning cost estimates over time. Whenever a calculation is specified 
for a PWR or BWR, an average of the PWR and BWR factors is used. 

The decommissioning cost inflation equation of 10 CFR 50.75(c)(2) is divided into three general 
categories that tend to escalate similarly: (1) labor, materials and services, (2) energy and waste 
transportation, and (3) radioactive waste burial/treatment. A relatively simple equation is used to 
update the estimate of cost by multiplying the revised original cost estimate (in our case, $11.8 
million in 1989 $) by a factor developed using the three (3) categories described above. The 
equation is: 

Estimated Cost (2016): 

[Cost in 1989 $] x [A Lx+ B Ex+ C Bx]; 

estimated decommissioning costs in 2016 dollars; 

where: 

[Cost in 1989 $] 

revised original decommissioning cost estimate ($1 l.8M in 1989 $); 

A fraction of the [Cost in 1989 $] attributable to labor, materials and services; 

B fraction of the [Cost in 1989 $]attributable to energy and transportation; 

C fraction of the [Cost in 1989 $] attributable to waste burial/treatment; 

Lx labor, materials, and service cost adjustment, January 1989 to December 2015; 

Ex energy & waste transportation cost adjustment, January 1989 to January 2016; and 

Bx LLW burial/treatment cost adjustment, January 1989 to January 2013. 

The coefficients in the adjustment factor of 10 CFR 50.75(c)(2) are established as A = 0.65, B = 

0.13, and C = 0.22. The escalation formula then becomes: 

Estimated Cost (2016) 

[Cost in 1989 $] X [0.65 Lx+ 0.13 Ex+ 0.22 Bx] 

Determination of Lx....Ex, and Bx: 

These ratios are determined using the information supplied in the most recently published NUREG-
1307, Report on Waste Burial Charges, Revision 15, January 2013, and by using the most recent 
U.S. Department of Labor-Bureau of Labor Statistics (BLS) data. 

10of13 



Labor Adjustment Factor: 

The Employment Cost Index (ECI) is taken from Table 6 of current BLS data entitled 
"Employment Cost Index for total compensation for private industry workers, by bargaining status, 
census region and metropolitan area status." The Base Lx is taken from Table 3-2, Regional Factors 
for Labor Cost Adjustment, in NUREG-1307 referenced above. 

Lx [(ECI, December 2015) x (Base Lx)] I 100 

[(122.5) x (2.08)] I 100 

2.548 

Energy Adjustment Factor: 

This adjustment factor for energy, Ex, is a weighted average of two (2) components, namely, 
industrial electrical power, Px, and light fuel oil, Fx. 

For the reference PWR: 
For the reference BWR: 

Ex(PWR) 
Ex(BWR) 

0.58 Px + 0.42 Fx 
0.54 Px + 0.46 Fx 

Px and Fx are the ratios of the current Producer Price Indexes (PPI) divided by the corresponding 
indexes for January 1986. 

Px = 205.3 (January 2016 value for code wpu0543) I 114.2 (January 1986 value for code 
wpu0543) 

1.79772 

Fx 111.4 (January 2016 value for code wpu0573) I 82.0 (January 1986 value for code 
wpu0573) 

1.35854 

Therefore: 

Ex(PWR) Ex(BWR) 

(0.58 x 1.79772) + (0.42 x 1.35854) (0.54 x 1.79772) + (0.46 x 1.35854) 

1.61326 = 1.59570 

Ex for MURR is calculated as an average of Ex(PWR) and Ex(BWR), therefore: 

Ex( average) 

(1.61326 + 1.59570) I 2 

1.60448 
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Waste Burial Adjustment Factor: 

The adjustment factor for waste burial/treatment, Bx, is taken directly from Table 2-1 of NUREG-

1307, Values of Bx as a Function of LLW Burial Site, Waste Vendor, and Year. For facilities that 

have no disposal site available for LL W, the NUREG assumes the cost of disposal is the same as 

that provided for the Atlantic Compact, for lack of a better alternative at this time. 

Bx(PWR) = 13.885 Bx(BWR) = 14.160 

Bx for MURR is calculated as an average ofBx(PWR) and Bx(BWR), therefore: 

Bx( average) 

(13.885 + 14.160) I 2 

14.0225 

Adjusted Decommissioning Cost Estimate: 

Estimated Cost (in 2016 $) 

[Cost in 1989 $] X [A Lx + B Ex+ C Bx] 

[$11.8 Million] [(0.65 x 2.548) + (0.13 x 1.60448) + (0.22 x 14.0225)] 

[$11.8 Million] [ 4.94973] 

$58.41 Million (this includes the 25% contingency) 

4. The application indicates that MU plans to use a statement of intent (SOI) as the method to provide 
decommissioning funding assurance, as provided for by JO CFR 50. 75(e)(J)(iv). Where the 
applicant intends to use a SOI, the NRC staff must find that the applicant "is a Federal, State, or 
local government licensee. " To make this finding, the applicant must state that it is a State 
government organization and that the decommissioning funding obligations of the applicant are 
backed by the State government, and also provide corroborating documentation. Further, the 
applicant must provide documentation verifying that the signator of the SOI is authorized to 
execute said document that binds the University. This document may be a governing body 
resolution, management directives, or other form that provides an equivalent level of assurance. As 
the application does not include all of the above information, please submit the following: 

a. An updated SOI which includes the current (2016 dollars) cost estimate for decommissioning, a 
statement that funds for decommissioning will be obtained when necessary, and the signator 's 
oath or affirmation attesting to the information. 

Attached you will find the most recent Statement of Intent (dated March 29, 2016), signed by 

Rhonda K. Gibler, Vice Chancellor for Finance and Chief Financial Officer, University of 

Missouri-Columbia, which provides assurance that funding will be requested from the Board of 

Curators of the University of Missouri if decommissioning activities are commenced at the MURR 

(Attachment 3). 
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b. Documentation that corroborates the statement in the application that MU is a State agency 
and a State of Missouri government licensee under 10 CFR 50. 75(e)(2)(iv). 

No change or additional information is necessary. The letter dated February 28, 2013, from Kelly 
Mescher, Office of the General Counsel, University of Missouri (Enclosure No. 4 from the March 
12, 2013 submittal), which states that The Curators of the University of Missouri is a state 
university which was created by the Missouri Constitution in Article IX Section 9(a), remains 
current. 
c. A statement as to whether the decommissioning funding obligations for the MURR are backed 

by the State of Missouri government. The application must also present documentation that 
corroborates this statement. For example, the documentation may be a copy of or complete 
citation to a state statute that expressly provides that the obligations, or at least the 
decommissioning funding obligations, of the applicant are backed or supported by the full faith 
and credit of the State of Missouri, or an opinion of the applicant's General Counsel with 
citations to statutes, regulations, and/or case law that the obligations, or at least those with 
respect to the decommissioning funding of the applicant are obligations back or supported by 
the full faith and credit of the State of Missouri. 

No change or additional information is necessary. The letter dated February 28, 2013, from Kelly 
Mescher, Office of the General Counsel, University of Missouri (Enclosure No. 4 from the March 
12, 2013 submittal), which states that the state is constitutionally required to provide funding to the 
University, remains current. 

d. Documentation verifying that the signator of the SOI is authorized to execute such a document 
that binds the applicant financially. For example, provide a copy of MU's governing board or 
equivalent resolution that shows that the signator of the SOI has been authorized by MU to 
bind MU financially, at least with respect to funding the decommissioning of the MURR, or 
provide a copy of an official MU delegation of authority showing that the signator of the SOI is 
authorized to bind MU financially, at least with respect to funding the decommissioning of the 
MURR. 

No change or additional information is necessary. Enclosure No. 5 - Section 70.010, "General 
Execution of Corporate or Board Instruments," of Chapter 70, "Execution of Instruments," from the 
University of Missouri Collected Rules and Regulations - of the March 12, 2013 submittal has not 
been revised since May 5, 2006, and thus remains current. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 
Message from the Preside t 

As I -;tat s lar es pubh tour- e 1 resea1d1 uriiver ·ity mJ (:! Vtldl 
r.Jrivi 1g f, rce rif lhe std • .. eq1nurnic: v1 ;Jill lht'! Urn 1"r ,1ty nl 1sr,mm 
~Y em 1 cnmm1 ed to 1mp1ov111g the di t}c.tng of il I 6 n 1lltn l 
Missouri,m!i. We I J ·e real prid in our re.spun 1b1lil tu 1 guod 
ste Vdr<..f · uf ~li:JI le$UUH:es. 

We liere encouraged this legislative session hy the support of the 
entire General Assembly. In fact. w-::. ilrC rn n positron to mr.crvc the 
highest year over yedr fu11din14 increase to our budge 1n the past 14 
years. We advocate proudly fur our university and are app1eciative of 
our ldWITldkers who hdve demon~lraled thdl they, loo, vC1lue higher 
education ir1 the slate. 

As you'll note in the following pages our fiscal 11os1tron and hc;ilth 
rematns stmng and sound. Despite the dec1s1on to keep tuition tlat 
tor FY14. the un1vers1ty has l:>een able to maintain rt<:. strong hnanc1al 
µosilio11 through efficiency slrdtegies across lhe syslern. These 
include lower in our adrnirrislralive costs in order lo allow fur more 
inveslrmml towdrd lhe Clcademic rr rssion of the univ .rsity 

In order to contrn1w to thrive, we rrust contmue to make deer rans 
thnt will help cn<;urc our frn:inr..till ;,tability well mto the future, which 
1equ11es strate~1c th111k111g about t~ 1m1ver rt. 's ;Heci of In u 
and how to apply precious resourct t 1 ho r11 ~vi Wt 
our slrale~ic planning effurl5 in full force, we will coril111ue lu 
look fur WdY5 lo lJe more efficient di HJ fr !Clive ill nier~lmg 
our ITll55ion of re~edrd1, leC1ching, ; rvrcc· ;mrt cr.11nornrr 
developrnenl. 

This rnformatton :ind more 1s awHlilblf' on our veti it~ 

at w..vw.umsy t rn.edu We invite y1 u tu·~ u i1bUl t 11w 
succes es, review our strategic pnoriti !>an irilerdd with u 
onlirte or ltirough <:111y number of 501 !ill mc.d1rJ r. iilnnc~lr; 

Timothy M Wolfe 

President. U111ve1s1ty of Missouri ~ys rn 

2 



ATTACHMENT 1 
Curators of the University of M·ssou i 

The Univet c;1ty I Ml "S(IUll IS gov~rnetl lJy il nin ·ff rnber li:tH.l ur CUI dlors, dppuiriled by ll 1e 

G Prncir and con 11111 lb Ii Sena C111ator Y.!rw ix-y di lerm~. Tl1e !:illit.ltml 1eprestmlc1liv 
lo Lb booru of curalurs i!:i apµoi11led by the Go ~rnor, no c.onflrmr. by the: Scrliltc ~11idr.n1 
reµ e~r1tttlives. serv l\" o-. t!ctr terms . No mu e l11an two r.11rators shall be! ;ippo1ritco mm c:nr.h 
wn 1e~siuridl db,trid, crnd 110 µtmm11 hdll l>e plJOtllt I a 1 ura o wt10 h<1ll no be a 1 11zen (1 tile 
U111l-'d ~t"t~s. mc.J who ·hdll 1101 h\.lw e 1 a resiuent ot lhe state o M1 sou11 ·w ea1 p11or o his 
m her, Prx>tntmr:nt No mor. hiln fiv~ c:uriltor!" sh II belun • lo ;:my on .. µuhlical C:11ly. 

Don _ nowning 
Webs er Groves, Chairmon 
Term expire:: Jan. • 20 5 

Pamela Quigg Henrickson 
Jeffer~on City 
Term expireo: Jan. l, 017 

3 

Dona d L Cupps 
Camille. Vice Chairman 
Te e pire~: Jon. l. 20 7 

John R. Phillips 
Kanm City 
Term exp ire~ : Jan. l. 2019 

David R. Bradley 
St. J ~eph 
Term e pires: an. 1. 2015 

David L. Steelman 
Rolla 
Term expires: nn. 1, 2019 

Ann Covington 
Columbia 
Term Expires: Jan. , _019 

David L Steward 
St. Loui~ 
Term expire:: fan . l, 2017 

Wayne Goode 
St. Loui~ 
Term expires: Jon. l, O 5 

Tracy ulderig 
Studen Representotive 
to the Board of Curoto i:. , 
UM L 
Term expire::: Jon. 1. 2016 



ATTACHMENT 1 
University of Missouri System General Of icers 

Timothy M. Wolf a 
Pre::ident 

Stephan J:. Owen&. JD 
General Coun::el 

Ga ry K. Allen, DVM, PhD 
Vice Pre::ident for 
Information TechnolofY 

Brian D. Burne PhD 
Vice President for Finance 
and Ch ief Financial 0 cer 

Henry C. Foley, PhD 
Executive Vice Preside t fo 
Acade ic Affairs 

Stephen C. Knorr 
Vice President fo 
University Rel3 ion~ 

El izabeth "Betsy" Rodriguez, P D 
Vice President or 
Humon Resource:: 

Thomas F. George, PhD 
Ch:lncellor, 

R. Bowen Loftin, PhD 
Chancellor. 

Leo E. Morton 
Chancellor, 

Cheryl B. Schrader, PhD 
ChM ellor, 

Univernity of Missouri-St. Loui3 Univer:iity of Missouri-Columbia Uni\lmity of Mis~ouri-K~nt.a~ City Mis::ouri U ivertity of Science 
and Technolol)' 

University of Missouri System Finance Staff 
Brian D. Burnell, Vice President for Firi<mce am.l Chier Fimmcidl Office r 

Ryan Rdpp, Cunlrnller 

Cuh;i Pl<l in. Assrst;int Vir.c Prcstrlc:n1 for 81Jclgct Pl<lnning ;mrl Dcvclopmr:nt 



University of issouri-Columbia 
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Uni ersity of issour"-Kansas City 

I .I .Ill. 

hw.tni'•,, Mllt'.<J 1011 Ci g1111·r-r1n lhC' f-W.r!OllllHlg, tb ;rnd 
r 1ur -11 ::! zr·· 'Vi:•ll a:> p u e~'ttirral pr ·1g1 ams 1•1 Lien is r • 1-1 \ 
111ed1C'rr e and pharmacy In :?OIL. 1e Prince on RP.Vt w nr1nP 
UMKC d 'Be~l Vdlue·· pull ic u111v1;:r~1t •. lo l 1e lhuu c.::urr~ ~lJltv•~ 

yedr. UMKC has lu· g ueell al the ledrl 1Jf r1urlUIHI..! l l llure lfl 
thr. Kilns;is City rc:g1on throu h rcno.vnt 1 pr grams rn rn1,c;1r. 
;inrl d;rnr.e, lh<:·iHm iln<i v1'i1Jill ,1rts In .1oc111rilfl UMKC h;v f 11 If 
lledlth s1 1en1~e schools on one r.:ri ur; h::il pr. v1th ouli ;ich f 1r 
con11mm1ty health needs amf hdnd dill f'>i'rlt.n .m <; 1 i1 111 

G 
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Missouri Universi y of 
Scie ce and Technology 

t~ Ullt:! of 



Un1ve sity of Mi souri-St. Louis 
1 ldr e l re• di• ll u 11v r~.1ly I at <1111 Mt'" 11m''" mf)';f 

r•nptJlou- rJ ld l.f norn1rr1lly 1rnp I II 1 It;:~! ifl th· Ur IV I I 
of M1~'iC1tJ11-St Lot t'i rimv1rlcr, c•xcellen lea111111 exper 1enr:"'" 

rt! td lt~ddel ,llq lrpf_ .-tun1 IP.'- 0 ( ltVt;'f<:.e LIU I 11 IJ id wt I f> 

1r II 11:'111 · r i .c:- 1 ... g1on u prn 1 gt a•fod 1011 1 mm e1 ,.., UM~L 

ri.~t11111Jlly-r rik · deµdrtment~ rid r w,..:rarri-, 
eµarl1r1 .. r1l of C11r111rtolo mt Crn11mc1I Ju~.tu:.:e Jnd 
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University of Misso ri ystem fate ide each 

1 Re eard1 Parks / 

Ru. inc . . Tncubaror. 

• A ri ulcural He e, rd 1 'tati us 

Sdiou/ I >i~trict11 Served h,· 

3l;J c.\fl. TS l1we~ ti11x ;,. · 

luno1'liuou (i:J) l'roject 

• . rnall Ru 'ii1c s &. Tcdmology 

n \'e/0µ1 11e11t . utecs 

H alrh Cent ·r A ffiliat s 

MOREnct Site. 

Countic · Scrvc<l by 

F.xteu iou C:ernel\ ' 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

MANAGEMENT RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANC~AL STATEMENTS 

Oct 11l:1f'r 10, JUt-1 

I he management nf the ll11ive1!.ily of Mi!.!>nu1i syslem (the "University") is responsible for the 
prepar tion, integrity, and fa ir present t ion ot the lin:inrial !.l ;:i lements. I he fi 11.1111j .-il sl<1lf'me11h , 
p1 esenled on page~ JO lo //, h<ive lreen prepa1ed in cu11formity with a counting princip les generally 
an-epled in l he United Sl ;lles or /\11w1i1-;i ;iml , as such, include amounts based on judgm nts and 
est imates by management. 

The financial statements have been audited by the independent ;m:mmlirig fi rm KPMG 111', which was 
given unrestrict d access to all fi nancial records and re lated data, inciuding minutes of all meetings of the 
Board of Cur;:itors. The University believes that all represent;:itions m de to the independent ;:iuditors b J 
during their audit were valid and appropriate. KPMG's audit opinion is presented on pages 28-29. r l•••••,I 
Th University maintains a system of interna l controls over financial reporting, whic.h is designed to 
provide reasonable ssurance to the University's management and Board o Cur;'ltors regarding the 
p1ep;nalio11 uf r r.l i~ble published fi11;111c:i;il !. l;:i lementi.. Sur h r;unlrnls ;ire mainl ;:i ic ed by th!'. .-stahlii.hme.nl 
and communication ot accounting and financial policies ;'Ind procedures, by the selection and t raining of 
qualified personn I, cind by an internal audit progrcim designed lo idl'.nlify intern;:il rnntrnl we.akrie!.ses in 
order In per mil m;m;igerrwnl lo l<1ke ;:ipprnp1i;:ile cu11ec:t ive <it t ion on;) timely basis. There are, however, 
inherent limitations in the effectiveness of any system of inlern;il c:cmlrnl, induding l he Jm!.sibilil y or 
human eUOI arid the cirCUlllVt!rt l ion of COll l l oh. 

The Bo rd ot Curators, through its Audit Committee, is responsible for engaging t he independent ;:iuditors 
and meet h1.q regularly with management, internal auditors, and th ind p nd n auditors to ensure that 
e;'lch is carrying out their responsibilit ies and to discuss ;'!Udit ing. intern I control, and financial reporting 
matters. Both int rnal auditors and th independent auditor haw hill. ,mcl fr ace.es~ to I he Aue.lit 
Cmnmil tee. 

Uased on lhe above, I c:erl ify th.i t lhe info11n;:it io11 mntairiecl in the ;'!CCOmpanying rn:>ncial statements 
fa irly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition, 1 hangei. in net pmition ;md cai.h flow!. of 
the University. 

Rri;m 0. Rurnett 
Vice President tor Fin;'lnce and Chiet FinanciJI Otticer 

ntver Hy or Mt sourl S tem COLU MBIA KANSAS CITV ISSOURI S&T I ST. LOU IS 

118 University Hall , Columbia, MO 65211 , 573 882 3611 www.urnsvstem.edu 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION ANO ANALYSIS 

une 30, 201ij (unaudited) 

Management's Discussion and Analysis provides an 
overview of the financial position and act ivities of the 
University of Missouri System (the "University'') for the 
fiscal year ended June 30, 2014, and should be read in 
conjunction with the financial statements and note:;. 
The University is a component unit of the state of 
Missouri and an integral part of the state' s 
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report. 

This report includes five financial statements: 

• The three financial statements for the University of 
Missouri, its Blended Component Unit, and its 
Discretely Presented Component Unit include the 
Statement of Net Position, the Statement of 
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position, 
and the Statement of cash Flows, where applicable. 

• The two financial statements for the Universit y's 
fiduciary fund , which includes the Retirement and 
the Other Postemployment Benefits Trust Funds, 
are the Statement of Plan Net Posit ion and the 
Statement of Chanaes in Plan Net Posit ion. 

The University's financial statements are prepared in 
accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting 
principles as prescribed by the Governmental 
Accounting Standards Board (GASB), which establishes 

financial reporting standards for public colleges and 
universiti11>S. The University's significant accounting 
policie:; are summarized in Note 1 to the financial 
statements of this report, including further information 
on the f inancial reporting entity. In addition, a more 
deta iled unaudited financial report that includes 
campus-level financia l statements is ava ilable at the 
University of Missouri, 1000 W Nifong, Building 7, Suite 
300, Columbia, MO 65211, and at 
www.umsystem.edu. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

At June 30, 2014, the University's financial posit ion 
remained solid, with Total Assets of $7.2 billion. Net 
Position, which represents the residual value of the 
University's assets and deferred outflow of resources 
after deducting liabilit ies and deferred inflow of 
resources, totaled $4.1 billion. When operating and 
non-operating changes are included, Net Posit ion 
increased by approximately $3414.0 mill ion as 
compared to fiscal year (FY) 2013. Taking into account 
a ($509.9) million cumulative effect of a change in 
accounting principle, Net Posit ion decreased by 
approximately $166.0 million in fiscal year (FY) 2014, 
primarily driven by the net pension li abi lity at the 
beginning of the year related to the implementation of 
GASB Statement No. 68. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 20l~ (\in udi ed) 

Th fo llowing charts compare Total Ass ts and D t rrcd 011l fluw of He~ow c:e~. l i;.ibil il ie' .md Dt' f rred l11flnw af 
I! sourre~. and Nel Po3ilion itl June 30, J U1 '1 ..irirl ?01 J , ..ind the majo components ot changes in Net Position to 
th years ended Jun 30 2014 and 201.3: 

$8,000 

$7,000 

$6,000 

$5,000 

;;; 
~ $4,000 
~ 

$. ,000 

$:>,000 

$1,000 

$0 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
[11 n~.111:,, 1:/rl <1tfW~1 

.IOU 2014 

S7,21S 

S6.S28 

$4,301 S4.13S 

$3.JCIO 

Sl.227 

Total Anets 11nd Deferred Outflow To liib i1ies ill~ Dtf~rred Inflow Net PG ' Ion 
of Resourceo; of Rt$4Urc.~ 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
(in mil l10/l5 of of dol lar>) 

• 2011 2014 
$3,000 .....------------------

n1 

$2,SOO ----------o 
$2,745 S2,2&S 

$2,000 

$1,000 

5642 

Ssoo 
$ll6 

$56 $62 

Operating Revenues Operating Expense~ 0noperati111 Revenues, Capit;il Contributions lncre<ise in Net P~ition 
Net · and Endowment 

Add itions 

•indudL~ Stull: App1up1ii'.Jli.uc1s 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 201-4 (unaudi d) 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

The Statement of Net Posit ion presents the 
llnive1i.ily'" !111.mridl pmition .ii lhf' end of lht' Ii ' ..i i 
Vf'..1 1. inr luding .tll ..i ... f'l \ dn!i df'ff'llPcJ uutnn"' ur 
r sources and liabiliti s and d fcrr d inflow of 
rf' 'illl llC't!l> of l llf' Univer'ii ly ..ind '"g1eg..iting. them inlo 
current and noncurr n components. Total Net 
Position is an indicator ot tinancial condition and 

c::h,mgf'!l in lot;:i l Nt>I Pm1lion iuclic,,t l f' if l ht' ovP1..ill 
hnanctal c ndition has improved or worsened. Assets 
,me! dt>f t' 11 I'd out Omv of r f'Mlllll . t!~ ..i ml 1i.d1ili l if'\ ..ind 
deterred inflow 01 resources are gener lly measured 
using current valu s with c rtain xccptions, !iuch as 
c .ipil ..i l .i.o...,F!I' whi1 h :41P .. 1atf'1I .i i ru\I IP'"' 
accumulated depre iation, and long-t m1 debt which is 
stated at cost. 

I he following 1.iltlt> ' urnm:41i1f's the Univt>ri.ity'i. _.i.-.eb ;md deferred outflow of resources, liabilities and deferred 
intlow ot resources and net position at June 30, 2014 and 201 :\: 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

(in thousands of doll8rs) 

As of June 30 2014 2013 
Assets 

current Assets $ 1,110,174 $ 950,039 
Noncurrent Assets 

Endowment :11nd Other Long-Term Investments 2,827,084 2,442,510 
capi t<t l As ets, Net 3,123,172 2,997,508 
Other 122,208 116,475 

Deferred Outflow of Resour«!s 52 417 21736 
Total Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources $ 1,23s1oss $ 6~28~68 

liabilities 
Curr nt Liabi l i t ies 

Commercia l Paper and Current Portion of Long-Term Debt $ 92,433 $ 203,295 
Long-Term Debt Subject to Rema rketi ng Agre men ts 99,445 99.895 
Other 

Noncurrent Liabili ti es 
Long-Term Debt 
Other 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 

Total Liabilities & Deferred Inflow of Resources 
Net Position 

Net Investment in Capita l Assets 
Restricted -

Non expendable 
Expendable 

Unrestricted 
otal Net Position 
Total liabilities and Net Position 

ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF 
RESOURCES 

Total Assets increased by $70Ci.8 million, or 10.8%, to 
$/ .] billion ii\ or hmt> ] (), :n1111 ntmp;ued l.o l ht' prim 

770,196 582,292 

1,411,225 1,103,004 
540,926 238.843 
185,860 

3 11001oes 2~27~29 

1,626,371 1,636,334 

998,947 858,820 
477,728 415,128 

1 ,031,924 1~90.657 

41134,970 41300,939 
$ 7,235,0SS $ 6~28~68 

year. The increase durinR FY 2014 was driven primarily 
by strong returns on the University's Investments. At 
the sam time, the University continued to pand 
Capital Assets ano\\ ;ill of iii. c::4 mp1L~ei. lu mf'f'I 
housing, educational, and patient care needs. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANAL VSIS 

Jun 0, 2014 (unaudited) 

At June 3.0, 2014, the Umversity's working c;:ipi at, 
which j, n irr t>nl ;.i""''" le'>s nir rt>nl li .1 liili l it'.,, w..1~ 

~148. 1 million. an increase of $83.~ million trom the 
p1Pvium. year . lhe l.1 rgt'.,l d rive1 uf lht' inciea.,f' w..-1!> ii 

$208.2 million increas,e in Investment Settlements 
Receivable for sales ot inv ·stm nts occu1TinR on or 
betore June 30, but settll na. :ifter June 30. 

As a m as.ur mcnt of actual liquidity, working capital is 
adversely impacted by the inclusion, pt>r accounting 
guidelines, of long-Tern Debt Subject to Rcmarketing. 
It long Term Debt Subject to Remarketing were 
exdmled frn m <-mrp111 I i,ihil ilie.,, working f:ap il;d 

would be S247.'.i million: June 30, 2014, also 
f'XJllE'\"erl .i C.ur rent A_<,wh uf 1.Jll ti me\ U m nl 

liabilities. 

The following t;ible illustrates actual working Glpital. :is well ;.i., working capital adju.,led for I orig- I e11n De bi 

S.ubjc t to Remark tinR: 

As of Jun!! 301 

C1.mren l As ets 
CUJrl'ent Liabirl iti e$ 

Workinil caeltal 

SUMMARY OF WORKING CAPITAL 
(in thousands of dollars) 

Ratio of Curn~nt Assets to Current Liabilities 

Cu1r enl Assets 
Current Uabl1litle$ 
Les : Long-Term Debt Subject to Remarketing 

Current Liabilities, As Restated 
Worklns Caeltal1 As Restated 

Ratio of Current Assets to Current liabilities !As Adjusted) 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2014 2013 

1,110,174 $ 950,039 
962,074 885 482 
148,100 i 64,,!57 

1.15 1.07 

1,110,174 950,039 
962,074 885,482 
(99,445) (99,895) 

862,629 785,587 
247.545 i 164.452 

1.29 1.21 

16 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSlON AND ANALYSl,S 

June 30, 20ll! (unaudi } 

Al llmt' .10, 10111, I lie llnivt'I i. ily held '\ 1 llti. lJ· million in 
cash and Cash Equlvalents, a d crease ot $111.'J 
million f 1 cun huw lfl, 101 I. I he dt'c r t'<'lllt' in 1 ..i h ..ii 

June 30, 2014 is lareely due to timine ditter nces as 
mor workine capi I was invest d ;it June 30, 2014 as 
c.omparcd to Jun 30, 2013. Short-Tenn and Lon1-
Term Investments total d $3.1 billion as of June 30. 
2014, representing an increase or 11.7% over the prior 
year. The increase in investment balances during FY 
701'1 i ~ flrllli;illy off~t'I by dec:re;i~ei. in t:a.'>h <1ml C<l"•h 
equiValents due to an increased investment ot working 

capit:l l. The in ncial markets imp oved durinB FY 
2014; n rallz d and unrealized Rc1ins and loss s 
in r a ed by $137. 7 million. eoine from ;i ne eain of 
$96.S mi llion in FY 2013 to a net gain of $234.2 million 
in I Y 101'1. I lie uw1.:ill cJi.-mgt' in i11Vt'\l111 nl rPl umlo i' 
vldcnt a ross all investnrnt pools. The Endowment 

Poul, I ~xt'd Income l>ool ;mcl r!:'ltt>f Al Poul l:'Xflt'I it>m·t'd 
a net gam ot 1G.7%, 7 . ~% and Ci.2% in FY 2014, 
re:o.per!ively ..l!I. u1mp<11ed lo A 11el g.iin of 17.ti%, :i .~% 

and (0.9}% in FY 2013, respectively. 

Com110!!.il icm ;ind 1ellm 1'> o f lllf~ lJnive1si!y':i. various investment pools for th years ended June 30, 2014 and 2013 
were as follows: 

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS 
(1n thousands of dollars) 

June 30 2014 June 30, 2013 
Cash and Short-Term Be nm mark 

Ca!:h and l o ng· Total Index Total 
Eguivalents Term Total Return Return (A) Tat.a Return 

General Pool s 10'1 ,72 7 s 1,589,265 s 1,693,992 6.2% 3 .1% $1,682,716 -0.9" 
Endowment Funds 

Endowment Pool 27,302 1,299,224 1,326,526 16.7% 17.6% 1,135,525 12.6" 
Fi xed lntome Pool 3,086 70,379 73,465 75% 6 .5% 73,369 3 .5% 

Other 11,820 122,1so ll3,970 N/A 125~78 tjLA 
Total $ 146,935 $ 3,081 ,018 $ 3,227,953 $3,016,888 

(AJBenchmarlt indPlf rt'fi;rnsare calci;loted by independent investmmt consultants based r;m returns of market indicles. 

Al June ]0, JOM, lhr. llnivr.r:o.ily's inve!.Lmenl in Capital 
Assets totaled $3.1 billion compared to $3.0 billion at 
June 30, 2013. The University added $308.9 million in 
capital assets, net of retirements, durine FY 2014, 

• 

ottse by depreciat ion of $183.3 million tor the year. FY 
2013 capital asset additions of $316.3 million, net of 
r t>lirem~rtl , Wf"lf' um.et hy 1fl/.H million in 

d predation . 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Ju11e 30, 2014 (unaudited) 

Not 6 p cs.cnts additional illlfomlation on c.hanRes by s~ I d.t~"ific<1l io11 . M;ijm pil..i p rujl"c "eill1P r 
suh'>l;m l i;illy rnrnplel d in I Y 70M m ongoing ill e \how rr in the tollowing table· 

SELECTED CAPITAL PROJECTS 
(Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2014) 

Campus 
Columbia: 

Virginia Avenue South 
Renovation of Johnston and Wolpers 
Memorial Stadium 
Dobbs Din ing Replacement Project 

Hospita l: 
Green Meadows 
MO Orthopaedic Institute 

K nsas City: 
Hospi ta l· Hill 

Ml souri S&T: 
Geothermal nergy Project 
Bertelsmeyer Hall 

St. Loui : 
Wellness Center 
Renton Science learning Building 
Optometry Build ing 

Project 
Budget 

$28,400,000 
42,800,000 
55,300,000 

139,603,000 

28,528,000 
35,334,000 

32,400,000 

32,400,000 
30,509,000 

36,000,000 
30,000.000 
18,300.000 

LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOW OF 
RESOURCES 

Total Liabilities and Def erred Inflow of Resources W<i!> 

$872.8 million higher at June 30, 2014 as compared to 
June 30, )013. Signifir.11nl c:h.mges in Current 
Liabilit ies at June 30, 2014 include a $84.3 million 
increase in Investment Senlements Payable for 
p1ud 1ase~ nf inve'.'llments 11<;u111ing 1111 m hdme lune 

30, but scttlin.R after June 30; a $89.0 million increas 
in Collateral Held for Securities Lendin1; and a ~110.9 
million decre;1:0.e in Commercial Paper and Current 
Portion of Long-Term Debt . 

Current Liabilities include long-term variable rat 
dern;tnd hunds !i.Ubjec:I lo 1ern;.irkel i11g ;.igreements 

totaling $99.4 million and $99.9 million at June 30, 
70111 ;.iml 7013, re<.pedively. lht> Vrlri~ble 1;ile 

dP.mand bond has a f inal contractual maturity in t i ~c:i l 

year 2032. Despite contractual maturities beyond one 
year, thiis variab le rate demand bond is dassiticd as a 
current liability because the University is ultimately the 
sol source of liquidity should the option to tender be 
t>xe1ci_ t'll by lhe IK1mlhulde1 . 

Expenditure$ 

Through 
Jun@ 30, Sour~ of Funding 

$ 5,519,000 Revenue Bonds, Campus Reserves 
26,806,000 Revenue Bonds, Campus Reserves 
33,498,000 Revenue Bonds 

1,559,000 Revenue Bonds, Campus Reserves 

15,380,000 Reven11e Bonds, Reserves 
654,000 Revenu~ Bonds, Reserves 

23,780.000 Revenue Bonds 

26,085,000 Revenue Bonds, campus Reserves. 
11 ,381,000 Reven1.1e Bonds, campus Reserves, Gifts 

9,854,000 Revenue Bond 
2,874,000 Revenue Bonds, Campus Res erves 

145,000 Revenue Bonds, Campus Reserves 

The University's Commercial P.-ipcr ProRr m un issue 
up to :in aggregate outstanding principal mount of 
$375 mill ion. During fisc.-i l year 2014, th University 
refu11decl $111 / .!> million nf fumrnPrci.;d 1'<1J1er with 

bond issuances and issued $45.0 million of commercial 
p<1Jlt!r tu furrd working capital needs. Durin,R fiscal year 
2013, the University issued $18.9, million ot 
Commercial raper to finance capital projects. 

Noncurrent Uablllt les represent those commitments 
111-'ynncf one yp;ir . I hr Pe nPw bmuls werP j,,ued i11 IV 
2014. On November 2G,. 2013 the University issued 
$11.3 million and $150.0 million in Seri s 2013A 
SV"lern I ;.ii;i lil it>_., llevnme lkmds ;1ml Jm:m l;1x;.ihle 

System I ;ir:il it ies HPvenue Uomb., re~pa·tively. 

Proceeds trom issuance ot the Series 2013A and 20138 
Bonds were used to refund the Series 20038 bonds, 
fi11<1m:e c:onstruclinn prnjed~ ;1nu:o..' multiple c::.;impuses 

and the health system, and f inan c the cost of issuance 
nf l hP Series 701JA ;111d 701JU lxmd". Hit' ;i ll:-in-lrue 

interest cost of the Series 2013A and 20138 bonds is 
l.2% and 4.9%, resp ctivcly. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 201'4 (una di d) 

On May ')) . JOM the U11 iw1sily i!.!>11ed $?911 .~ mill iu11 

in eries 2014A ystem Fa iii ies Revenue Bonds. 
Prmeecl\ frnm i. MJdlll of lhf' ·P r i~ J01 '1 /\ h111 1rh 

were used to retund ;) portion ol ries 2007A bonds, 
repa.ying a portion ot outstanding Commerci:JI P;lper 

Notes and payi·ng the osl ot issuance ol he Series 
J Cl1 '1/\ bond\ . I he .il l-i11-l 111t> i n l t'l t'.~ I 1:m l o f lhe '.'.t>1 if' " 

2014A bonds is 3.2%. 

The tollowing ir; summ:iryot lone. term debt by type of deh1 iuslrnrne nl : 

As of June 30 
System Facir tles Revenue Bonds 

LONG-TERM DEBT 
(m thousands of dollars) 

IJna morti ted Premium and Loss on Defeasanc:e 
Totil l Bonds Payable 
Notes Paya ble 
Capital Leas eObligatio ns 
Commerci a l Pa per 
Total Long-Term Debt 

Cont ractual Maturities Within One Year 
Bonds Paya ble - Fi xed Rate 
Bonds Payable - Variable Rate Dema nd 
Notes Payable 
Capital lease Obligati ons 
Commercial Pa per 

Total Cont ractual Maturities Within One Year 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2014 
1.420.420 

72,556 
1,492,976 

33,389 
S,166 

71,572 
1,603,103 

18,640 
450 
95 1 
820 

71,572 
92,4H 

20U 
1,185,400 

23,489 
1,208,889 

14,130 
S,920 

177,255 
$ 1,406,194 

$ 23,890 
435 
960 
755 

177,255 
$ 203,295 

The following is c1 summary of outstanding revenue bonds and commercial paper by Cc1mpus and project type: 

Athl etics 
tampu Uti lities 

C la$ ~ room & Research 

Revenue Bonds and Commercial Paper 
(in thousands or dollars) 

June 30 2014 

Missouri University 
MU UMKC UMSL S&T Health Care 

$ 81,268 $ s $ $ 
143,910 11,325 30,945 

56,367 26,368 12,275 15,281 
Cr i ti ca I Repa irs/Mai ntenance 17,313 7,386 4,558 5,132 
Housi ng 261,674 106,015 20,554 58,920 
Health Ctre 306,257 

Studen t Centers 45,952 46,002 20,666 
Pa rking 39,555 7,222 15,762. 1,089 
Recreati ooal Faci liti es 27,851 40,378 17,395 9,922 

Other 811 1,008 
Short-term working capital 
Unamorti zed Premi um 

Tota l $674,701 $245,704 $91,210 s 121,289 s 306,257 

Unallocated 
Bond Cost Total 

$ s 81 ,268 
186,180 
110,291 

34,389 
447,1.63 
306,257 
112,620 

63,628 
95,546 

7,831 9,650 
45,000 45,000 
121ss6 121ss6 

s 125,387 Sl ,564,548 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2014(unaudited) 

Deferred Inflow Resources represent n, ;icquisi ion ot 
nel µo ilim1 hy the UniVf'r'\iLy I h;:i l i appli1 .-.bl lo a 
tuture p rlocl. During FY 2014, lne University 
rcc:osnizcd $185.9 million of def rrcd inflow rcsour s 
rcprcs nting the diffcrcnc between a tual and 
expec.h'!iJ Par ningi. 1111 pem.ion pl .. m i11vei.I me n Ii.. 

NET POSITION 

Net Position reprcs nts the valu of h University's 
<t!>..\Pl s ..iflt>r lio:t bilil if'_\ ;i1 e dedu I e el. I he U11ive1 ~ i ly\ 

total Nt't Position decre:ised by $166.0 mill ion durine 
the year ended June 30, 2014. 

The distribution of the Net Position balances, includine :iddil iun;il clel ;iili. 111111nrei.llic1ecl nel pmilio11 by hmd lype, 
as of June 30, 2014, arc as follows ; 

TOTAL NET POSITION - $4.1 BIWON 

------- Qillll I 11 -• --------- 5" --
lol::i l Net Position i re fl l-!ftecl in the fom c:orn1m11enl 
cJtegories :is follows: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets, represents the 
Llnive1'i l V'' i11ve!llme11I i11 l=<l fli l.-.1 ilS,f'l,, nel uf 

J umul ted d pre iation and outstJndinA debt 
related to acquisition, construction or improvement of 
those assets. This category decreased by $10.0 million 
in I Y ;101'1. r llis deCI ease w.as driven lly ;i d1;mge i11 
;iccount ine principle requiring the write down ot 
previously capitalized bond issue costs. 

Restricted Nonexpendable Net Position includes 
endowment assets that arc subject to externally 
im1><1!>ed i. l ipul;ili1111i. for ll1P. ptincip;il In be 111ai11l.ii11ed 
in perpetuity by the University. Favor: ble m:irket 

experience led to a $140.1 million, or 16.3%, increase 
in Restricted Nonexpendable Net Position during FY 
;101'1. I ;ivm;ihlt> rn;irkel ccmdil iom. we.rt> l<lrgely 

responsible tor :in $87.7 million, or 11.4%, increase 
during FY 2013. 

Restricted Expendable Net Position 1epte)lelll!.. 
resources th:it are subject to externally imposed 
stipulations regarding thei r us , but arc not required to 
he rno:tinl;ii11t>d in perpetuity. I his c;1 le.gmy inne<ii.ed 
by $G2.G mi llion, or 15.1%, durine FY 2014 :ind $26.1 
milliou, m f>./%, i11 I V 7013. "-' of June :m, ;10111, I his 
c:itegory includes: 
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UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

J1Jne 30, 20lll (unaudited) 

- $349.6 milllo of net position restricted for 
operations and giving purposes compared o $323.4 
millio at June 30, 2013; 

- $Hl.I~ million for sluu 11l lod11 p1owdms t.ornµd r ~d 
to $80.4 million at June 30. 2013; and 

- ~46.4 million for facilities compared o $11.2 mill ion 
al June ]II, JOU. 

Unrestricted Net Position is not subject to externally 
imposed stipulations although these resources may be 
dei.ignaled fm !>pedflc: r1111pnst'\ by the University's 
1m111ageme11l m lloard ol Curator ·. Thii. c.ategmy 
decreased by $358. 7 million, or 25.8%, to $1.0 billion 
..ii lune :m, 7111'1. A. ($~!)t}.lJ) million c:urrrulalive effe<:I 
of a change in ac ounting principle trom the 
implementation of GASB 68 was the primary driver of 

the decrease in FY 20l!4. M:iintaining adequ te ev rs 
of unr strict d net position is on ot s v ·ral k y 
farlu" lh..tl h<ive en..iblt'd the llnive1-.ily In rn..i in tai11 it 
A 1 credit rating. As ot June 30, 2014 :ind 2013. 
University H alth Care dcsi11natcd funds total d ~3S1.8 
rnillin rr ..irrd 114. '> millim1, tP!>pertive ly; cApil.;il 
project-designated funds tota d $111.3 milli n and 
, ') K.J million, r ~peclivf'ly; ' mien I lo"" pr og1 ,m1-

designated funds tota led $8.8 million and $8.7 million, 
1ei.pec:lively; :mcl umes llic:ted fundl, fund inning .a!> 
endowments totaled $204.3 million :ind $177.9 
million, 1ei.pectively. lhe remaining Unrestricted ct 
Position is available tor the University's instructional 
and public service missions and its Rcncral operations 
lnlalecl S:i'll!>. / million and $h!>h.'1 million al June JO, 
2014 and 2013, respectively. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2014 (unaudited} 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHA,..GES IN ET POSITION 

The Statemen o1 Revenu s, Expenses, and Changes m Net Posi ion pr s nts th University's r su its of operations. 
l ht> s1::1terne111 1l"li11g11i,1i .. , 1 eve11ue~ ;inti: expe 11 \f'~ lietween op rating and non operat ing c:itegones, :ind 
f)rOVides ;:i View Of th llniVPr<oity'!> OpN::iling m.argin. 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

(in thousands of dollars) 

f iSGil Year Ended June 30, 2014 2on 
Operat ing Revenues 

Net Tuition a nd Fees $ 627,273 $ 592,805 
Grants and Contracts 286,987 309,683 
Patient Medical Services, Net 873,638 847,681 
Other Auitiliary n terprises 409,184 412,351 
Other Oeerati ng R enues 88,174 82~08 

Total Oeeratinl Revenues 2,2ss12s6 2,244!28 
Operating Expenses 

Salaries, Waa.es and Benefi ts 1,709,706 1,729,656 
Suppli , Services and Other Operati ng Ex pen 833,799 766,624 

Other Oeerati n& Ex eenses 250,169 230~57 

otal oeeratin8 Exeens es 2,793,674 21726237 
Oe!;rat in& Loss Before State Aeeroeriations (508,418~ i411i709l 
State Ap~roerla ti on s 412,650 401.400 
Loss after State Appropr iations, before 

Nonoeerating Revenues IEXeensesl i951768l 110~091 
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Inv tm nt and Endowm nt Income, Net of Fees 281 ,837 147,433 
Privat Gifts 66,780 64,103 
Interest Expen e (59,916) (55,256) 
Other Nonoeerating Revenues, Net 88,928 84J49 

et Nonoe era ti n(S Revenues ~ xeenses} 377,629 240~29 

lnc.ome before Capital Contributions and Additions 

to Permanent Endowments 281,861 160~20 

State Ca pita Appropriatl ons 745 
Capital Gifts and Grants 14,727 20,244 
Private Gifts for Endowmen Pureoses 47,390 35,113 

Increase in Net Posit ion 343,978 216~22 

Net Po!lit lon, Beginning of Year 4,300,939 4,084,617 
Cumulative Effect of a Cha n&e in Acco untin& Pri nci~ l e !509,947} 

Net Position1 Be&innin& of Year, Restat.ed 
Net Posit ion1 End of Year 

OPERATING REVENUES 

Operating Revenues represent resources generated by 
the U11ive1!.ily in fulfi ll ing it~ in~l1 u c:l i o11, 1ese;111:h, ;mcl 
public scrvic.c missions. Total Operating Revenues 
im rp;ii.ecl $40.'1 mill ion, m 1.H%, in I Y J01'1. Net 
Tuit ion and Fees, Patient Medical Services and Other 

317901992 4.!!14,617 

~ 4,134,970 i 4.!00,939 

Auxiliary Enterprises ontinued to grow over FY 2013, 
hut l hi~ gruwlh w;i, off)lel hy d dt>ne.i:-.~ in Grants and 
Contracts. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND .ANALYSIS 

June 30, 201-4 (uriaudi d) 

I he Following i'i a gr;iphit. i ll u~llalinn of u ~ 1-' l ing 
revenues by sour.ce tor FY 2014· 

1 

TOTAL OPERATINGREVENUES-$2.3 BILUON 

Net Tuition 
1ndFffs 

27" 

Tuit ion and Fees, net of Scholarship Al lowances, 
i m:1ea~ed by $3'1.~ million, or ~.8%, in I Y 201" and by 
$47.S million, or 8.7%, in FY 2013. The increase in FY 
:101.11 w.i~ cl riven by a 1 % gmwl h in fu ll-I ime 11uivale11I 
enrollment and increases ot 1.7% in res.dent and 
helwee11 1.1% .. md b.H% .in 111111-1e\i<lenl luilior1 rate~ 

varying hy r:ampu~. 

As a research institution, t he University rec ives a 
substant ia l amount ot funding through Federal, State 
and Private Grants and Contracts. Overall, sponsored 
f11111 l i11g dei:r e<i~ed hy $77 ./ 111illio11, 111 / .3%, in I Y 701.11 

compared to a decrease of 0.7% in FY 2013. Federal 
<ir;m1 s <11111 Ccmlr .u:ls dedinecf i11 I V 701.11 a~ projet:I!. 

tun<le<l by the Americ:;m RP overy an<l Reinve tment 

Act expired. 

The University's auxi liary enterprises include University 
l leall h C.11e, llnming aml Uining Se1vii:t>_,, c:;:m1p11s 

Bookstores, and other such supplementa l a tivitres. 
lol;il oper;i l ing revenue!> generalecl lly the!>t' auxiliary 
enterprises increased by $22.8 mill ion, or 1.8% in FY 
2014, Patient M edical Services, wh it h indmJcs fees 
frn \t'1vic:ei. pmvirlell hy Univl:'r !>i1y lle;ill h Cue, h.;1d 
the lareest increase among auxiliaries at $2G.O million, 
or 3.1%. This was larRely driven by growth in inpatient 
areas with discharges increasing by 3.9% over FY :mu. 

NONOPERATING REVEHUES 

Nonoperatlng Revenues are those not generated by 
the Univ ~rsity's core missions and in · ludc such fllnd ing 
\uurc.e~ .t Sla l t' .imi I t>der ..i i /\p1 11 up1 i.il ior1_.., !'ell 

Grants, Privat Gifts and Investment and E.ndowmcn 
l11u1me. 

lotal Stat e Appropriations received for university 
operat ions, University Health Care operations, and 
ol her ~peci.i l pmgr <1111s inne;ised by $ 11.] rn illicm, or 

2.8%, in FY 2014. Even though State Appropriations 
inn e;ise1I over I Y 701 :-t, I he i 11ne;i_\e was not :ot!> high ;is 

expected as the State' s lottery revenue fell short of 
expectations, resulting in increased withholdings for FY 
2014. 

/\.\ one or l he more vnl<iti le \llllll'.t'l> or 111111-operaling 

revenues, Investment and Endowment Income 
im.hule~ inle r e~I <11111 dividr 11d im:ume <is wdl a~ 

realized and unrealized gains and losses. Realized and 
unrealized market value gains, losses and other activity 
attecting Investment and Endowment Income resulted 
in a net gain of $281.8 mill ion in FY 2014 as compared 
lo a net gain of $14/.4 million in I Y ZOD, an int1'ea'.le 
or $13.11.'l million for lhe year e11cled lune :m, 701'1 . 

Gifl i11cmnt> i~ rt>Oec:led i11 1 tiree 1:alegrn i e~ : Private 
Gifts, Capital Gifts and Grants (which are re5tricted tor 
<1ddi11g or i111pwvi11g i:;ipi1 al .isse l ~) ;ind Private Gifts 
for Endowments (which are rest ricted tor establishing 
endowm nts). Private Gifts and Grants can fluctuate 
~ig11 ific<1111 ly from ye;i r to yea1 due In I he vohml.;uy 
nature of donors' gitts. In FY 2014, the University 
received gifts lo l ;i ling $178.'-I million, ;is com11;:11ed In 

$119.S mill ion tor FY 2013. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI, SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2014 (unaudited) 

Total Interest Expense for th y ar ended June 30, 
/OM w..is $b/.<J million . ln lerP\I t'Kpense <i1'sod..tlf'rl 

with t in::incing projects during construction, net ot :rny 
invri. l mPnl i11rom r e;1med on bond prm·eed\ dm ing 
c::oni. l ruclio n, j., G1pil ..ili1t'rl. I m l hP yea ri. ern led lime 

J CI, 7(1111 .;mil ;1 01 J, c-.ip il..1,li1..ili11 11 o f in l et )> I e..ir llf"d m 1 

unspent bond pro eed tot::i led $8.0 mi ll ion and $9 .2 
million, respectively, resulting in net interest cxpcns 
of $59.9 million nd $5 5.~ million, respectively. 

The following is a summary of interest nxp nsc associat cl w ith Long Term Debt: 

INTEREST EXPENSE 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Fi cal Year Ended June J01 

System Facillt:i Revenue Bonds 
Net Pa~ment on Interest Rate Swa es 
Total S:i,stem Facilities Revenue Bonds 
Capita li zed I.ease Obliga tions 
Notes Payable 
Commerd~I Pa(!er 
Total Int t Expense Before 

Ca pitali za tion of Interes t, Net of Interest 
Earned on Unseent Bond Proceeds 

Total Interest Ex~ense 

In FY 2014, Other Nonoperatlng Revenues, Net of 
S88.9 mill ion ir11:1ea. ~l Sil . / million ove1 I Y 701:1 . l hr 

increase is prim ri ly due to po it ive experience on 
insura.nce r overies to FV 2014. In FY 2014 and FY 

/Ol 1, I edr r..il /\pprnp1 i ~ ioni. int ludt' 1.11 h 

2014 2013 
$ 59,40 1 $ 56,208 

7,176 1.104 
66,577 63,312 

807 867 
385 35 
150 255 

67,919 64d69 

lB,003~ f9,213) 
$ 59,916 $ 55&!56 

subsidy paym n s rom the United tatcs Treasury 
lo l ling $.l).8 millinn 1111 SlO.!> million resrJoP.rtively, fm 

designated Build Ameri a Bonds ou standing. Pell 
Grants wcr flat in FY 2014. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 201lt ~1Jna dit d) 

OPERATING EXPENSES 

Tota l Opuating Expanses inc rt'.t.,t'd by $hi. t mi llicm, 

or 2.5%, in FY 2014 ompar d to :m in re:is · ot $64.G 
mill"on, or 2.4%, In FY 20B. TI1c to11owing eraph 
illm.lralf'_ lht' Umve r. ily'j, ope1 ..i li ng expen-.ej, by 

natural classi icotion for FY 2014: 

OPERATING EXPENSES BY NATURAL 
CLASSIFICATION 

$2.8 BILLION 

Scholarsh ps 

., , .,,,~,,nd 

Wages 
49% 

Dur ing I Y JOM, Salaries, Wages and Benefits 
d l!l:re,ased hy approxirn;:ilely 1.7% as m rnp;:i recl lo ;:i 
3.1% increase in the prior tisco l year. Salaries and 
Wage!> innea~ed by $ 11J.b rni tlinn, m 1 . ~%. d riven hy 

merit increases. Statt Benefits in FY 2014 decreased 
$39.5 million, or 10.2%, over FY 2013 primarily due to 
posilive inveslment perforrnam:e on lhe pen!'lion pl;:in. 

In I Y :70111, lht' U11ive1sily'!> Supplie s, Services, and 

Other OPf!rat lng expensP.s nt SlnJ.8 million in<:re:t ed 

by $67.2 million, or 8.8%, over the prior fiscal year. 
lhe ina·eai.t> in gmwlh frn I Y JOl4 w;ir. clut' lo 
increased volatility in self· insured expenses. 

The- allowing illustrates he University' s operating 
xpens s b function for FY 2010 lhrou,Rh FY 2014 : 

OP£RAT1NG EXPENSES SY FUNCTION 
FY 2010 · FY 20\4 

2010 2011 

••l5trudloll 
• Pt.Ht S..~ 

2011 2013 lOH 

•Resea.rch 

• Ac~mic wort 

• IW..'nl Sc.-ivic lmtitulion.il upjlOrt 

• •r111Dn & Ma '""-or Pia t • Auxll1rics • 11@1 Cn 
• Au arie-Other Scholan 15&relowSll1J1 

I Depreciation 

lOO!' 

~ 

~ 

~ 

~ 

!iCJ!l 

«* 

m 

lO!l 

1°" 

°" 

lhe core mis~ion!'I nf in!>lr ucliun, 1e~e;i r ch, a nd public 
service account tor the largest proportion of Operat ing 
Expcns s at 34.3% for FY 2014. University Health Care 
constitutes the next highest proport ion at 2S.2% ot 
expenses for FY 2014. Excluding University Health 
C;nt>, in!>lructiun, rese;uc:h, ..ind puhlir: se1vic:e an:nunl 

tor 4~ .9% of Oper:iting Expenses tor FY 2014. 
lnslituliun;:il su prKJrl, whid1 1ep1e~enl s the c:ore 
administrative operat ions ot the University, was less 
than ~ c:enl!> of e;ic h dull;:ir ltpenl du1ing thilt ~-ye;u 

period. 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2014 (unaudited) 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

I ht'. Sl.o1leme11I . of .A. h I lows provide~ infor111;ihm1 .1hout the Universitys sources ;ind uses of cash ;ind cash 
cqu1val nts during 11~ fiscal Y ar. Th following summarizt>~ ~our ce!> ,md U!>l-!!oo of r..;1~h ;1111 1 c:;ish eci11iv.1lenh fnr the 
three years ended Jun 30, 2014 and Z013: 

CONDENSED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

(in thousands of dollars) 

Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 
Net Cas h U ed in Operating Activities 
Net Cash Provided from Noncapital inanc;i ng Activities 
Net Cash Used in Capital and 

Related Financing Activities 

Net Cash Used In lnvestins Activities 
Net Decrease in C.ash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and Cash ~ulvalents1 &@ginning of Year 
Cash and Cash ~ulvalents1 End o Year 

Net cash Used In Opt!ratlng Activities retlPct the 
cont inued need tor tuncling trom the state of Missouri, 
as funding received from tuition and fees and re lat d 
i,af P.S .. mcJ St'rVrc:t•s u[ ;iux.i -;u y dlld erlm;,tlioniil ;u:I ivi1 iP.l> 

arc not sutti,cicnt to cover operational needs. In t-Y 
701'l, <:dsh used in UfW,l<Lling activiti~ inr.rt'ased hy 
$1fi.7 million as compared to FY 2.013 due prim rily to 
increased paym nts to employees and suppli rs. 

The University's most signitic nt source of cash, Net 
Cash Provided from Noncapital Financing Activities, 
include\ fumling hum SI.ill' and I eder al 

appropriations, Pell grants and noncapital private gifts. 
Cash frurn lht'..lle l>OlllCelo r11l.1 li11g b7t _f> million .mcl 

$581_0 million in FY 2014 and FY 2.013, respectively, 
directly offset the additional cash needs resulting from 
operations. 

Net cash Used In capital Rel'ated Financing Activities 
inuP.a:o.ed by $1!>'1 .h million in I Y 701'1 due largely lo 

nr.w is<.;u<1nccs of drbt to fund c;ipital protects. Nr.t 
Cash Used in apifal ;ind Related Financing Activities of 
$356.8 million in FY 2013 was. due la gcly to the spend 
dCIWll O( bond prcK:eeds for CaJlilal JHOjf!Cll>. 

Net Cash Used In lrwest"ng Activities reflects a net 
c.;ish 0111nnw uf $1 hJ.9 million in I Y 70111 

compared to a net c;ish outt ow ot $77.3 million in FY 
2013. This is la!'Kely driven by increased purchases of 
investments over the prior year as the University 
invested more workinR ca pi al outsid of cash. 

2014 2013 
$ (366,936) $ (251,188) 

621,579 581,032 

(202,284) (356,843) 
1163,876) p7~29l 
(111,517) (104,328) 
2581452 3621780 

~ 146,915 i 258&!52 

ECONOMIC OUTLOOK 

The University of Missouri is the state's pr mi r public 
1e~ea rch university contributing to the economic 
devt'loprneul and vita lily of the sl<ile lhrough g1m111d­
breaking research, educ;iting more than 75,000 
sludenls, tl!-!live1i11g quality he;illhr,..;ire lo lhe rj li1rm 

ot Missouri, and providing extension services 
throuRhout th state. 

The University has experienced 25% enrollment 
growlh uve1 lhe past 10 ye;;m, ;incl is now edm:.iling 

12,000 more students each year_ Approximately 98% 

of the state's growth in undergraduate enrollment 
:imone public four year institut ions over the last 10 
years has occurred within the University of Missouri 
Sy!.lem. lhii. gmwlh ha' on:uired during the 
challenging economy of the p;ist de ade without any 
grnwlh in ~lale support aml mnde~I ;1nrmal aver.rtgt' 
in reases in tuition. In FY 2014, growth in Operating 
F xpensl-! ex1:eeded lhe growlh in Operating Flevenue, 

largely due to increases in selt insurance daims on 
benefil pliill:!> and dec1ease,; in re!>ea1d1 1ev~m1e. Ille 
University formed a task torce to ;iddress benefit costs 
over the cominR years. 

State appropriations for operations increased by Z.8% 
in I Y 701'1 as lhe llniversily performed wf'll cm slale 
pertorm;ince me;isures and received money to start 
additional programs. For FY 2015, the University 
eKpei-1:-. lo rec:eivt' a :-.111.ill inaea.\t' in sl<llt' 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

June 30, 2014 ~uria~Jdited) 

apprup1 iatior1'> .i~ lit ~l<ilf' 1 t:'le.u.e~ 1w1 fm rri;mc.e 
measure wi hholdinBS. Wlthou slgniti ant increases in 
ge11er ..ii rf'Vt'llUt'!\, I ht! !\l .!It' wi ll c 1111li11ut' 1 o be 

ch Ilene d to in rease tunding tor high r edu ation tor 
FY 201G and beyond. 

Despite the challenges generated by relatively tl:lt 
state funding and limited tuit ion increases, the 
University has been able to maintain its strong 
financial position due to diversified revenue sources, 
system wide cost containment measures and 
historicall:y low borrowing costs. 

The University is aware of its tiduciary responsibility to 
control costs in ord r to provide an affordable 
edur..;tl iun fm Mi. !\our i;m!\. lhe llniver!\ily h.is 
continued to implement shared services and business 
f ll(X:l'.!\Y. redei.ign lo ;id1ieve 0:>!\1 Mving,'> <11111 

efficienc·es and to ·dentity resources tor strategic 
investment. This is an on-goinR process critical to 
fulure 1w.rlurm;i11 .e. 

The University continues to maintain its strong 
rese;11d1 b;i!>e. lleseaH.h expenclilures f.ii:ed signifi :;ml 
downward pressure in FY Z014 as the funding provided 
hy lhe Ame1ic .. m lle<:ovt'1y ;irul 1teinve!\lrnt~r 1I l\r:I 
began to wane and the imp cts of sequestrat ion were 
felt. To offset these decreases, the University is 
looking tor other opportunities to st imul. te re e:urh 
and economic development. This includes increased 
partnerships with private industry. 

For FY 2014, University Health Care continues focus on 
;idv;incing lhe he;;ill h of ;:ill penplt:, especi;i lly 

Mis~ourians. For the lltture, University Health C:ire 
c.ontinu s to pursue Rrowth and its a·ademic. mission. 
During FY 2014, University He:ilth formed the Health 
Network of Mis:;ouri with four other hospitals in 
1.t>111r;.il M i'iMnui in .. m effm l Lo improvt' p<ilit'nl 
outcom s and access to core, ~hare best practices. 
ne<1lP. eHil"ie111:1e~ ;iml lower he.i ll hc:;.iw o~l - 111 
communities served by the ne work. University Health 
C..;tre h<1l> ;ilsn begun cnnslm l ion m1 a new 
replacement outpatient facility in Columbia, with 
expec: led rnmplelion in I Y 701~. 

The University continues to monitor the changing 
environment surrounding State and Federal health 
care programs and the corresponding legislation, 
induding Ille P;itient Prnleclinn ;ind l\ffcmfahle C..;t rt' 
Act and the Health Care and Education Reconciliation 
l\c1, rnl let:l ively 1efened lu ;i!\. 'lk!.illh C-11 e lteforrn.' 
This legislat ion w ill significantly impact the future of 
health arc. University Health care management 
continues to review the ettect that the I eislation wi ll 
have on the organization, but has not determined the 
full fi11.1111:i;:i l i,t;:iternenl erfei:I of 1 his new I le.illh C~re 
Reform legislation. 

Sh ong !\I udenl dernaml, highly succt''>sful c:;:ipil;i l 
campaigns, robust research fund ing, economic 
development programs and a financially stable and 
growing healthcare system are all tactors in the 
positive outlook for th University of Missouri. 
l lowever , 1111~ sl:.ile eamrnny, limited i111:1e;i ·es in 
tuition, and tlat state support will continue to pose 
buclgetary ch;:illengei. fnr lhe llniveri.ily in lhe fu l ure. 



The Board of Curators 
University of l\ilissouri System: 

ATTACHMENT 1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

KPMG.LLP 
Suite900 
10 SouU1 B!oatfw.iy 
ST t.auic;. MO 6310:1-1761 

Report on the I~ioandal Statements 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the lmsiness-typc nc::Livilics, the dist.,·crdy presented 
component lUUt, and the aggregate remaining iilmd infomrntion nf !he University oflvfissuuri Syslcm, a compnncnl 
1111il of tin: State of Y\,1fissmui, a.i; of and for lite year ended Jm1c 30. 2014, amt Ilic related notes lo IJ1c financial 
statements, which collectively cmnprisc &he University ofl'\·fissuuri System's ha.'iit: financial slalcmcntx as lish:cl in 
the table of contents. 

Ma11age111e11t's Respo11sibililJ' for Ille Fimmeial Stalt111e11ts 

Management is responsible fur the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance \\ith 
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and mainrenance of internal 
control relevant to the preparation and foir presentation of financial statements that are free from material 
ntisstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor.'>' Re.'ipo11sibilily 

Om· responsibility is In express 1m 01>iniun on these financial statements based on our audit We conducted our audit 
in accordance with .auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standard<;; 
HJ>plicahlc In financial audits cunlaiucd in Guvemmc11t Auditing Slamlards, issued by the Cnmplroller Ul."llcral of[fac 
Unilcd Slates. Those slamlnrds fC(1uirc rhal we 1>ln11 and pcrfonu the audit lo nhlaiu reasonable asstlfllncc abmtl 
whether the financial statements arc free from material misstalemeul. 

An audit involves perfomlin.g procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the flmmcial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of tile fmancial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
tile auditor considers intemal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of fue financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropliate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opituon on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. 
An audit also includes evaluating lhc ap1uo1nialeness of accom1ting policies used and the reasonableness of 
sigJ1ilic1ml accmmling cslimatcs made by nLH1mgcmcnt, as well as evaluating tbe overall presentation of the financial 
slalcmcnL-;. 

We believe that the audit evidence \Ve have obtained is sufficient aud appropriate tu provide a basis for mrr audit 
opinions. 

Opi11iom; 

In ow· opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in 1ill material rc~11ecls, the rcspccSivc 
financial position of the business-type activities. tltc discretely prescntcd cmnpnucut m1it, aml tlie 11ggregale 
re1iiaining fttnd infonuation of the University of J\'1issmui System as of Jnne 30, 2014. aud the rcspcciive changes in 
financial position, and where applicable, ca.sh flm,·s thereof for the year then ended in acccmlnucc with U.S. 
gencrnlly 11cc1..1>led accmmling 1>rinciplcs. 

2ll111 Financ:ial lle1mrt 

KPM3 ll.P b. • Dv:bw.lt9 1(1111.DJ IUbiq P'fbt-~, 
UFll U.S. nMf!fbvr fr=n vr l<PllG ltt:Dln2!inui'l ~~liwv 
["'RP~l~l1,.11s.rin..-Lil'J. 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT 

Enrplm.\·il; of M11ltE'I' 

F..ITcclivc July I, 20!3 the University of Missouri System implemented Government Accounting Standards Board 
(GASH) No. 65, Items Prmio11sly Re.p{}rJed as Assets and Liabilities. GASB No. 67. Financial Reponiug for 
Pe11sio11 Pla11s, and GASH No. 68, Accotmiing and Fi111111cial Re.p(}r/i11gf"r Pensions. Our opinion is not mmEHied 
with respect to this matter. 

Otl1er Jlfallers 

Required S11pplementarJ' lliformation 

U.S. g1..'l11.."111lly acc1..110cd accmmting principles require that the infimnaliun in lhc Mrumgement's Discu.-.sion and 
Analysis on pages 13 lhrough 27, and !he scl11..-dulc of changes in the net 111..'11sion liability, the scltednle of 
ccmtrilmliom;, 1111: sd1eclni.lc of ammal mcmcy-wcightcd rate of retm11 mt JlL.'11sio11 plan inveslmenl<>, tl!e notes lo 
rc,1uin:cl sn11pleme11tary iufommtion, !he OPEB 11hm schedule uf fnncling 1m>gress, ancl the OPEB plan sd1eclule uf 
employer co11tributio11s mt plDgcs 73 tBmmgh 77 be presented !<> supplement the basic lfi11a11dal slalcmenRs. Such 
i11fm11mlio11, although not a part of the bai.;c !i11am:i11l statements, is r1.."<111ired by die Govcmment111l Accm111ti11g 
Standards Board who considers it to be an essential pan of financial reporting for placing rhe basic finilllcial 
statements io an appropriate operational, economic, or histo1ical context. We have applied certain limited procedw:es 
to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of .America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of prepruring the information and 
comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to o~ inquilfies, the basic financial 
statements, and other laio-.viedge we obtruned during our audit of the basic fmancial statelllents. We do not express 
an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us with 
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other llifommlion 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of fomling opiniom; mt lite li111111cial statements ihai collectively comprise 
the University of l\ll!issouri System's basic :finruicial stalemenls. The inlrmluetmy sectiun amt the srarislkal seclion 
presented on pages 2 through 27 ood 72 through 93, rcsJlectivcly, arc presented for llll!JK>ses of adclitimial imalysis 
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such i11ftm11atim1 h11s nol been suhj1..-ctcct no tlae amliting 
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial slalc1111.."11ls, 11nd 11cconlingly, we do not e"'-prcss ru1 011inim1 or 
provide any assw:ooce on them. 

Othe1· Reporting Reqoo·ed by GO"l!emment Auditing Standards 

Tn acccmlam:c with Gove.mmenl A11t!i1ing Slnndmv/.,·, we have also issued our report dated October 10. 2014 on our 
consideration of the Univ1.."fSity ufMissomi Syslem 's intemal control over financial reP-Orting and on our tests of its 
compliance with c1..'11ain provisions of laws, n:gulllltions, contracts, and grant agreements and other nmtte1-s. Tue 
JHUJmse of dml n.1mrt i.;; cu dcsL"lribc tlte scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and 
compliance and the resul!ts of that testing, and not to (lmvidc 1111 opinion un intcmal coulm! over finaucial n.1mrti11g 
or on compliance. That report is an integral part of 1m audit 11crfon11ed in accordance with Gm•er111111111l Auditing 
Standards in considering the University of Missouri System's internal cuntml over fmimci11l rcpm1ing aml 
compliance. 

SL Louis. Missomi 
October I 0, 2014 

2014 Financial Report 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
As of June 30,2014 (in thousands} 

University 
2014 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 90,750 

Restricted Cash and Cash Equfvalents 56,185 
Short-Term Investments. 217,756 

Restricted Short-Term Investments 36,176 

Investment of Cash Col later a I 113,477 
Accounts Receivable, Net 292,854 
Pledges Receivable, Net 15,930 
investment Sett! ements Receivable 22:4,423 
Notes Receivable, Net 8,490 
IDue (To) ~rom Component Unit (8,107) 
Enventories 35,354 

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets 26.884 
Total CurrentAssets 1,110,174 

Nom:urrent Assets 
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Pledges Receivable, Net 40,00'11 

Notes Receivable, Net 79,961 
Other Assets 2,21j3 

Restricted Other Assets 
Long-Term Investments 1,526,603 
Restricted Long-Term Investments 1,300,481 
capital Assets, Net 3,123.172 

Total Noncurrent Assets 6,072.464 
Deferred Outflow of Resources 52/U7 

Total Assets and Deferred 
Outflow of Resources $ 7,235.055 

Liabilities 
Current Liabilities 

Accounts Payable $ 137,956 
Accrued! Liabilities ll59,209 
Unearned Revenue 89,318 
Funds Held for Others 78,787 

lnvestmentSettlements Payable 191,449 
Collateral Held for Securities Lending 113,477 
Commercial Paper and Current Portion of 

Long-Term Debt 92,433 
long-Term Debt Subject to Rema rketi ng 

Agreements 99.41.15 

Total Current Liabilities 962,074 

Discretely Presented 

Compcment Unit 
2.014 

$ 7,2ll5 

17,289 

8,107 
3,602 
2,781 

39,024 

4,347 

5,138 

3,368 
72,254 

59,656 
144,763 

$ 183,787 

$ 5,408 
14,087 

1,795 

21,290 
(conlinuacl) 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 
As af June 30, 2014 (in thousands) 

Liabilities, Continued 
Nonc:urrent Llabllitles 

Unearned Revenue 
Long-Term Debt 
Derivative Instrument UabllltV 
Other Postemployment Benefits Liabillty 
Net Pension Liability 
Other Noncurrent Liabilities 

Total Noncurrent Liabilltles 

Deferred Inflow of Resources 

Total Liabilities and Deferred 
Inflow of Resources 

Net Position 
Net Investment in Capital Assets 

Restricted 
Nonexpendable­

Endowment 
Expendable -

Scholarship, Research, Instruction and Other 
Loans 
Capital Projects 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflow of 
Resources and Net Position 

Sec notes to the financial statements 

University 
2014 

9,859 
1,411,225 

39,571 
177,040 
253,80'1 

60,652 
1,952,151 

185,860 

3,100,0SS 

1,626,371 

998,947 

349,560 
81,805 
46,363 

1,031,9211 
tJ,134,970 

$ 7,235,0SS 

Oistretely Presented 
Component Unit 

2014 

27,SSS 

4,728 
32,313 

S3,G03 

30,400 

3,368 

96,416 
130,184 

$ 183,787 

-··--~----------,--~---~-----------------------------------
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 20lll (in thousands) 

Operating Revenues 
Tuition and Fees (Net of Provision for Doubtful 

Accounts of$.7,908 In 2014 and 
$7,324 in 2013) 

Less Scholarship Allowances 
Net Tuition and Fees 

Federal Grants and Contracts 
State and Local Grants and Contracts 
Private Grants and Contracts 
Sales and Services of Educational Activities 
At1xiliary Enterprises -

Patient Mgdical Services, Net 
Housing and Dining Services (Net of 

Scholarship All Iowa nee of $1,317 in 2014 
and $670 in 2013) 

Bookstores 

Other Au><iliary Enterprises (Net of 
Scholarship Allowance of $11,166 in 
2014 and $8,337 in 2013) 

Other Operating Revenues 
Total Operating Revenues 

Operating Expenses 

Salaries andl Wages 
Benefits 
Supplies, Services and Other Operating Expenses 
Scholarships and Fellowships 
Depreciation 

Total Operating Expenses 
Operating Income (Loss) before State 

Appropriations 
State Appropriations 

Operating Income (Loss) after State Appropriations, 

before Nonoperatfng Revenues (Expenses) 
Nonoperatlng Revenues (Expenses) 

Federal Appropriations 

Federal rell Grants 
Investment andl Endowment Income, 

Net of Fees 
Private Gifts 
Interest Expense 

Other Nonoper;iting Revenues (Expenses) 

Net Nonoperating Revenues (~penses) 

$ 

University 

2014 

829,920 
202,647 
627,273 
160,582 

49,538 
76,867 
24,137 

873,638 

106,818 

54/M'll 

247,922 
64,037 

2,285,256 

1,363,449 
346,257 

833,799 
66,919 

183,250 
2,793,674 

(508,418) 

412,650 

(95,768) 

27,675 
59,776 

281,837 
66,780 

(59,916) 
1.477 

3.77,629 

Discretely Presented 

Component Unit 
2014 

$ 

16'1,211 

164,211 

69,401 
17,092 

64,799 

9,817 
161,109 

3,102 

3,102 

S20 

(1,111) 
510 
(81) 

(continued) 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES1 AND CHANGES IN' NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 20lli {in thousands) 

Income before Capital Contributions, and Additions 

lo Permanent Endowments 
Capital Gifts and Grants 

Private Gifts for Endowment Purposes 
Increase In Net Position 

Net Position, Beginning of Year 
Cumulative Effect of Change in 

AccountinR Principle 

Net Position, Beginning of Vear, Adjusted 
Net Position, End of Year 

5P.e 1mlP.s tu tl1e firmm:irzl slalemP.11/s 

University 
2014 

281,861 
14,727 

.47,390 

343,978 

4,300,939 

(509,947) 
3,790,992 

$ 4,134,970 

Discretely Presented 
Component Unit 

2014 

3,021 

3,021 

127,163 

127,163 
s 130,184 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 20llt (in thousands) 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities 
Tuition and Fees 
Federal, State and Private Grants and Contracts 
Sales and Services of Educational Activities and Other Auxiliaries 
Patient Care Revenues 
Student Housing Fees 
Bookstore Collections 
Payments to Suppliers 
Payments to Employees 
Payments for Benefits 
Payments far Scholarships and Fellowships 
Student loans Issued 
Student Loans Collec1tedl 
Student Loan Interest andl IFees 
Other Receipts, Net 

Net Cash Used i1111 Ope ratting Activities 
Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities 

State Appropri atlons 
Federal Appropriations and Pell Grants 
Private Gifts 
Endowment and Similar Funds Gifts 
Direct Lending Receipts 
Direct Lending Disbursements 
PLUS loan Receipts 
PLUS Loan Disbursements 
Other.Receipts, Net 
Deposits (Receipts) of Affiliates 

Net Cash Provided! by Nonmpit:a! Fiinandng Activities 
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Finallllcing Activities 

Capital Gifts and! Grants 
Proceeds from Sales of Capital Assets 
Purchase gf Capita I Assets 
Proceeds from lssmmceofCapital Debt. Net 
Principal Payments on Capital IDebt 

Payments on Capital lease 
Payments on Debt Oefeasaince 

Payments of Bond Issuance Costs 
Interest Payments on Capital Debt 
Payments to Leveraged Loan 

Net Cash Used in capital a111dl Related financing ActMties 

2.014 

$ 631,335 
291,060 
256,724 
869;862 
106,747 

50,038 
(833,665) 

(1,361,741) 

(374,136) 
(66,919) 

(12,077) 
8,8641 
5,301 

61.671 
(366,936} 

412,650 
86,438 
69,559 
47,390 

332,603 
(332,603) 

83,357 
(83,357) 

(2,076) 
7,618 

621,579 

13,623 
9,795 

(317,168) 
546,038 
(28,349) 

(754) 
(348,2641) 

(1,315) 
(G1,S10) 

(14,380) 
(202,284} 

(rontinUOO) 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 (In thousands) 

Cash Flows from lnvel>'ting Activities 
Interest and Dividends on Investments, Net 
Purchase of Investments, Net of Sales and Maturities 
Other Investing Activities 

Net Cash Provlcled by (Used In! lnvestrng Activities 
Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents 
Cash and cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Emf of Year 

Rernndliatlcll'll of Operating Loss to Net Cash Used In Operating Activities 
Operating Loss 
Adjustments to· Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Depreciation Expense 
Changes in Assets and Liabilities: 

Accounts Receivable, Net 
Inventory, Prepaid! Expenses and Other Assetc; 

Notes Receivable 
Accounts Payable 
Accrued Liabilities 
Un ea med Revenue 
Pension Uability 

Net Cash Used in Operating Activities 

Supplemental 11Jistfcsu1re o.f Noncash Activities 
Net Increase (Decrease) In Fair Value of Investments 
Noncash Gifts 

Sec notes to t/1c financial statements 

2014 

47,660 
(211,817) 

281 
(163,876) 

(111,517} 
258,452 

$ 146,9:l5 

$ (508,418) 

183,250 

(36,759) 
2,612 

919 
6,498 

33,818 
13,855 

(62,711) 
$ (366,936) 

$ 184,538 
24,635 



ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT OF Pl.AN NET POSITION 

Assets 
Cash and Cash Eciuivalents 
Investment of cash Col lateral 
Investment Settlements Receiva.ble 
Investments: 

Debt Securi tie.'> 
Equity Securities 
Commingled Funds . 

As of June 30, 2014 (rn thousands) 

Non ma rketa bl e Alternative Investments 
Total Assets 

Liabilities 
Accounts Payable and Accrued Liabilities 
Collateral Held for Securities Lending 
Investment Settlements Payable 

Total liabilities 
Net Position Held in Trust for Retirement and OPEB 

UNIVERSITY Of MISSOURI SYSTEM 
STATEMENT Of CHANGES IN PLAN NET POSITION 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 (in thousands) 

Net Revenues and other Additions 

Investment Income: 
f nterest & Divl dend Income 
Net Appreciation in Fair Value of Investments 

Less investment expense 
Net Investment Income 

.Contributions: 
University 
Members 

Total Contributions 
Total Net Revenues and Other Addlitnans 

Expenses and Other Deductions 
Administrative Expenses 
Payments to Retirees and Beneficiaries 

Total Expenses and Other Deductions 
Increase in Net Position Held in Trust far Retirement and OPEB 

Net Position Held in Trust for Retirement andl OPEB. Beginning of Year 
Net Position Held in Trust for Retirement andl OPEB. End of Year 

Sec notes to tl>e fi11011cial statements 

$ 

2014 

92,512 

263i048 
44,920 

525,129 
707,63i 

1,839,054. 
297.450 

3 769 745 

279 

263,048 
122,092 
385,419 

$3,384,326 

2014 

$ 61,364 

410,958 
(11,091) 
461,231 

138,782 
28618 

167,400 

628 631 

3,043 
209,102 
212,145 
416.486 

2,967,840 

$3,384,326 
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ATTACHMENT 1 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 2014 

1. ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY OF 
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 

Organizalion - The University of Missouri System {the 
"llniversily"), a 1-ederal l;.inti grant inslilulion, <:omfm:ls 
education, research, public service, :md rek1ted 
activities, which includes University Health Care and 
related facilities, principally at its four campuses in 
c:nlumhia, l<ansas City. null a and St. l.ouis. I he 
University also administers a statewide cooperative 
extension service with centers located in each county 
in the State of Missouri (the "State"). The University is 
a c:umpunenl unit or the Sl;lle and is gnvemed hy a 

nine-member Board of Curators appointedl by the 
Slate's Cinvemm _ 

The income generated by the University, as an 
inslmmenlalily unit nf lhe Slale, is generally exduded 
from federal income taxes under Section 115 of the 
Internal Revenue Code. However, the University 
remains subjec:t lo income l<ixes on any net im:mne 
that is derived trom a trade or business, regularly 
carried on and not in furtherance of the purpose for 
which ii is exempt. Nu im:nme lax provision has been 
recorded as the net income, it any, from unrelated 
trade or business income, is not material to the 
rinanc:ial stalemenls. 

Reporting Entity - As defined by generally accepted 
oic:c:mmling prim:iples established by the Gnvemmenlal 
Accounting Standards Board ("GASB"}, the financial 
reporting entity consists of the primary government 
aml ils r.mnpunenl units. C:mnpunent units <ire legally 
separate organizations for which the primary 
government is financially accountable or the nature 
and significance ur their rclaliunships with the prirmuy 
governrn!-!nl are such that exdusinn wuulcll c:;mse the 

primary govcmmenfs financial statements to be 
misleading m im:umplele. 

l he University nf Missnuri-Cnlumllia Medical J\lliam:e 
{the "Medical Alliance") is considered a component 
unit of the University according to the criteria in GASB 
Statement No. 61, Ille Pi11ur1ciu/ lleµvrliny Enlily: 
Omnibus (an amendment of GASB Statements No. 14 
and No. 34}, and is discretely presented in the 
Universily's finam:ial slalements. The Medical 
Alliance, a not-tor-profit corporation, provides an 
integrated health care delivery system for mid-

Mi~smni by esl;.ihlishi11g ;imli<ilinns with varinus 
medical facilities. The purpose of the Medical Alliance 
is lo develop a network of health <:are prnviclers lu 
5.upporl the missions ot University Health Care. The 
Capital Region Medical Center {"CRMC") in Jefferson 
C:ily, Missouri, nper;iles ;i,s an <iffili;ite nf the Medic:al 
Alliance and provides inpatient, outpatient, and 
emergency care services to the surrounding 
community. CRMC, a not-tor-profit oreanization that 
follows generally accepted accounting principles under 
the l'inam:ial Acc:mmling Standards no;.m! ("B:J\SH"}, is a 

discretely presented component unit of the Medical 
J\lliarn:e. r he University appnints the llnard uf 
Directors of the Medical Alliance and can impose iits 
will on the ori:ianization. Financial statements for the 
Medic:al J\lliam:e are rmt available. 

The Missouri Renewable Energy corporation (MREC) is 
considered a component unit ot the University, tor 
financial reporting pUfJ)OSes, according to the criteria 
in GA.'ill Statement No. 61, Ille l'inancial ilP-pmling 
Entity: Omnibus (an amendment of GASB Statements 
No. 14 and No. 34), and is included in the University's 
rinam:ial slalernenls using lhe blended meHmd. Mm:c: 
is ;:i tor-profit corporation, ::ind the University holds the 
majority equity interest MREC provides green energy 
fac:ililies exdusively In lhe University. II.I lune :m. 
2014, the University was the majority owner ot MREC. 
Financial statements for MREC arc available at the 
University of Missouri System C:on!mller's Offic:e. 
Condensed combining information regardine MREC is 
provided in Note 14. 

The University operates the University of Missouri 
Hetirernenl. Disoihility, aml Deaih lleneril Phm (lhe 
"Retirement Plan") and the University ot Missouri 
other Postemploymcnt Benefits Plan (the "OPEB £tlan," 
whic:h cull!-!1:1ively with lhe llelirement Plan represent 
the "Pension Trust Funds"), which are single employer, 
defined benefit plans. The assets of the Retirement 
Plan aml OPEi! Pl;in are held in the iteliremenl hust 
and OPEil lmsl, resp!-!t:lively. 

Financial Statement Presentation ~ University follows 
all applic:ahle GJ\SB pr1mmmc:ernenls. Pmsuanl tu 
GASB Statement No. 35, Basic Financial Statement-and 
Managr:mcnt's Discussion and Analysis-for Public 
<:c11/eges uml llniversilies, the University's <lll:livlllies are 
considered to be a single business-type activity and 
an:mdingly. are repm led in a single column in the 
financial statements. Business-type activities are those 
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Lhal are finam::eci in whole m p;u l by fllnds received hy 
external parties for r:oods or services. 

Basis of Accounting - The University's fin;:mcial 
statements h;ive been prepared using the economic 
resource measurement focus and the accrual basis of 
accounting. Under the accrual basis, revenues are 
recognized when earned and cx1Jenscs arc recorded 
when an obligation has been incurred, regardless ot 
the timing of cash flows. 

On the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes 
in Net Position, the University defines operating 
;u:tivitie.s .as Umse generally resulting frurn an exd1ange 
transaction. Nearly all of the University's expenses arc 
frmn exchange tr;insadinns, whic:h invulve the 
exchange ot equivalent values such as pnyments tor 
gunds m servic:es. Nnn-uperaling revemres m 
expenses aire those in which the University receives or 
gives value without directly giving or receiving equal 
value, such as State and federal appropriations, 
Federal Pell grants, private eitts, and investment 
income. 

The financial statements for the Pension Trust Funds 
have been prep;m~d using !he ac:uual basis of 
accounting. Benefits and refunds are recognized when 
due and payable. Investments arc reported at fair 
value. Combining financial statements tor these flmds 
are presented in Note 16. 

<:Bish, Cash Equivalents and Investments - Cash and 
cash equivalents consist of the University's bnnk 
depnsiEs, repurc:hase agreernenls, rmmey markel 
funds, and other investments with original maturities 
of three months or less. Investment assets arc carried 
al fair va!ue based primarily on markel qunlalinns. 
Purchases and sales of investments are accounted for 
on the trade date basis. Investment settlements 
rec:eivahle and invr_c;trnenl selllemenls payable 
represent investment transactions occurring on or 
betore June 30, which settle after that date. 
Investment income is recorded on the accrual basis. 
Nel mueali1;ed gains (lnsses) are i11d11ded in 
investment and endowment income in the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net rosition. 

Nonmarketable antemative investments and certain 
cmnmingled funds are rei:mdeit based cm valuations 
provided by the general pnrtners ot the respective 
partnerships. The llJnivcrsity believes that the carrying 

value ot these investments is a reasonable estimate ot 
fair value. Because alternative investments arc not 
readily mnrket;:ib!e, the estim;:ited value is subject to 
uncertainty and therefore may differ materially from 
the value that would h;:ive been ust:?d had a ceady 
mnrket tor investments existed. 

Derivative instruments such as torward toreir:n 
c:unem:y c:onlrac:ls are rec:mded al fair value. The 
University enters into forward foreign currency 
c:onlrads to reduc:e the rureign exd1,;mge rate 
exposure of its international investments. These 
contracts arc marked to market, with the changes in 
market value being 1e1mrled in investment ,;md 
endowment income on the Statement of Revenues, 
Expenses, ;ind Changes in Ne! Pnsil ion. 

Pledges Receivable -· The University receives 
unconditional promises to eive through private 
donations (pledges} from coq)orations, alumni and 
various nlher suppmlers nr lhe University. Hevenue is 
recognized when a pledge is received and all eligibility 
requirements, including lime requirements, are mel. 
These pledces have been recorded as pledces 
receivable on the Statement of Net Position and as 
private or r..1pilal gifl revenues cm lhe Slalemenl of 
Revenues, Expenses, nnd Chances in Net Position, at 
the present value of the estimated future cash flows. 
/\n allnwance or $5/116,()[ICJ as uf June :m, :m111 h<!s 
been made for uncollcctiblc pledges based upon 
management's expec:&;llicms regarding lhe c:nlle<:ticm nf 
the pledees and the University's historicnl collection 
experiem:e. 

Inventories ·- These assets arc stated at the lower of 
c:nsl m m;ukel. Cosl is determined cm an average cost 

basis except for University Health carc's inventories, 
fm whic:h msl is determined using lhe firsl-in, firsl-cml 
method. 

Caprtal Assets - It purchased, these assets are carried 
;ii cost m, ir dunaled, al fair value a! lhe dale of gift. 
Depreciation expense is computed usinr: the straieht. 
line method over the assets' estimated useful lives -· 
generally len In furly years fm buildings and 
improvements, eight to twenty-five years for 
inrraslrm:lure, lhree in fifleen years rm equi11menl 
and twenty years tor library mnterinls. Net interest 
expense im:mred during lhe c:onslrm:lim1 nf deht­
tinanced facilities is included when capitalizinr: 
resulting assets. The University capitalizes works of 
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art, as these collections gcncrall\1 consist of historical 
ar Lifac:ts aml arlwork.'i, Lhey <UF. t:mi.'iitlerecl 
inexhaustible and not subject to depreciation. The 
University dt1es not 1:apil;dize rnllF.dions of hisLmii:al 
lre;~smt>..s held for public exhihilim1, educatiun, 
research, :md public service. Tl1ese collections are not 
disposed of fur financial gain and1 accordingly, arc not 
capilali~ed for linant:i;;il slalemenl fnHpnsf:'_'i. l'rm:eeds 
from I he s<1le, exc:h<1nge, ur ol her dispnS<II nf sm:h 
items must be used to acquire additional items tor the 
same collection. Land is considered inexhaustible and 
is nol suhjF.cl to deprec:ialinn. 

Unearned Revenue - Unearned revenues are 
recognized for amounts received prior to the end of 
the fiscal year but related to the subsequent period, 
including certain tuition, fees, and auxiliaiy revenues. 
Unearned revenues ;ilsn indude granl <111d (:nnir;u:I 
amounts that have been received but not yet earned. 

Pensions - Pension rcl<Jlcd items, im:luding: ncl 
pension liability, deterred outflow of resources, 
deferred inflow of resources, net pension expense, 
fic!m:i;uy nel <1ssels, ad<lilinns lo and dedm:lions fmm 
fiduciary net assets have been determined on the 
same basis as they arc reported by the University of 
Missouri. Fm lhis 1nu1msF., benefit p<1yme11Ls 
(includinB refunds ot employee contributions) are 
rerngniJ.F.d when due ;;ind payable in accordance with 
the benefit terms. Investments arc reported at fair 
value. 

Net Position - I he University's net posilinn is dassified 
as follows: 

Ne/ lnveslrmmt in 01pilCJJ Jlssels represenls c:apital 

assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
outstanding principal debt balances related to the 
aniuisitiun, c:cmslrm:ticm m impmvernenl nf lhnse 
assets. 

Restricted Nonexpendable net position is subject to 
exlernally imposed stipulalions that the principal be 
maintained in perpetuity, such as the University's 
permanent endowment funds. The University's policy 
permits any realized and unrealized appreciation to 
remain wilh these endnwrnF.nls <1fter lhe spending 
distribution discussed in Note 3. 

Ut~sl1ic:lerl Fxpr:micJl1/e 11el posilinn is su!Jject lu 

e)(tcmally imposed stipulations on the University's use 
uf I he ft!smm:e..'>. 

Unrestricted net position is not subject to externally 
imposed stipulations, hul may he desig11<1led fur 
specific purposes by the University's management or 
the Board of Curators. Unrestricted net position is 
derived from tuition and fees, sales and services, 
unreslricted gifts, inveslmF.nl im:mnF., ;;ind olher sm:h 
sources, and are used tor academics and the general 
operation of the University. When both restricted and 
unresiric.:led resmm:es are available fur expemlilme, 
the University's policy is to tirst apply restricted 
resuurces, and lhen lhe unrestric:led resources. 

Tuition andl Fees, Net of Scholarship Allowances -
Sh1denl luitiun and fees, hnusing, dining, ;1ml other 
simirar auxiliary revenues are reporte~ net of any 
related scholarships and fellowships applied to student 
ac:c:uunls. llmvever, sc:hnlarshi1•s and fellnwships p<1id 
directly to students are separately reported as 
sdm!arship and fellowship expenses. 

Patient Medical Services, Net - Patient medical 
services arc primarily provided through University of 
Missouri lluspil<1ls <Ind Clini1:'i, Ulis Fischel Cmc:er 
Research Center, Women's and Children's Hospital, 
Missouri Rehabilitation Center and University 
Physicians. The University has agreements with third. 
party payors that provide for payments at amounts 
differenl frmn eslablished rales. Payment 
arrangements include prospectively determined rates 
per discharge, reimbursed costs, discount charges, and 
per diem payrnenls. Nel p;;itienl service revenue is 
reported at the estimated net realizable amounts from 
patienls, thi1d-1larty p;iyms, amt nlhers fm servic:es 
rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments 
under reimbursement agreements with third-party 
payms. Hehoar:tive adjuslrnenls ;ire ac:crued cm an 
estimated basis in the period the related services are 
rendered andl adjusted in future periods as estimates 
arc refined and final settlements arc determined. Net 
paliF.nl servic:e revF.nue is also shown nel of esli111<1led 
uncollectible accounts. 

J\mmmls receivable under Medic:are and 
Tricare/Champus reimbursement agreements are 
suhjed to examination and certain retroactive 
adjuslmenls by the related pmgr<1111s. lhese 
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adj11slmei1ls increased nel w1tienl servil:es n!vtmues 
by $G2.1,000 tor the year ended June 30, 2014, 

The Medicaid pro3ram reimburses inp::itient services 
on a prospective established per diem rate. The 
Medicaid program reimburses outpatient services 
under a cumhinalim1 of prnspective ;mtl fee sd1ed11le 
amounts. For the year ended June 30, 2014 the 
University Health Care's percentage ot gross patient 
accounts rcccivillble classified by major payor is as 
fnlluws: 

Table 1.1 ·Percentage of Gross Patient 

Accounts ReceivabEe (by Major Payor) 

Medicare 
Commercial Insurance 
Medicaid 
Self Pay & Other 
Managed Care Agreements 

2014 
28% 
13% 
19% 
18% 
22% 

100% 

Patient services revenue indudes the State of Missouri 
1:ederal Heimtmrsemenl Allowance Program (HlA 
Program) for uncompensated care. University Health 
Care rec:ugni1.es rlU\ Program revenue in lhe perind 
earned. 

lhe Sl;ilerneni of ltevenues, Expenses and Changes in 
Net Position reflect the gross to net patient medical 
services revenue as follows; 

Table 1.2 - Giross to Net Patient Medical 

Services Revenue (in thousands) 

Patient Medical Services 
Revenue, Gross 

Deductions for Contractuals 
Deductions for Baid Debt 
Patient Medfcal Servroos 

Revenue, Net 

$ 

$ 

2014 

2,050,850 
(1,091,815) 

(85,397) 

873,638 

Uncompensated! care - lhe University pmvides some 
services to patients without regard to their ability to 
pay for those services. For some of its patient services, 
the lJniversily receives nu pay1mml or p;iymenl thal is 
less than the full cost of providing the services. 

TI1e es.timated cos.ts of providing these services are :is 
follows; 

Table 1.3 - Uncompensated Care 

Revenue (in rhousands) 

Cost of Charity Care $ 
Unrei mbursed cost under state andl 

local government assistance 
programs, net of Medicaid 
disproportionate share funding, 
less Medicaid provider taxes 

Cost of uncollectible accounts 

Total Uncompensated Care S 

2014 

23,082 

3,820 

36,075 

62.,977 

New Accounting P'ronounc:smsnts - r:ffe<:live for fisl:rll 
year 2014, the University Adopted GASB Statement 
Nn. 6S, llems Prf!llicmsfy llepmfe{/ IJS A.~.<;e/s rmd 

Liabilities, which intends to improve tinancial reporting 
by clarifying the appropriate U1se of the financial 
statement elements deterred outtrows ot resources 
and deferred inflows of resources to ensure 
cn11sisle111:y in fin;im:i<tl 1e11mls. In adopting lhis 
st:mdard, the University recognized the effect ot a 
change in accounting principle, which decreased net 
position by $7.6 millinn for prim perimls' c:apit;ili1,e1l 
bond issue costs which were previously reported as 
"Deferred Charges and other Assets" on the Statement 
ot Net Position. Future bond issue costs will be 
included in interest expense when incurred. The 
University also changed the d;issificalinn of Lhe 
difference behveen the carrying value of deteased 
dehl and the nffselling new cieht lo a deferred rnrlflnw 
ot resources from long-term debt. The Statement also 
limited the use of the term deferred to deferred 
outflow resrnm:e.s and clefe11ed inOuw 1esnurces. In 

comply with this naming convention, the University 
changecl "llefened Hevenue" ln "Une;:irned Hevenue" 
in the current liabilities section ot the Statement of Net 
Position and "Deferred Charges and Other Assets" to 
"other Assets" in the non-current asset section of the 
Sl<ilermml of Net Pnsilim1. 

Effective for fiscal year 2014, the University adopted 
CiA_"il.l St;:ilemenl Nu. 67, r:immc:iuf n~11cJrlir19 fm 
Pension Plans ·· on amendment of GASB Statement No. 
25, whic:h intends to improve fin:am:ial repmling by 
state and local governmental pension plans. Effective 
for fiscal year 2014, the University adopted GASB 
Statement No. GS, Accounting ona' Financial Reporting 
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{or Pensions -·an amendment to GASB Statement No. 
)7, which enhances ;u:c:mmling and financial repmling 
by state and local governments for pensions :md 
imprnves infmm;ilian pmvicled by slate and local 
goverrm1e11tal employer!> about fin;im:ial suppm1 fm 
pensions that is provided by other entities. In acloptinB 
these standards, the University recognized the effect 
of a ch;inge in ac:c:mmling prim:iple in the ammmt of 
$502.3 million for the net pension liability at the 
beginning of fnsG1l ye<i1 20111, with no imJ>;u:l In 

Deferred Inflow of Resources or Deferred Outflow of 
Btesnmc:es fur any prim ye;u. 'lhe Universily will now 

rr.c:ug11i1.e a icmg-lenn li;d1ilily Im lhe net pP.11siun 
!iabilit\1 in the Statement of Net Position. The 
University will continue to report pension expense as a 
tmnpunent uf br.rwfils P.Xpense. ·1 he arnrnml of 

expense reported now includes the overall change in 
!he pension 1iabili!y. See NDte 17. fur ;idditinnal del;iils 
on the Univers8ty's pension plan. 

Effective far fisc;al year l014, lhc University adopted 
GASH Statement Nn. 66, 1'eclrniml Ccmec:lim1s - 2012 

which fntends to improve financial reporting by 
resolving confHcting guidance that resulted from the 
issuanc:~ of two pronouncements, Statement No. 5'1 
Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund Type 
lJefi11ilimrs and Slalement Nn. 62, Cmiifiwlitm {}! 
Accounting and Financial Reporting Guidance 
Contained in Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB and A/CPA 
Pronouncements. Adoption of GASB Statement No. 66 
had no r.rfe[:Q un lhe llnivP.rsity's fin;mc:ial slalemP.nts. 

Effective for fiscal year 2014, the University adopted 
Gf\.'iH Stalemeni No. i'U, llc:c:mmlir1y muJ Firmm:iul 

Reporting for Noncxchange Financial Guarantees 
whid1 inlends lo improve fin;:im:i;il repmling hy slate 

and! rocal BOVernments that extend and receive 
nonexchange financial guarantees. Adoption of GASB 
Statement No. 70 had no effect on the University's 
financial siatemenls. 

In January 20:11.3, GASB issued GASB St<itement No. Ci9, 
Government Combinations and Disposals of 
(;c1ve1mmml O{Jf!mticm:s effer:live fm finam:ial 
statements tor periods beginnine after December 15, 
2013, which intends to improve financial reportinB by 
establishing standards for reporting government 
rnmhin;iliDllS anicl diSfMISals ar gnvemmP.111 uperatinns. 

The University Illas not yet determined the effect that 
;:idnplinn CJr Cif\.'iH S!alemenl No. 69 will have m1 ils 
financial statements . 

Use of Estimates - I hf! prep;n;:i!ion nf fin;mdal 

statements, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted 
;:in:rnmting principfe_i;, re11uires man;igemeril lo make 
estimates and assumptions that attect the reported 
amounts of assets and liabilities and disdosurc of 
rnnlingenl ;isse!s ;:iml li;ibililiE!-'i al !he dale of lhe 
linanci;il statements, and the repartee! ::imounts of 
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. 
Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

DJSCRETEL Y PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT - MEDICAL 
ALUANCE 

Nature of Operatfons - The Curators of the University 
of Missouri, for and on behalf of University Health Care 
;md C:HMC: entered inln .;m Affiliatiun Agreement cfaled 

August 5, 1997. Pursuant to the Affiliation ABreement, 
the University created the Medical Alliance. The 
Medical Alliance then became the sole member ot 
CRMC. The Medlical Alliance's purpose is to develop a 
nelwmk nf he;ilthr:are pmvidr.rs lo suppml the 
missions of University Health Care. 

CHMC: npr.raies ;iis a Lwn-tmspil;il system, whic:h 
consists of the Southwest f..ampus ;md Madison 

Campus complemented by community medical clinics. 
CHMC: primarily eams revenues hy providing inp;llient, 
outpatient, and emergency care services to patients in 
Jefferson City, Missouri. It also operates medical 
c:linics in the smrmmding c:mnmunities. "111e opernling 
results ot the facilities and clinics are included in these 
financial statements. CRMC is served by a group of 
admitting physicians that account tor a significant 
portion of CRMC's net revenues. Additionally, CRMC is 
alsn assm:iated wilh lhe Capital Hegim1 Medic:al 

Foundation, which is intended to support the interest 
of CRMC through its fundraising activities. 

Net Position - As a not-tor.profit organization, the 
Medical Alliance records its net position in accordance 
wilh U:inam:ial /\c:c:rnmling Standards l!narrl Ac:rnunling 
Slamfards Cudilic:;:i!icm 958-205, Nr1l-for-Pmfil l!nlilie."> 

Presentation of Finonciol statements. For presentation 
within the accompanying basic financial statements, 
lhe net pnsitinn is redistributed ;ummgst lhe nel 
position components defined by GASB Statement No. 
63. 

Capital Assets - Capital Assets are recorded at cost 
and deprec:iated <m a straight-line basis over the 
estimated useful life ot each asset following euidelines 

... _._ ·---------.---· ······~--·--"'- '·------·--··-·· -·-·"--~-------------------------
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or the J\me1ic:;m I lnspilal Assor:ialiun. Equipmenl 
under c;:ipital lease obligations is amortized on the 
straight-line basis over the shorter period of the lease 
term or the estim;:ited useful !ife of the equipment. 
Interest cost F11currecf on bormwed funds during the 
period of construction of capital assets is capitalized as 
a cost of acquiring those ;:issets. 

Net Patient Medfcal SeNlce Revenue - Net patient 
medical service revenue is reported at the net 
amounts to be realized from patients, third-party 
1>aycrs, and others for services rendered, including 
estimated retroactive adjustments for reimbursement 
agreements with U1ird-11arly payers. Etetm;:i1;live 
adjustments arc estimated and accrued in the period 
the related services are pmvided, and these i!lnmunts 
are adjusted in future periods as final settlements are 
determined. 

2. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENiS 

Custodial Credit Risk - Tue custodial credit risk tor 
deposits is the risk that in the event of bank faifurc, the 
University's dermsils may nnl be recovered. Stace l~w 
requires collateralization of all deposits with federal 
depository insmance, lumds and other nhligaticms uf 
the U.S. Treasury, U.S. Agencies and instrumentalities 
of the state of Missouri; bonds of any city, county, 
school district or special r~dl district of the st<ite ot 
Missouri; bonds of any state; or a surety bond having 
an aggregate value at least equal to the amount of the 
deposits. -U1e Universily's <:ash depnsils were fully 
insured or collateraHzed at June 30, 2014. 

3. INVESTMENTS 

Investment 1>olides arc established by the Board of 
Cur;itms ("the Uu;ird"). fhP. pofkies ensure lhal funds 
are managed in accordance with Section 105.688 of 
the Revised Statutes of Missouri and pmdent 
investment pr<1c:li<:es. Addiiionally, investment pnlic:ies 
esl;.iblished by ihe Hoard wilh resJJec;I in the 
Retirement Trust and other Postemplo11ment Benefit 
("OPEB") Trust (collectively referred to as "Pension 
Trust hmds") and lhP. Endnwment hmds specific:ally 
recognize the fiduciary duties set forth in Section 
105.688 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri. lhc use 
of exlern,;il i11ves!ment managers h<is been ;mlhmi1,ed 
by the Board. 

Sul.J.stantially all University cash and investments are 
managed centrally, g~ncrally in the following 
Investment pools.: 

General Paal - General Ponl ccmlains slmrl-lerrn 
University funds, including but not limited to c.-ish and 
reserves, uperaling funds, bund funds, .;iml pli!nl funds. 
Subject to v;:irious limitations contained within the 
cnnesrmmling investment 1mlic:y, lhe Universily's 
internally managed component of the General Pool 
m;iy he invested in the following inslrumenls: U.S. 
Government securities; U.S. Government Agency 
securities; U.S. Government guaranteed securities; 
money 111;.irkel funds; rnrlillcatf'_'> nf depnsit; 
repurchase agreements; commercial paper; and other 
similar shnrl-lerrn inveslrneni instruments of like or 
better quality. The externally managed component ot 
the General Pool is allowed to invest in the following 
asset sectors: theed income, absolute return and risk 
parity strategics. The General Pool's total return (loss), 
induding unrealized gains and lnsses, was 6.Z% for the 
year ended June 30, 2014. 

Endowment Funds When appropriate and 
permissible, endowment and similar funds are pooled 
fur inveslmenl purpuse'>, wilh the ubjetlive oli 
achieving long-term returns sufficient to preseirve 
principal by protecting against inflation and to meet 
endowrnenl spemlirig largets. 

The t:nduwmenl Puul, whic:h is externally managed, is 
the primary investment vehicle for endowment flmds. 
Suhjec:I lo various limitatinns tcmlained within the 
corresponding investment policy, the Endowment Pool 
is allowed to invest in the following asset sectors: 
global ec1uily, absolute relurn .strategiP..s, private 
equity, real estate, global fixed fncome, high-yield fixed 
im:orne, flualing rnte hank loans, global inflalcun-linked 
bonds, emerging markets debt, and risk parity 
strategics. The Endowment Pool's total rctum (loss), 
including unrealized gains and losses, was iG.7% for 
the ye;.i1 ended June 30, 2011/i. 

The Fixed Income Pool is an additional investment 
vehide fur endowment funds. lhe l'ixed tncmne Pun], 
as required by investment policy, is invcstedl in 
externally rnani'lged U.S. wre 1>lus bnnd funds. -lhe 
Fixed Income Pool's tot<il return, including unreaUized 
gains and losses, w;is 'l.5% fnr the year ended June 30, 
2014. 
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If a dunm h;is nut provided specific reshic:litms, st;ile 
law permits the Board to appropriate an amount of the 
Endowment Funds' net appreciation, realized and 
unrealized, as the Board considers to be 1m1ctent. Jn 
establishing this :imount, the Bo:ird is. required to 
consider the University's long- and short-term needs, 
present ;ind ;mlicip;iled finam:i;il requirements, 
expected total return on investments, price level 
trends, and general economic conditions. Further, any 
expenditure of net appreciation is required to IJ.e for 
the pmpuses fur whic:h lhe emlowmenl was 
established. Inclusive of both realized and unrealized 
gains and losses on investments, donor-restricted 
endm11.1ments experienc:e1E nel .apprec:ialicm of 
approximately $117,930,000 in fiscal year 2014. 

The Board has adopted the total return concept (yield 
plus change in market value) in determining the 
spendillhle relurn fm enduwrnenis and similar funds. 

The spending formula was revised in fiscal year 2012 to 
distribute 4.5% of a trailing 28-quartcr average of the 
endowment's lulal market value, with Lhe 
understanding that this spendling rate over the long 
Lerm will rml exceed the loEal re;d return (nel or 
Inflation). However, the change from 5% to 4.5% Is 
beinR phased in over several years to ensure a 
decrease in dislrilmlicms year over year is nnl due 
solely to the lower rate. In addition, the University 

distributes 1% of the trailing 28-quarter average of the 
endowment's tot.al market value to supp-0rt ·internal 
erulmvmenl and develt1pmenL adminisl.r al iun. 

PENSION TRUST FUNDS 

The Retirement Trust and the OPES Trust hold the 
assets ot the Retirement Plan and OPEB Pl::in, 
respectively. Subjecl ln various iimitatimu; wnlained 
within the corresponding investment policy, the 
externally-managed Retirement Trust is allowed to 
invest in the following asset sectors: gfobal equity, 
absolute return strategics, private equity, real estate, 
global fixed income, high-yield fixed im:mne, flnaiing 
rate bank loans, global inflation-like bonds, emerging 
markets debt' and risk pillrily slralegie.'>. lhe 
Retirement Trust's total return, including unrealized 
gains and losses, was 16.2% for the year ended June 
:ID,201'1. 

The OP1:11 l'msl held $51,631,DIID af neC pnsitinn al 
June 30, 2014. Subject to various limitations contained 
within the corresponding investment policy, the 
externally-manaeed OPEB Trnst is allowed! to invest in 
the following asset sectors: glollal theed income, global 
equity, and absolute return strategics. 

--·",,__...;,.-------~---~---------_,,....,-,------------------------
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/\l lune :m, JU1 II, I h~ Unive1sil y ;imJ Pension h ust Funds held the tollO\\ling types ot investments: 

Table 3.1 •Investments by Type (in thousands} 

As of Jun I! 30, 2014 
Debt Securities: 

U.S. Treasury Obligations 
U.S . .Agency Obligations 
Asset-Backed Securities 
Government- Foreign 
Corporate· Domestic 

Corporate- Foreign 
Equity Securities: 

Domestic 
Foreign 

Commingled Funds: 

.Absolute Return 
Risk Parity 

Debt Securities -Global 
Debt Securities - Domestic 
Debt Securities - Foreign 
Equity Securities - Domestic 
Equity Securities ·Foreign 

Equity Securitie."> ·Global 
Real Estate 

Non marketable Alternative Investments: 
Real Estate 
Private Equity 

Other 
Total Investments 

Money Market Funds 
Commercial Paper 
Other 

Total Cash aind Cash Equivalents 
Total Investments and Cash and 

Cash Equivalents 

Custodial Credit Risk - Fm inveslmenls, i:uslmiial 
credit risk is the risk that in the event of failure of the 
munierparly lo ;i lr;ins;u:lirm, the University will rm1 

be able to recover the value of the investments held by 
an outside party. In ;ir:c:oufam:e wilh its 1mlicy, the 
University mmnn1zes custodial credit risk by 
establishing limitations on the types of instruments 
held with qu;tlifying i11sliluli1ms. Hepurc:hase 
agreements must be collateralized by U.S. Government 
issues and/or U.S. Government AHcncy issues. All 
tJniversily aml Pension Trust Fund inveslmenls ;tH~ 

UniversilV of Missouri 
University of Missouri 
Pension Tru5t Funds 

$ 

$ 

191,473 
514,011 

32,599 
95,970 

288,550 
174,190 

206,354 
90,025 

175,256 
440,146 

41,981 
130,673 

77,309 
115,345 
251,142 

77,803 
13,253 

50,235 
83,771 

30.932 
3,081,018 

105,785 
13,300 
27850 

146,935 

3,227,953 

$ 

$ 

!14,064 
1,141 

!15,251 
186,076 
180,118 
88,479 

393,991 
313,641 

268,950 
68,832 
19,553 

223,683 
177,340 
270,410 
544,761 
231,146 

34,379 

102,438 
195,012 

3,369,265 
84,675 

7837 
92,512 

3,461,777 

insured or registered and arc held by the University, 
lhe Pension l'rusl i:unds or an agent in ils n;une. 

Concentration of Credit Risk - Concentration of credit 
risk is the risk associated with a lack of diversification, 
such as having subsl;inli;il inveslrmmls in a few 
individual issuers, thereby exposinB the oreanization to 
gre<lller risks 1es111ling rrmn ;irlverse er:onmnic, 
political, · regulatory, Beographic or credit 
developments. The investment policies for the 
General Pool, Endowment Funds, and Retirement Trust 
all specify diversification requirements across asset 
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sectors. Jhe investment policy fur the Gene1al Poul 
has specific single issuer limits In place tor corporate 
bonds and commercial paper. 

As ot June 30, 2014, of the Univ~rsity's total 
investments and cash and casl1 equivalents, 10.0% arc 
issues nf I he Fe<ler ;ii Hume l.n;in [l;mk (n 11.ll). Al June 
30, 2014 the Pension Trust Funds did not contain 
investments from any single issuer that exceeded 5% 

of the total portfolio. 

Investments issued or guaranteed by the U.S. 
government as well as investments in mutuail funds 
and other pmiled invt>shmmts ;ire t>.xduded frnrn 
consideration when evaluating concentration risk. 

Credit Risk - Debt securities are subject to credit risk, 
which is the chance that an issuer wm fail to pay 
interest or principal in a timely manner, or that 
negative perceptions of the issuer's ability to make 
these payments will cause security prices to decline. 
n1ese (:irmmsl<111ces m<1y <1rise due tn <I variety nf 

factors such as financial weakness, bankruptcy, 
litigaliun ;md/m adverse pnliti<:al develnpments. 
Certain debt securities, primarily oblreations of the u.s. 
government or those explicitly Ruarantced by the U.S. 
government, are not considered to have credit risk.. 

Nationally recognized statistical rating organizations., 
su<:h as Moody's and Sl;md<1ul & Pcmr's {S&P} assign 
credit ratings to security issues and issuers that 
imlic:;ile a me<isme or pntenli<1I c:redil risk In inVESlms. 

Oebt securities consiclered investment grade are those 
rated at least Baa by Moody's and BBB by s&r. For 
General Pool investments, the tollowin& mfnimum 
credit ratings have been eslablished tu manage credit 
risk: minimum long-term rating of A or better by S&P, 
with minimum raling or A-1/1'-1 rm c:mmnen:ial paper 
and other short-term securities. For Endowment 
Funds and Retirement Trust investments, the 
rP.spedive investrmmt pnli1:iP_'i atlnw fur a blend nf 
different credit ratings, subject to certain restrictions 
by ;isset seclm. In <ill (:ases, dispasilinn of securities 
whose ratings have been downgraded after purchase is. 
generally left to the discretion of the respective 
investment manager after consideration ot individual 
facts and circumstances. 

All holdings of commercial paper were rated A-1/P·l or 
heller al .lune :m, 7.0111. All lmldings nf money m;nkel 
funds were rated AAA at June 30, 2014. 
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llasetfi mt inve..o;Lmenl ratings provided uy Moody's m S&I', the University's and Pension Tmst Funds' creclit risk 
exposure as of June 30, 2014, is as follows: 

Table 3.2: • Debt Securities by Type and Credit Rating (in thousands:} 

As of June 301 2014 
US. Treasury Obl.i gati ons 

LJ.S. Agency Obligations 

.Asset·B21cl:ed Securriti es 
Mortgage Batiked Securiaies 

Guarnfllteed bv U.S. Agencies 
kiai/MA 
f.a/M 

l>/A 
Baai/BBB 
Ba/BB andl lower 
Unraited 

Governmentt A Foreign 

Aaa/PiAA. 
A;J/AA 

A/A 
Baa/BBB 
Ba/BB andl !owe; 
Unri!lted 

Corporate- Domestic 
Aaa/AAA 

/la/AA 

A/A 
Baa/BBB 

Ba/BB ant:ti lower 

Unrnted 
Corpori!lte- ForeiglJ'b 

Ma/MA 
Aa/AA. 

NA 
Baa/BBB 
Ba/BB andl lower 
Unrati!!d 

Tn·tal 

r.nterest Ra1te l!Usk - Interest rate risk is the risk that 
d1i!inges in inlerest mies over time will adversely .affect 
the fair value of an investment. Debt securities with 
longer maturi~ies are likely to be subject to more 
\'<uiabili!y in lhei~ fair Vdllm~s as a result of fulme 
changes in interest rates. Neither the University nor 
the Pension Trust Funds ha:vc a formal policy that 
;uBdresses inleresi r;iile risk; r;ither, sm:h risk is 

University ofMissouri 

Universitx of Missouri Pension Trust Funds 

$ 

$ 

191,473 $ 34,064 
514,011 l,141 

(95,374) 4,912. 
1,570 8,494 

2,75$ 10,425 

3,389 3,053 
3,482 230 

115,285 6,264 
1,394 1,873 

2,952 24,324 
1,923 28,145 
9,095 22,719 

58,9'73 55,153 

2.,95,y 2,230 

20,07'6 53,505 

4,693 367 
4,278 

17,957 2,812 

51,528 5,569 
171,524 163,376 
38,570 7,994 

11,712 6,504 
21,209 9·,016 
32,795 16,002 

36,510 17,324 

44,501 25,537 
27463 14096 

1,2.!IG,79'3 $ 525,129 

mi!inaged by each imlJviduat investment manager, as 

applicable. 

The University and Pension Trust Funds have 
inve.o;l!nw..111ls in .asset-barked securiCir-<>, whid1 rnnsisl 
primarily ot mortgage-backed securities guaranteed b\1 
U.S. a:gencics andl corporate collillteralized mortgage 
obligations. Yhes:e securities are based on cash flows 
from principal i!ind interest payments on the 
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umierlying se1:111itie.s. l\n assel-backed .secmily rn;iy 
h:Jve repayments that vary signific:Jntly with changes in 
market inlert'_'it r;.iles. 

Tue University and Pension Trust Funds invest in 
fomard settling To Be Announced {TBA} Mortgage 
Backed Securities (MBS). TBA MBS with notional 
amounts totaling $110,000,000 and $4,000,000 and 
fair values of ($119,91G,OOO) and ($4,553,000) were in 
place at June 30, 2014 for the University and Pension 
Trust Funds, respectively. The forward settling MBS. 
instruments cx110se the University to interest rate risk 
of mortgage backed securities. 

Table 3.3 presents the modified durations of the 
University's and Pension Trust i:unds' debt sec:urilies as 
of June 30, 2014: 

TabEe 3.3 • Debt Securities by Type and 

Modified Duration fin thousands) 

As; of June 30, 2014 

IJ.S. Treasury Obligations 

U.S. Agency Obligations 
Asset-Backed Securities 

Government- Foreign 
Corporate· Domestic 
Corporate - !Foreign 

Total Debt Securities 

As of June 30, 2014 
U.S. Treasury Obligations 

IJ.S. Agency Obligations 
Asset-Backed Securities 
Government - Foreign 

Corporate- Domestic 

Corporate· Foreign 
Total Debt Securities 

University of Missouri 
Duration (In years) 

$ 191,473 S.3 
514,011 3.3 

32,599 7.3 
95,970 5.8 

288,550 
174,190 

4.5 
5.2 

$ 1,296,793 4.8 

University of Missouri 

Pension Trust 

Duration (in years) 

$ 34,064 10.5 
1,141 3.1 

35,251 4.9 
186,076 7.2 
180,118 5.0 

88,479 4.0 

$ 525,129 6.0 

Foreign Exchange Risk- Foreign exchange risk is the 
risk that investments denominated in foreign 
currencies. may lose V.1lue due to adverse fluctuations 
in the value of the U.S. dollar relative to foreign 
cur rendes. 

University ;mcl r~elirernent 'lrusl illVP,Slrnent policies 
allow for exposure to non-U.S. dollar denominated 
equities and fixed im:nme securities, whic:h may he 
fully or p;irti:Jlly hedged using forward foreign currency 
exchange mntrac:ts. 

At June 30, 2014, 20.7% of the University's total 
investments and cash and cash equivalents were 
denominated in foreign currencies. Fonvard foreign 
c:urrenc.y c:unlr;u:ls wilh rmlional ;unounts totaling 
$519,207,000 were in pl:Jce at June 30, 2014. At June 

:m, 2m.11, lil.8% nf the Pension 'lrusl Funds' tol;il 
investments ;ind cash equivalents were denominated 
in foreign currencies. Forward foreign currency 
contracts with notional :Jmounts totaling $337,390,000 
were in place at June 30, 2014. 
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lhe University's anci Pensiun Trust runds' expusure tu fnreign exchange risk as of June 30, 2014: 

Table 3.4 - Foreign Exchange Risk (In thousands} 

University of Missouri 
As of June 30, 2014 Universit~ of Missouri Pen:1ion Trust Funds 
Debt Sec1.1rltie.o; 

Euro $ 80,085 $ 104,144 
Australian Dollar 3,428 14,844 
Canadian Dollar 494 7,657 
British Pound Sterling 21,104 22,783 

Japanese Ven 1,025 4,275 

Danish Krone 436 2,672 
New Zeal a ndi Dollar 773 8,365 
Brazil Real 37.423 16,965 
Singapore Dollar 
Mexican Nw.v Peso 2,350 14,845 
Polish Zloty 288 1,561 
Other 1419 9621 

148,827 207,733 
Equity Securities 

Euro 5,426 39,081 
Japanese Ven 11,376 47,363 
British Pound Sterling 13,401 56,094 
Australian Dollar 3,030 13,544 
Canadian Dollar 1,282 3,648 
Swiss Franc 10,570 34,104 
Hong Kong Dollar 7,232 21,420 
Swedish Krona 4,306 14,391 
Other 7,585 29,462 

64 208 259107 
Commingled Funds 

Various currency denominations: 
Debt Securities - Global 41,981 19,553 
Debt Securities - Foreign 77,309 177,340 
Equity Securities - Global 77,803 231,146 
Egui~ Securities - Foreijin 251,142 544,761 

448 235 972 800 
Cash and Cash Equivalents 

Euro 3,174 5,928 

Hong Kong Dollar g 

Mexican New Peso 1,454 86 

Japanese Ven 110 673 
British Pound Sterling 111 235 
Other 1,326 835 

6175 7766 
Total Exeosure to Forei1n Exchanse Risk $ 667,445 $ 1,447,406 
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Commingled Funds - lnr.Judes 5P.<:urilies ;me.I t:xrllimge 
Commission regulated mutual funds and externally 
managed funds, limited partnerships, and corporate 
structures which are senerally unrated and 
unregulated. Certain commingled funds may use 
derivatives, short positions and lcvcraflc as part of 
!heir inveslrnenl slr~lt!gy. I hese investments ;ire 
structured to limit risk exposure to the amount of 
invested capital. Comminsled funds have liquidity 
(redemption) provisions, which enable the University 
and Pension Trust Funds to make full or partial 
withdrawals with notice, subject to restrictions on the 
timinR and amount. 

Ot the University's and Pension Trust Funds' 
commingled funds at June :m, 21llll, apprnximoitely 
91% and 85%, respectively, are redeemable within 90 
days, with the remaininR redeemable within one year. 

Nonmarketable Alternative Investments - Consists of 
limited partnerships involving an advance commitment 
or capital r..<1lled hy the general parlner as nP.P.ded ;uul 

distributions of capital and return on invested ca1lital 
as underlying slralegies are 1:0111:l11ded during the life 
of the partnership. The committed but unpaid 
obligation to these limited partnershiJlS is further 
discussed in Note 11. 

Securities Lending Transactions - 'Ille University <1111.I 
Pen.'iinn husi hmds eai:h p;ulic:ipale in ~n external 

investment pool securities lending program to 
;mgmenl income. I he prngram is administered by I he 
custodial agent bank, which lends equity, covernment 
and corporate securities for a predetermined period of 
lime tn 0111 imlepemlent broker/dealer (hmmwer) in 
exchange for collateral. Collateral may be cash, U.S. 
Cinvemmenl sernrilies, defined fellers of 1:redil nr 
olher rnllaleroil appmved by lhe Universily m Pension 
Trust Funds. Loaned domestic securities are initially 
rnllaleroililed al 102% of lheir fair value, while loaned 

international securities are collateralized at 105% ot 
f;:iir value. [xposure Lo credit risk from burrower 

default has been minimized by having the custodial 
agenl hoink determine daily lhal re11uirerl rnllaler~I 

meets a minimum of 100% of the fair value of loaned 
domestic securities and 105% tor loaned international 
sernritiP.s. 

For the University, at June 30, 2014, there were a total 
or $11], 1'18,llClO of securities nut cm ln;:in In llmrowers. 
The value of collateral received from the borrower for 

these securities consisted ot S113.477,000 cash and 
$2,692,000 noncash collateral at June 30, 2.014. 

For the Pension Trust Funds, at June 30, 2014, there 
w;u;. <1 Iola I of $263,023,mm of securities cml nn lu;m lo 
borrowers. The value of collateral recelvecl from the 
hmmwer for these sernrities consisted of 
$263,048,000 cash and SG,953,000 nonc;ish collater::il 
al June JO, 20111. 

Cash collateral received from the borrower is invested 
by the custodial agent bank in commingled collateral 
investment pools in the name of the University and 
l'ensicm Jmsl [ unds, wilh guidelines <ipprnved by 
each. These investments are shown as Investment of 
Cash Cnll<Ileral in the Sl<!ilernenl nf Nel Posilion ;im! 
reported at fair value, with chanses in market value 
recorded in Investment and Endowment lncome on 
lhe Statement nf nevermes, 1;xpe11ses, <Ind C:hangr_.., in 

Net Position. Noncash collateral received for securities 
lending ;u:tivities is rml rec:nrded ois an ;:assel bec:ausf:! 
the University and Pension Tmst Funds do not have 
lhe ability lo riledge m sell sm:h c:ullateral unless the 
borrower defaults. 

The University and rension Trust Funds continue to 
receive interest and dividends during the loan period. 
The maturities of the investments made with the cash 
rnll;:iteral gener<illy rnah:h the maturities or lhe 
securities lent. At June 30, 2014, neither the University 
nm lhe Pension lmsl Funds have any nerlil risk 
exposure arising trom the actual securities lendins 
transactions since the collateral received from the 
hmrnwer e>Cceeds the value of the sec:uriLies lent. 

Further, the University and Pension Trust Funds arc 
fully imlerrmified h\' lhe mslmti.al hank <11gainsl any 
losses incurred as a result of borrower default. 

tJISCllf!H Y P/l/£.'if NfflJ COMPONl:N I UN/I'- Mf!JJCJ\I. 

All.I AN CE 

Investments - The investment policies of Medical 
/\llioim:e oire established by its hoard nf direc:lms. The 

policies arc established to ensure that Medical Alliance 
funcls <ire managed in ac:cnrcfance with the "Prudent 
Man Rule." 

Medical Alliance investments are presented at tair 
value in accordance with FASB Accounting Standards 
CmJific:aticm 820, which est<ihlishes ;i foiir value 
hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation 
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tedmiqur.s used t<J meiisme fair value. The hierarchy 
eives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices 
in .;\C:I ive markets fm idenlic:al ;issels en fiabilil ies; ;md 

the towes.t priority to measurements irwolvine 
significant unobservable inputs. The three revels ot the 
fair v;ilue hierard1y ;ue as follows: t.evel 1 - Quoted 
prices in ::ictive markets tor identical assets that the 
Medical Alliance has the abHity to access at the 
measurement date; Level 2 . Inputs other than quoted 
market prices im:ludr.d in l.evel 1, lhat are uhse1vable 
tor the asset. either directly or indirectly; andl, Level 3 · 
Inputs that arc unobservable for the asset. The level in 
the fair value hierarc:hy within which a fair va!ue 
measurement in its entirety falls is based on the lowest 
level input that is significant to the fair vaiuc 
measurement in its entirety. 

At .lune ]0, 2014, Meili<:al Alliance held the following 
investments: 

Table 3.5 - Medical AIEiance Cash, Cash 

Equivalents, and Investments 

£in thousandsl 
As of June 30, Z014 
Fair Value· Level 1 

Money Market Accounts $ 40,579 
U.S. Treas urv Oblisati ons 73 
Cash and Other Cash Equlvalents 5,265 

Total FairValue-Level 1 45ili!:17 

Fair Value- Level 2 

Mortgage-Backed Securities 7,&98 
Certificates of Deposit 26,599 
Coq;iorate Bonds 3~432 

Total Fair Value- Level 2 37,929 

Total Ca.sh, Cash Equivalents, 

and Investments $ 83,846 

4. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 

Accounts receivable at June 30, 2014, ;:ire summarized 
as follows: 

Table 4.1 - Accounts Receivable 

(in tflausands} 

Grants and Contracts 
Federal Appropriations 

State Appropriations and State 

Bond Funds 
Student Fees and Other Academic 

Charges 
Patient Services, Net of Contractual 

Allowances 

Subtotal 

Less Provisions for Loss: 
Grants & Contracts 
University Health Care Patient 

Services 
Student Fees and Other 

Academic Charses 
Subtotal 
Total Accounts Receivable, Net 

5. NOTES RECEIVABLE 

2014 

$ 62,576 
11,923 

431 

130,452 

1161832 
322.214 

1,131 

20,321 

71908 
291360 

$ 292,854 

Notes receivable generally consist of rcsomc:cs 
;;ivailable fm financial loans tu sl udenls. lhese 
resources are provided through Federal loan programs 
and University loan programs generally funded by 
external sources. Notes receivable at June 30, 2014, 
arc summarized as follows: 

Table 5.1 - Notes Receivable (in tiJousonds) 

Federal Health Profession loans 

earl D. Perkins National Loans 
University Loan Programs 

Other 

Subtotal 
Less Provisions for Loss 
Total Notes Receivable, Net 

$ 

$ 

2014 
17,829 

31,201 
17,352 

26,474 
92,856 

4.405 
88,451 
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6. CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital assets activity for the years ended June 30, 2014 is summ;irilecl ;is folluwx: 

Table 6.1 - Capital Assets (In thousands} 

2014 
Beginning Addlt!Dns/ 2014 

Capital Assets, Nondepreciable: 

Land $ 
Artwork and Historical Artifacts 

Construction in Proiress 

Total Ca(?ital Assets, Nond~reciable 

Capital Assets, Depreciable: 

Buildings and Improvements 

Infrastructure 

Equipment 

Librar:z'. Materials 

Total Ca~ital Assets. De~reclable 

Less Accumulated Depreciation: 

Buildings and Improvements 

Infrastructure 

Equipment 

Libra!:J'. Materials 

Total Accumulated oeereciation 

Total Ca~ital Assets, DeEreciable, Net 

Total Caeital Assets1 Net s 

The estimated cost to complete construction in 
progress at June 30, 2014, is $727,172,000 of which 
$'156,858,mlCl is available frurn ume_'ilrii:ted net 
position. The remaining cos.ts are expected to be 

funded from $23,558,000 of gifts, $29,000 of grants, 

and $246,727,000 of debt proceeds. 

C:aJ1ital as.<;e\s indude a building f;u:ilily umler a rnpilal 
lease of $1Cl,]fi'1i,rnm and related ar:curmllated 
depreciation of $G,81S,OOO at June 30, 2014. 

Balance Transfers Retirements Endin& Balance 

80,549 $ 727 $ (15) $ 81,261 
13,424 934 14,358 

240,960 (6,011) 234,949 

334,933 ,4,350! ,15} 3301568 

3,296,382 171,027 (S,026) 3,462,383 
369,213 84,361 (684) 452,890 

770,851 57,657 (21,107) 807,401 

2561653 61415 263,068 
4,693,099 319,460 (26,817) 4,985,742 

1,189,096 98,127 (528) 1,285,695 
154,883 17,442 172,325 
515,611 60,425 (20,108) 555,928 
170,934 71256 1781190 

2&30,524 1831250 {20,636} 2,193,138 
2,662,575 136,210 (6,181) 2,792,604 
212971508 s 131;860 $ !61196! $ 3,1231172 

DISCRCTELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UIV/T­
MEDICAL AWANCE 

Capital assets al June :m, 201'11 are surnrnarized as 
follows: 

Table 6.2 • Medical Allliance • Capital Assets 
(in thousands) 

(in !11ousonds) 
Land & Improvements 

Buildings 

Movable Equipment 

Construction in Progress 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 

Total Capital Assets1 Net 

2014 
$ 7,876 

s 

11l5,563 
78,751 

41116 
206306 
146,650 

59,656 
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7. ACCRUED SHORT-TERM LIABILITIES 

/\ctrued liahililies al lune 30, 7.014 are surmnariled as 
follows: 

Table 7.1 - Accrued Liabilities (Tn thousands] 

2014 

Accrued Salaries, Wages & Benefits $ 
Accrued Vacation 
Accrued Self Insurance Claims 
Accrued Interest Payable 

62,159 
47,719 
36,686 
12,645 

Total Accrued Liabilities .$ 159,209 

8. OTHER NONCURRENT LIABILITIES 

Table 8.1 ·Other Noncurrent Liabilities (in thousands} 

Beginning of Total End of less Current 

Fiscal Vear 2014 Vear Additions Payments Vear Portion 

Accrued Vacation $ 64,467 $ 45,226 $ c-i2,sso) $ 67,113 $ (47,719) 

Accrued Seff-lnsura nee Cf aims 80,665 231,121 !23.3,842.l 771944 !36,686) 

~ 1451132 $ 276,347 s !276~221 $ 1451057 $ !841405} 

Noncurrent 

End of Vear 
$ 19,394 

411258 

s 601652 
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9. LONG-TERM DEBT 

'I he University's oulsl;inding debt <ii June :m. :mt II, with c:nrrespondinB activity, is as follows: 

Table 9.1 • Long-Tenn Debt (In thousands} 

Beginning 
As of June lD, 2014 Batan1:2 

System Facilities Revenue Bonds - Fixed $1,085,070 
System Facilities Revenue Bonds - Variable 100,330 
Unamortized Premium 41,612 
Net System Facilities Revenue Bonds 1,227,012 
Notes Payable 14,130 
Capital Lease Obligations 5,920 
Commercial Paaer 1771255 
Total Long-Term Debt s 1,424,317 

System Facilities Revenue Bands 
System Facilities Revenue Bonds have provided 
financing for capital expansion or renovation of various 
University f;u:ililies. the prim:ip;il and inleresl nf lite 
bonds are payable from, and secured by a first lien on 
and pledge of, designated revenues which include the 
following: ;i purfion nf luiliun ;iml fees, sales and 
services from the financed facilities, such as bookstore 
cullec:lio11s, hnusing ;ind dining c:h;uges, patient 
services, and parking collections, as wet[ as certain 
assessed fees, such as the recreational facility fees, 
stadium surcharees, and student center tees. 

On November 26, 2013, the University issued 
$11,32.S,um ;ind $150,<Hm,mm in Series 7.CJD/\ syslem 
Facilities Revenue Bonds and Series 2013B Taxable 
Syslem fac:ililies Hevenue Bonds, respecliwly. 
Proceeds from issuance of the Series 2013 Bonds are 
being used to refund all of Series 2003B bonds in the 
outstanding principal amount of $13,03.5,000, finance 
construction or renovation of housing facilities on the 
Columbia and Kansas City campuses, energy 
manaeement improvements on the Columbia campus, 
renovations and construction to Memorial Stadium 
and other athletic projects, construction of a wellness 
center on the St. Louis cam1lus, construction and 
renovations ot academic buildings on the St Louis and 
Missouri S& T campuses, expansion of the Missouri 
Orthopedic lnslilule, and paying wsl of issuance of lhe 
Serie." J.OU lmnds. lhe .ill-in-lrue inleresl cost nf the 

Ending Current 

Additions Reductions Balance Portion 
s 455,835 s (220,380) s 1,320,525 s 18,640 

(435) 99,895 450 
41,755 (10,811) 72,556 

4971590 123116261 11492,976 19,090 
20,061 (802) 33,389 951 

(754) 5,166 820 
44,989 11501672) 71,572 711572 

$ 562,640 s (383,854l $1,603,103 $ 92,433 

Series 2DB/\ and 7.013B bonds is 2.2% and 11.9%, 
respectively. 

On May 22, 2Cll4, the University issued $294,510,mJD 
in Series 2014A System Facilities Revenue Bonds. 
Proceeds from issu;im:e of lhe Series 201'1/\ bonds ;ire 
being used to refund $183,455,000 principal amount ot 
the Series 2007A Bonds, repaying S128,600,000 
principal arnmrnl of lhe University's cmlslanding 
Commercial Paper Notes, and paying the cost of 
issuance of the Series 2014A bonds. The all-in-true 
interest cost of the Series 2014A bonds is 3.2%. 

lnlerest expense assm:ialed wilh finam:ing pmje1:ts 
during construction, net of any investment income 
e;imed on bond prm:eeds during c:nnslrur:lion, is 
capitalized. Total interest expense during the year 
ended June 30, 2014 was S67,919,000. Interest 
ex1•ense assm:ialed wilh finam:ing prujec:ls during 
construction, net of any investment income earncdl on 
bond prm:eeds dming C:OllSlrlH:tion, is 1Apilalited. rm 
the years ended June 30, 2014, capitalization ot 
inleresl e.irned nn 1mspenl hnnd prm:eeds lolalecl 
$8,003,000, resulting in net interest expense of 
$59,916,000. f'or the year ended June JO, 20M, the 
University earned cash subsidy payments from the 
Uniled Sl<iles Treasury lolaling $9, 1CJ9,0UD fm 
designated Build America Bonds outstanding, which 
was recorded as Federal Appropriations on the 
Sl;ill:!rnenl of Hevenues, 1:xpenses, ;iml C:h<1nges in Nel 
Position. 
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Table 9.2 - System Facilities Revenue Bonds {in illousa11ds} 

Weighted Avg. 
Cost of Capital llalanm 

Series Txee al June 301 2014 final Maturit)! Original Issue June 301 2014 

2003B !Fixed N/A ll/l/2023 37,085 $ 
2006A Fixed 4.22% 11/1/2026 260,975 127,540 
2007A fixed 4.18% U/1/2037 262,970 17,480 

2009A(ll.) Fixed 3.87% 11/1/2039 256,300 256,300 

2009B Fixed 3.02% 11/1/2021 75,760 53,925 
2010A{ll) Fixed 3.76% 11/1/2041 252,285 252,285 

20:U Fixed 2.66% 11/1/2027 54,125 52,005 
Z012A Fixed 1.58% 11/1/2019 105,155 105,155 
2013A Fixed 1.77% 11/1/2023 11,325 11,325 

2013B Fixed 4.87% 11/1/2043 150,000 150,000 
2014.A Fixed 3.16% 11£1£2037 2941510 2941510 

Total Fixed! Rate Bonds 117601490 11no1s2s 
2007B V21ril3lble 0.06%(2) 11/1/2031 102,250 99,895 

Totail Variable Rate Demand Bonds 1021250 991895 

Total Sl!slem Fa:cili1ties Revenue Bonds s 11862l40 ~ 11420i!20 
(.1.J ramtt."eiz;si;e dl!2ii¥1na1err M; Hwfel llmP..nca nomt.s 111mer the tnlem.11 Uc.'Ve11ue Code of 1986, as <Nm."Tldcd. 

(2} As or June 30, wn; rares are aetefl'lltnea aat/yor weeKsy oy me rema.r1<e11ng .1f1P.RTs. the rate 1s us11.lny 111'1111/tt a range ar or near the 
Sccurilk.-:; lrnSwlryamJ Fi11;11mli11 M<11l<ct:; As:;or:l<1tiu11 M wooipat Sl\l1p Index (Slf'MA fnrteX) mre, l'Allcfl resets weekly. 

System Facilities Revenue Bond Series 2007B is a 
varictb!e r;de dem;md bond with remarkeling fectlurl's 
which allow bondlholdcrs to put debt back to the 
lJnil.rer.sily. He'""..3use ~he University is 1he sole smm:e uf 
liquicJi[y shuu[d the cr}linn Lu tender he exerc:ised by 
the bondholder, these variable rate demand bonds are 
classified in their entirety as current liabilities on the 
Stalemenl of Nel Pnsitiun, wilh the h;il;mc:e in exc:ess 

of actual current principal maturities reported ais Long­
rerrn E>ehl Suhjec:I Hu Hem;irketing. 

In-substance defcascd bonds aggregating 
$315,230,000 arc ollitstanding at June 30,2014. 

Interest Rme SWOp Agreements 

With an objective of lowering the University's 
bono\•.ring costs, when compared against fixed-rate 

debt, the University entered into interest rate swap 
ag1eernenls in c:mmec:linn with 1;e1Lain variable-rate 
System Facilities Revenue Bonds and commercial 
paper. Under ead1 of the swap agreements, lhe 
University pays the swap counterparty a fixed interest 
rate payment and receives a variable rate interest rate 
p;iymenl lhctl enec:lively ch;iingf'.s <I c;nmponenl nf the 

University's variable interest rate debt to fixed rate 
cfebL The UniversiHy ;issumed a 2()06 interest retie 

swap with a negative fair market value of" $9,799,000 
on March Zl, 2012 to which the countcrparty was 
U;mk nf America, N.J\. lhe 2006 swaii was ac:qt1i1ed in 
conjunction with the purch;,ise ot a housing and 
parking facility at the Kansas City campus. Table 9.3 
presents the terms of the outstanding swaps and their 
fair values at June 30, 2.014. 
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Table 9.3 - Interest Rate Swaps (in thousands) 

National Effective Maturity Counterparty 
Type Amount Date Date Terms Fair Value Credit RatlnR 

Pay fixed; $ 40,000 7/18/2002 11/1/2032 Pay ~.950%; receive $ (9,977) Aa3 I A+ 
receive variable 

Pay fixed; 50,615 12/14/2006 8/1/2026 
SIFMAlndex 

Pay 3.902%; receive {S,725) Baa2 /A-
SIFMAlndex receive variable 

Pay fixed; 99,895 7/26/2007 11/1/2031 Pay 3.798%; receive 68% (20,869) Aa3 /A+ 

receive variable 
Total $ 190,510 

The 1002 anci 2006 s\i;aps do not specifically hedge any 
currently outstanding debt; rather, they serve to 
rnduc:e lhe overall expnsme lo inleresl r<ile risk nn lhe 

University's variable rate debt not otherwise 
specifically hedged. The notional amount of the 2002 
swap ts fixed nver the life of the ;.igreemenl. lhe 
notional amount ot the 2006 swap decreases annually 
CJver lhe life u( the swap. 'The 2(J[l7 SW<lll specifically 

hedges System Facilities Revenue Bond SeriP.s 2007B, 

the effectiveness ot which has been determined usinc 

of l·Month LIBOR 

$(39,571) 

the synthetic instrument method. The notional 
arnoUJnt of the 2007 swap is equal to the outstanding 
halartLt! of lhe Series :mcrm bnnds. 

The University recognizes the fair value and 
c:mrespnndinig d1anges in fair value nf lhe nulslaruling 

swaps in the University's financial statements. 
Cl1anges in fair v;ilue of the nutslamling swaps, with 

respective financial statement presentation, are 
presented in Table 9.4: 

'l!'atille 9.4 ·Interest Rate Swa11s ·Change in Fair Value 1111 thousands} 

filir Value at Fair Value on Change in 

Juna 30, 2014 Acqulsltl11n Fair Value Presentation of Change In Fair Value 

2002 Swap - Investment Derivative 

2006 Swap - Investment Derivative 

2007 Swap -Cash Flow Hedge 

Tota[ 

$ 

$ 

(9,977} 

(8,725} 

(Z0,869) 

(39,571} $ 

fofr Vul11e. !here is a risk lhnl !he fail v-.ilue nr a SW-'lJI 
could be adversely affected by changing market 
rnmlitim1s. Hte fair values, develnped using lhe 1.ern 
coupon method with proprietary models, were 
prepared by the counterparties, JPMorgan Chase Bank, 
N.A., and Bank of America, N.A., major U.S. financial 
rnslitulicms. lhe zem c:nupnn melhml c:akulale.s the 
future net settlement payments required by the swap, 
assuming that the current forward rates implied by the 
yieldl curve correctly anticipate future spot interest 
ral.es. lhese paymenls are lhen disi:ounLed using lhe 
spot rates implfed by the current yield curve tor 
hypothetical zero-coupon bonds due on the date of 
each net settlement of the swap. The fair value of the 
interest rate swaps is lhe eslirn<1led ammml the 
University would have either (paid) or received if the 
swap· agreements were terminated on June 30, 2014. 
Credit Risk. Although the University has entered into 
the interest rate swaps with creditworthy financial 

N/A $ (355) Investment and Endowment I m:ome, Nel 

N/A (203) Investment and Endowment Income, Net 

N/A 867 Deferred Outflow of Re.sources 

. $ :Z'!J'!J 

institutions, there is credit risk tor losses in the event 
of non-performance by the cmmtcrpartics. Subject to 
applicable nettine arrangements, swap contracts with 
positive fair values <1re exposed to credit risk. The 
University f;iic:es ill mi'lximum 1mssihle !us.<; equiv;ilenl lo 
the amount of tile derivative's fair value. Subject to 
applicable netting <1rrangements, swaps with negative 
fair v.alues are nn! exposed lo nedil risk. Collaler;il 
requirements apply to both parties tor the 2002 and 
:mo:r sw;iips and fm the :mos swap rnllaleral 
requirements only apply to the counterparty. 
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The collateral requirements arc determined by a 
combinatiun of credit ratings and the aggregate fair 
value ot swaps outst:mdirig with each counterparty as 
presented in labfe 9.S: 

Table 9.5 • Swap Collateral Requirements 

Fair' Value 
Credit Rating 

(S&P I Moody's) 

AAA/Aaa 
AA+/Aa1 

AA/Pa2 
M-/Aa3 
A+/Al 
A/A2 
A-/A3 

BBB+/Baa1 

Threshold 
(In thou.sands} 

$ 50,000 
30,000 
30,000 
20,000 
20,000 
10,000 
10,000 

5,000 

If the aggregate fair value of swaps outstanding with 
each counterparty is positive and exceeds the fair 
value threshold tor the applicable credit rating, the 
counterparties arc required to post collateral. If the 
aggregate fair vailue of the 2DCJ2 amt 2007 swa(IS is 
nesative and exceeds the fair value threshold for the 
applicable credit rating, the University is required to 
pnsl rnll<1Lernl. Permilted c:nllaleral for either party 
includes U.S. Treasuries, U.S. government agencies, 
r.;1sh, and c:mnrnen:i<1I pa51er rillled /\1/Pl by S&P nr 
Mnndy's, respectively. /\s lhe negative aggregate fair 
value of the 2002 ::imll 2007 swaps exceeded 
$30,000,000 on June 30, 2014, which is the current fair 
valur. lhreslmld rm lhe University given a Mnudy's 
rating of Aal, the University had oollateral posted with 
lhe c:mmler(l•Hly as required. 

Basis Risk. The variable-rate payments received by the 
University on the 2007 swap arc determined by 68% of 
one mcmlh ~.mcm, whereas Ute interest rates paid by 
the University on its v::iriable-rate bonds correspond to 

the SU:MA Index. lhe University us exposed lo basis 
risk only to the extent that the historical relationship 
between lhese variabfe market rates changes guing 
forward, resulting in a vari::ible-rate payment received 
on the 2007 swap that is significantly less than the 
variable-rate interest payment on the bonds. 

fP.urriimlicm Ri.lik. lhe U11ive1sity is expnsed Lo 
termination risk tor the 2002 and 2007 interest rate 
sw;ips as lhe c:mmlerparly has lhe right lo Lerrninate 
the ::igreements in certain circumst.'.lnces. For the 2002 
swap, th.c countcrparty has a contractual right to 
lermim1te lhe agreemenl if !he cfaily weiglitecl ;.iver:;ige 
ot the SIFMA Index for Uie preceding 30 c::ilencfar day 
period is greater than 7.00%. With regard to the 2007 
swap. the counterparty has a contractual right to 
lerminale the agreemenl if the daily weighled average 
of the SIFMA Index for the preceding 180 days is 
greater than 6.00%. The 2006 interest rate swap is not 
exposed lo terminal.inn risk. lhe Sll;MA Index was 
.06% ::it June 30, 2014. 

Debt-Related Items Presented as Deferred Outflows a/ 
Resources 

As required by GASB, the University recogniZes certain 
debt-related items as deferred outflows of resources. 
lhe detail nf Ute deut rel;iled ilerrn; rerngnized as 
deterred outflow resources is presented in Table 9.6. 

Table 9.6 • Debt-Related! Defen'Elld Outflow 

of Resources (in thousands} 

Swaps-Cash Flow Hedge 
Loss on Bond Defeasance 

Deferred Outflow of Resources 

June 30, 2014 

$ 20,869 

31..548 
$ 52,417 

for the year ended June 30, 201.ri, lhe University 
increased the Loss on Bond IDefcasancc by 
$16,602,0IKJ fm the is.'iuanc:e nf the 201/IA and 20131\ 
bonds. For fiscal year 2014 the amortization of the 
Loss on Bond Defcasancc totaled $2,791,000 which 
redur.es inlerest eiqiense. 
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Pledged Revenues and Debt Service Requiremenrs 

For fiscal year 2014, annual debt service, including net 
payments on associatcdi interest rate swa1>s, totaled 
$96,605,000. I or fisc-dl ye<ir 201'1, System Fadlilit!s 
Pledged Hevenue \WlS lwelve lirrlf'..s gre;iler llrnn the 

annual debt service. Net System Facilities Revenue 
was 16D% of <1nrm;..il dehl servi<:e. lahle 9.7 pmvich-!s 
the System Facilities pledged revenues and operating 
expenses. 

Table 9. 7 - System facilities Pledged 

Revenues and Operating Expenses 

(in thousands} 

Pledged Revenues: 
Net Patient Revenue 

Housing and Food Service 
Bookstores 
NetTuition and Fees 
Other Operating Revenue 

Pledged Revenues 

Operating Expenses 
Net Revenues 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 2014 

873,638 
107,547 
54,503 
23,900 
35,749 

1,095,337 
953,372 
141,965 

Table 9.8 provides future debt service requirements for the System Facilities Revenue Bonds, including the impact 
of lmth interest r<1.te swap agreements. Wilh respec:I lo Lhe im:lusion uf variable rale lmml interest 11ayrnenls and 

net payments on swaps, the following data was based upon variable rates in effect at June 30, 2014. As market 
rates vary, variable rate bond interest payments and net swap payments will vary. 

Table 9.8 - Fuiture Debt Service - System Facilities Revenue Bonds (in thousands} 

Hedging Total Before Investment 
Derivatives, Investment Derivatives, Total future 

Fiscal Year Prfnd!!al Interest Net Derivatives Net Debt Service 
2015 19,090 70,423 3,680 93,193 3,485 96,678 
2016 28,015 66,072 3,598 97,685 3,459 101,144 
2017 43,440 64,670 3,479 111,589 3,430 115,019 
2018 39,370 63,035 3,282 105,687 3,396 109,083 
2019 39,485 61,374 3,191 104,050 3,358 107,408 
2020-2024 299,500 260,917 14,039 574,456 16,045 590,501 
2025-2029 227,870 209,687 8,539 446,096 14,755 460,851 
2030-2034 158,230 171,461 1,376 331,067 12,040 343,107 
2035-2039 143,780 134,390 278,170 6,853 285,023 
2040-2044 421,640 55,395 477,035 11828 478,863 

$ 1,42DA!2D $ 1,157,424 $ 41,184 $ Z,619,028 $ 68,649 $ Z,687,677 
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Commercial Paper 

During fiscal year 2014, the University issued 
$'1'1,989,0ml nf c:ommerci;:if p;:iper lei fund wmking 
ca1lit;il ;ind fin;rnce c.1pit;il projects. 

On Oc:lnber 7.1, 2011, the Board ;:idop1ed ;:i flexible 
financing proeram tor the University referred to as the 
University's Commercial P;iper Progr;;im ("CP 

Program"). The CP Program authorizes the periodic 
issuam:e of up !11 ;m aggu~gale cmlslanding prim:ipill 
amount ot $375 million in Commercial Paper Notes. 
lhe initial term of the authorization is <1pp10.xirnalely 
firteen ye;:irs. 

The Commercial Paper Notes arc limited obligations of 
the University secured by a pledge of the University's 
Unrestricted Revenues. "Unrestricted Revenues" 
inc:lmles sl;;ile <iJ>prnpri;:ilicms fm genera! a11eraticms, 

student fee revenues, and all other operating revenues 
nf the University olher lh;m System facilities 
llevermes. ·1 he primary objective of lhe CP Program is 
to provide flexibility in manasins the University's 
nver,;ill debt program In meet its v,;irrous fin;inci;il 

needs including: (a) financing capital projects, (b) 
allowing for the refunding/refinancing of outstanding 
debt, and (c:) providing <t readily ac:i::essible suurc:e nf 
funds for various working capital purposes. 

Notl!!S Payable 

Notes payable consist of loans from the state 
Dep;;irtmenl or N;itur;.il nesmm:es t:nergy Ufrc:iem:y 

Leveraged Loan Program. Interest is payalblc 
serni;:inrmally <tml r;mges from 2.U% lo :J.2%. 

Rolla Renewable Energy Company, LLC, a whoWy 
owned subsidiary of MREC, holdls Qualified Low­
Income Community Investment loan agreements with 
CCM Community Development LV, LLC (CCM) and 
Midwest llenew;ible C;:ipil;d XIII, U.C (Mm::). ·1 he 

proceeds of these notes are to develop, construct, own 
and lease the geothermal construction project. tnterest 
is payable quarterly at 1.3% on the CCM note and 1.6% 
an the MHC nnle. 

The future poyments on all notes poyable at June 30, 
Z014, arc as follows; 

Table 9.9 - Future Notes Payable Payments 

Amount 

Vear Ending June 30 

2.01.S 

2016 

:mu 
2018 

2019 

2.020-2.024 

2025-2029 

2030-2034 

2.035-2039 

2040-2044 

Total Future Notes Payable Payments 

Less: Amount Representing Interest 

Future Notes Payable 

Principal Payments 

Capital Lease Obligations 

(ir1 lilo usands} 

$ 1,346 

s 

1,354 

1,152 

1,153 

1,082 

7,856 

7,202 

7,202 

7,202 

5,340 

40,889 

(7,500) 

33,389 

The University leases various facilities and equipment 
through capital leases. Facilities and equipment under 
capi\;ili1.ed leases ;ire rec:mded al the presr.nl value of 
future minimum lease payments. 

The future minimum payments on all capital leases at 
June 30, 2014, arc as follows: 

Table 9.10 ·Future Capital Lease Payments 

Amount 

Year Ending June 30 

2015 

2016 
2017 

2018 
2019 
2020 
Total Future Minimum Payments 
Less: Amount Represent! ng Interest 

Present Value of Future Minimum 
Lease Payments 

(in thousands} 

1,563 
1,563 
1,563 
1,563 
1,563 

391 
8,206 

(3,040} 

5,166 
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DISCRETELY PRESENTED COMPONENT UNIT- MEDICAL ALLIANCE 

The Medical Alliance's outstanding debt at June 30, 2014, with i::cmP...spumling ac:livily, is <iS fallows: 

Table 9.11 ·Long-Tenn Debt. Medical. Alliance (in thousands) 

Beginning Ending 
As. of Junl! 301 2014 Balance Additions Reductions Balance 
Health Facilities Revenue Bonds Series 2011 $ 31,120 s - $ {1,740l $ 29,380 
Total Bonds Payable 31,120 (1,740) 29,380 
Caeital Lease Obli!!ailions 325 {325! 
Total Lon~-Term Debt s 31.445 $ . $ (Z,065! $ 29,380 

Bonds Payable 

Current 

Portion 
s 1.795 

1,795 

$ 1,795 

faK-exempl revenue lmmfis (Serit>.s J.m 1 Bmuls) in the 
principal amount ot $32,83.5,000 were issued by the 
Health and Education Facilities Authority of the State 
or Missnmi (lhe Aulhmity) nn hehaUf of the Meclic:;il 
Alliance dated November 1, 2011. lhe proceeds were 
used to refund all of the outstanding Series 1998 and 
2()()11 Bonds ;md c:usls of issuance. lhe premium and 
the deterred tinancinB costs on the Series 2011 Bonds 
arc amortized on the effective interest methodl over 
the lire of the respec:tive bonds. lhe ~eries 2011 llonds 
are secured by the unrestricted receivables of tile 
Medical /\lliam:e. Under Lhe lerms uf lhe Masle1 
Indenture, the Medical Alliance is required to make 
payments of principal, premium, if any, and interest on 
the bonds. In addition, the Master Indenture contains 
c:erlain reslric:licms on the npernlimts ;md ac:livities uf 
the Medical Alliance, including, among other things, 
c:nvenanls reslric:ling lhe inc:mrem:e of ;iiddiliunal 
indebtedness and the creation of liens on property, 
except as permitted by the Master Indenture. 

As of June 30, 2014, the total of principal and interest 
due cm hnnds during lhe nexl five years and in 

subsequent five-year periods is as follows: 

The Master Indenture has mandatory sinking fund 
redemption requirements in which funds arc required 
Lu be sel aside beginning in 1.021 for lhe Series 2011 
bonds. Interest expense incurred on the bonds during 
the years ended June 30, 2014 was $1,145,000, of 
which $32,000 in interest was capitalized!. 

Table 9.12 ·Future Debt Service· 

Medical Alliance (in thousands} 

Fiscal Year Principal Interest 

2015 1,795 1,085 

2016 1,840 1,038 

2017 1,885 992 

2018 1,930 939 

2019 1,995 877 

2020-2024 11,085 3,215 

2025-2029 -, 8,850 756 

$ 29,380 $ 8,902 

Tota! 

2,880 

2,878 

2,877 

2,869 

2,872 

14,300 

9,606 

$ 38,282 
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10. RISK MANAGEMENT 

TI1e University is exposed to various risks ot loss 
related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of 
assets; injuries to employees; natural disasters; and 
VJrious meclic:illy relJted benefit progr;:ims for 
employees. The University funds these losses through 
a cmnhinalicm uf self-insured relentim1s ;;imJ 

commercially purchased insurance. The amount of 
self-insurance funds and commercial insurance 
maintained arc based upon analysis of historical 
information and actuarial estimates. Settled claims 
have not exceeded commercial coverage in any of the 
past three riscal years. 

The liability for self-insurance claims at June 30, 2014 
of $77,9'14,()[)[) represents the present v-,ilue nf 

amounts estimated to have been incurred by those 
dates, using disc:mml rates ranging from 1.<Jl'A. In ].8% 
tor fiscal year 2014, based on expected tuture 
investment yield assumptions. 

Changes in the self-insurance liability durine fiscal year 
2014 were as follows: 

Table 110.11 - Self-lnsumnce Claims 

Llabllity (Jn thousands) 

New Claims 

Beginning and Changes Clalm End of 
!=isca! Yl!!ar ofYear in Estimates Payments Vear 

2014 80,665 $ Bl,121 $(233,842) $77,944 

11. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 

Endowment and Pension Trust Funds 

lhe. University i:mluwment i:und and Pensicm Trust 
Funds have made commitments to make investments 
in certain investment pnrtnerships pursuant to 
provisions in the various partnership agreements. 
These commitments totaled $106,321,000 and 
$215,Ull,OOO for the University :met the Pension Trust 
Funds, respectively, at June 30, 2014. 

Un,iverslty Operating Leases 

The University leases various facilities and equipment 
under agreements recorded as operating leases. 
Operating lease expense for the year ended June 30, 
].Olli Wi!S $22/)"/.5,tt!JU. 

Future minimum payments on all significant operating 
leases with initial or remaining terms of one year or 
more at June 30, 2014, arc as follows: 

Table 11.1 - Future Operating Lease 

Payments 

Fisc:al Year 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

2020·2024 

Total Future Lease Payments 

Amount 

(in rha11Si111ds) 

$ 7,128 

6,339 

4,692 

2,019 

1,262 

1,267 

$22,707 

In adclilicm In the ;!lmve le;ise. ohligatinns, U1e 

University has outstanding commitments for the usage 
and ongoing supJlm t nf University lleallh Care's 
information technoloev environment. As of January 
2010, University &le<ilth Care heg<in umlr;u:ling fm 
software usaee and maintenance tees, as well as, labor 
costs for a1Jproximately 100 full-time equivalent 
employees, '..'lith the Ccrner Corporation. This 
agreement, called IT Works, represents the labor and 
software component of a cooperative relationship 
he.tween University lle,;illh Cue am! Cerner 

Corporation referred to as the Tiger Institute for 
lleallh lnrmvalicm (the Tiger Institute}. lhe 'liger 
Institute is not a legally separate entity and is included 
within the financial statements of the University. The 
Tiger Institute provides continued development of 
information technology within the clinical areas, as 
well ,;is develnping new lec:lmnlngy inili;,ilives in he;illh 

information systems. 

As of June 30, 2014, t11is contracted commitment 
totaled $123,757,000 and will be paid in the following 
amounts: $17,516,000 in 2014, $18,041,000 in 2015, 
$18,S!n,mm in J.ot6, $19,1'1U,noo in 2011, 
$19,714,000 in 2018 and $20,306,000 in 2019 and 
$10,457,000 in 2020. 

Polfution Remediation 

The University has been working with the Voluntary 
C:leanup Pmgr;un of the Missouri Dep,;irlrnent of 
Natural Resources (MDNR) to characterize subsurface 
contamination on a University owned property. The 
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University is awaiting a cost estimate to perform the 
acldilional ev;iltJalion reque.~Led by MDNlt l.ung te1m 
costs will depend on the results of the two-year 
sampling process that began in 2013. As a result, the 
University is Lmahle lo estimate fohne c:osls m1 

cleanup ot the site at this time. 

Radiology and Other Health Care Matters 

Since Novemhe1 2011, lhe University has been 
investigating alleeations of improper billings after 
teaming that ;,i foder;il inveslig;itiun led hy lhe ll.5. 
Attorney's Office was under way. The University's 
investigation has identified indications that two 
radiologists improperly certified that they had 
JH!Jfurrned servicr_-. lhal were ;u:lually perfmmecf by 
resident physicians. The University is cooperating with 
the investigation of the U.S. Attorney's Office in an 
effml In ac:hieve a rl:'_-;nl11li1m of Lhe mailer. The 

University has estimated minimum likely exposure 
im:luding pcnallics of $3,!WJ,000. Also, the University 
has reviewed other pnlenli;il fede1al he<1llh pmgram 
reimbursement issues contempor~meous with the 
radiology investigation noted above. The University is 
in the process of self-disclosure and has estimated 
minimum likely exposure including penalties of 
$11,852,[J(lO in aggreg<1te fur these mailers. Bec:<1use 
the federal government could assess additional 
penalties or assert alternative theories or analysis 
concerning amounts of liability, the potential for 
additional exposure for these issues exists lml c:anrml 
be estimated at this time, as these matters have not 
yet been resolved. 

Charitable Gift Annuities 

A charitable gitt annuity is a contractual agreement 
between one or two donors {typically husband and 
wifo} and a charity. The donor(s} transfers assets as a 
gift In lhe d1<1rity, ;iml in return the 1:hi!rily is obligated 
to pay a fixed annuity to one or two annuitants, ot the 
dmmr{s)' c:hrmsing, for lhe life uf the dmmr(s). As 1•:nl 
of the University's "Planned Giving" program, the 
University enlers inlu Ch;irilahle Ciifl Armuily tcmlrac:ts 
with donors. The University's liability related to the 
annuity obli3ations was $6,512,000 at June 30, 2014. 

12. RETIREMENT, DISABILITY AND DEATH 
BENEFIT PLAN 

IJ/H'INUJ m:Nf:{H PU\N 

Plan Description - the Retirement Plan is a singlc­
emplnyer, defined benefit pl;in fur all qu;1lified 
employees. As authorized by Section 172.300, Revised 
51alutes of Missouri, the Universily's lln;ird of Curalms 
administers the Retirement Plan and establishes its 
terms. 

Benefits provided - Full-time employees vest in the 
Heliremenl Plan after five years nr credited servi<:e and 
become eligible tor benefits based on age and years of 
service. A vested employee who retires at age 65 or 
older is eligible for a lifetime annuity c:;ikulated al ;i 
certain rate times the credited service years times the 
unnpensalicm h;.ise (aver<ige cmnpens;ilinn fur the five 
highest consecutive salary years). The rate is 2.2% if 
the employee was hired before October 1, 2012, or 
1.11% if the employee was hirecl after September 3Cl, 
2012. Academic members who provide summer 
teaching and research service receive additional 
summer service credit. The Board of Curators may 
perimlic:ally apfunve im:re<1ses In Lhe benefits paid lo 
existing pensioners. However, vested members who 
leave Lhe Univecsily prim lo eligibility fur retirement 
are not elieible for these pension increases. 

Table 12.1 - Retirement Plan Membership 

2014 

Active Members 

Vested 

Nonvested 
Pensioners and Beneficiaries 
Former Employees with 

Deferred Pensions 
Total Members 

11,293 
7,038 

8,410 

6,259 
33,000 

Vested emplnyet>-'> who ;ire al least age 55 and have 

ten years or more of credited service or age 60 with at 
le<1sl five years nf servic:e may d1unse early retirement 
with a reduced benefit. However, it the employee 
retires at age 62 and has at least 25 years of credited 
St:!rvic:e, the benefit is nut redm:ed. Up In]()!>,(, nf lhe 
retirement annuity can be taken in a lump sum 
payment. In addition, the standard annuity can be 
exchanged tor an actuarially-equivalent annuity 
selected from an array of options with joint and 
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survivor, period certail'), and f:.U:iranteecf annual 
increase features. 

Vcs.ted employees who terminate prior to retirement 
eligibilily may elect to transfer lhe ai:luarial ec1uhr..ile111 
or their benefit lo an lnclividual lteliremenl J\[(:mml m 
into another employer's qualified plan that accepts 
sud1 mllovers. I hP. ;u:l uarial e{tlliv<l!enl may also he 
t<iken in the form of a lump sum p<iyment_ 

In addition, the Retirement Plan allows vested 
employees whn het:mne disabled lo rnnlinue ;u:c;rning 
service credit until they retire. It also provides a 1)re­
retirement death benefit tor vested employees. 

The Retirement Plan provides a minimum value 
feature for vested employees who terminate or retire. 
lhe minimum value is c:alc;ul<Iled as lhe <Icluaiial 
equivarent of 5% ot the employee's eligible 
r:ompens<Ition inves!edl at 7-5% per uediled servic:e 
year or the regularly calculated benefit 

Basis of Accounting ~ The Retirement Plan's 
accounting records are prepared using the accrual 
basis of accounting.· Employer contributions to the 
neliremenl Plan aire rec:ngniLed when clue and lhe 
employer has made a formal commitment to provide 
the c:nntrihu!i1ms. Benefits <Iml refunds are rec:ngnized 
when dlue and payable in accordance with terms ot the 
Retirement Plan. The Retirement Plan docs not issue a 
separate financial report. 

Investment Valuation - Investments arc reported at 
fair value. 

Cantributlans - lhe University's cnnl1ihutinm1 ln lhe 
Retirement Plan are equal to the :ictuari:llly 
determined employer contrit:mtion requirement (ARC). 
The ARC tor those employees hiredl before October 1, 
2012 averaged 10.8% of covered payroll for the year 
ending JunP. :m, 201'1. The J\HC fm those employees 
hired after September 30, 2012 averaged 6.8% of 
rnvered 11ayrnll for the year ended June :m, 7.01.4. 
Employees arc required to contribute 1% of their 
salary up lo $5o,mm in a t:alemfar ye<Ir aml 2% ur their 
salary in excess of $50,000. An actuarial valuation of 
the Plan is performed annually and the University's 
contribution rate is updated at the be3inning of the 
University's fiscal year on July 1, to reflect the 
adu;ni;:illy determined funding requirernenl fmm the 
most recent valuation, as of the preceding October 1. 
lhis actuarial valuation rerlei:ls the ;ufnplicm nf any 
Retirement Plan amendments during the previous 
fiscal year. 

Net Pension Liabrnity - The Retirement Plan's net 
1nmsicm liability was measured as nf Jun~ ~m. 7.0M. 
the total 11ensiun li<Ibility used lo <:<Ilc:ulale the net 
pension liability was determined by an actuarial 
valuation as of October 1, 2013. 
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Table 12.2 Changes In the Net Pension Llablllty (In Thousands) 

BaGance>s. ;it June 30, 2013 

Changes tor the year: 

Service cost 

lnllerf',sl 

Differences between expected and actual 

experiem:e 

Contributions - employer 

Om! rilmlicms - employee 

r~et investment income 

Henellil 1>aymenls, including refunds nf emplnyee 
contributions 

other c:hanges 

Net changes 

AetuarraE Methcdls and Assumptfons - The October 1, 
2013 actuarial valuation utilized the entry age actuarial 
cnst meilmd. /u:luarial assurnplions induded: 

lnflatnon 

Rate of Investment Return net of 

administrative expenses 
(tinclu:dfng inflation) 

Projected salarry increases 
(lndudfing lnflatron} 

Cost·of-Uhting adjustments 

2.75% 

7.75% 

4.1-4.9% 

0% 

Total Pension 
Liability 

(TPL) 

(a) 

$3,420,930 

71,995 

263,566 

(169,992) 

165,569 

$3,586,499 

Fiduciary Net 
Position 

(FNPI 

(bl 

$2,918,55G 

113,688 

111,11] 

456,330 

(169,992) 

11111, 1]9 

$3,332,695 

Net Pension 
Llablllty 

(NPL} 

(a) • (b) 

$502,374 

71,995 

263,566 

(113,688) 

(Vl,lU) 

(456,330) 

(7.'1H,570) 

$253,BD4 

The actuarial value of assets was determined using 
techniques that spread effects of short-term volatility 
in lhe market value of investments 11ver a 5-year 
period. The underfunded actuarial accrued liability is 
!wing anmrlited as <ll level dollar arnmml on a dosed 
basis over 30 years from the October 1, 2013 valuation 
date. Mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 
Combined Health Mortality Table projected to 2023 
using Scale BB. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2013 

valtraticm were based cm lhe resulls the mnsl rec:enl 
quinquennial study of the University's own experience 
covering 2008 to 2012. 

~-- -------------·----------~----~-~----
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Discount Rate -lhe discount rate used to measure Lhe 
total pension liability was. 7.75%. The projection ot 
cash flows used to dctcm1inc the discount rate 
assumed that employee contributions. will be made at 
the current contribution rate and that University 
contribution:; will be made at rates equal to the 
differenc:e between acl11a1fal!y determined 

contribution rates and the employee rate. Based on 
llmse assumplicms, Ille pension plan's fidur.iary net 
position was projected to be available to make all 
projected ruture henefil payments nf current ac:live 

and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term 
expected r;ile nf relmn nn pension plan inveslrnenls 
w;is applied In all perimls of pmjecteif benefit 

payments to determine the total pension liability. For 
the Oc:lnher 1, 2013 actuarial valu<lllion, a i'.15% 
discount rate was used!. 

Table 12.3 Sensiitivitty of the Net Pension 

Liability to Changes ~n the Discou:nt Rate 
(In Thousands) 

Net Pension 

Rate Liability 

1% Decrease 6.75% $711.800 

current Discount Rate 7.75% $253,804 

1% Increase 8.75% ($127,799) 

Annual Rate of Return- The annual money-weighted 
rate of return is calculated as the internal rate of 
return on pension investments, net ot pension plan 
investment expense. The money-weighted rate of 
return expresses inve.-;tment perfmmanc:e, ne! or 
pension plan investment expense, adjusted for the 
r:hanging ammmls ;u:Cunally invesled. n1e annual 
money-weighted rate ot return on pension plan 
investments for the year ended June 30, 2014 was 
15.i'%. 

Table 12.4-Asset Class Allocation 

Long Term 
l!xpected 

Target Real Rate 
Asset Cla!is Allocation of Return 

Domestic large cap equity 18% 65% 

Domestic small cap equity 2% 6.5% 

Domestic fixed income 3% 1.7% 

International equity 19% 6.7% 

Emerging markets equity 6% 9.3% 

International fixed income 4% 1.8% 

Real estate 6% 4.3% 

Private equity 10% 11.6% 

Absolute return strategies 8% 4.1% 

High yield fixed income 10% 4.1% 

Emerging markets fi>ced income 6% 4.5% 

Treasury inflation protection 2% 1.7% 

Floating rate bank I oans. 4% 2.6% 

Global inflation-linked bonds 2% 1.7% 

100% 

Pension Expense- For the year ended June 30, 2014, 
lhe Uelirernenl Pl;:in rec:ngni1.ed pensiun expense of 
$50,979,000. Annual pension expense consists ot 
service cost and interest on the pcnsfon liability less 
employee contributions and projected earnings on 
pension plan investments. The difference between 
actual and expec:led earnings is recmded as ;:i deferred 
outtlow/intlow of resources and recognized in pension 
ex11ense over ;:i live year 11er iml 
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The pension e>epense fur !he year ended J1me 30, 201'1 is as follows: 

Table 12.5 Pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2014 (In Thousands) 

Service cost 

lnterc:;t 

Recognized portion of current-period difference between expected aml 
aclual experience 

Cont rihul icms - employee 

Projected earnings on pension plan investments 

ltec:ogni1.ed pmlinn nf c:mrent-1>eriud difference between projected and 
actual earnings on pension plan investments 
llec:ugnilinn nf defened nut nows nf resnurt:t'_o; 

Reco3nition of deterred inflows of resources 

Pension expense for fiscal year ended June 30, 2014 

$11,995 

263,SGG 

(14,113) 

(J.24,UM) 

(116,'165) 

$50,979 

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources- In 

accordance with GASB Statements No. 67 and G8, the 
University rec:ngni1.es differences between aclu'11 and 
expected ex1>erience with regard lo ec:onmnic; m 

demographic factors, changes ot assumptions about 
future economic or demoRraphic factors, and the . 

clifferem:e hel.ween ac:lual and eKpec:lecl inve.o;lrnen! 
returns as Deferred Outflows/lntlm•:s of Resources. At 
June ~m, J.C>11l, lhe Uelirement Plan repmted deferred 

outflows of resources and deferred inflows of 
resources related to pensions from the following 
sources:. 

Table 12.6 Defetted outflowsliinflows of resources related to pensions (In Thousands) 

Differences between expected and actual experience 

Changes of assumptions 

Changes of benefitterms 
Net difference between projected and actual earnings on 
pension plan investments 

Total 

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows 
of Resources of Resources 

185,860 

185,860 

The University recognizes differences bet\veen actual 
and expected investment performance included in 

deferred outflows/inflows of resources on a straight­
line basis over five years. lhe following l:iule 
summarizes the future recognition otthese items: 

Table 12. 7 Projectedl recognition of 

deferred outflows/(lnflows) (In Thousands) 

Year Ended June 30, 

2015 

2016 

2017 

2018 

2019 

Thereafter 

Recognition 

(46,465) 

(46,465) 

(46,465) 

(46,465) 

-------~--------------------~---------------------------
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DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PlAN 

Plan Description - Emplo\1ees hired after September 
:m, 7.012 p<irlic:ipate in a .single ernplnyer, derined 
contribution plan. E;:ich ye;:ir the University contributes 
2% of each employee's eligible salary to ;,-i 401(a) plan. 
Employees arc able to contribute to a 457(b) plan. The 
University will match ~1p to 3% ot that 457(b) plan 
contribution with those funds going into the 401(a) 
plan. Employees are immediately 100% vested in their 
contributions. The University's base contribution and 
rn<ilching rnnlrilmliuns vest following lhree years of 
consecutive or nonconsecutive service. The detineci 

contribution plan recognized $4,829,000 of pension 
expense ;incl $BH,<mo of forfeilures for the year 
ended June 30, 2014. 

13. OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS 

Pian Description - In addition In the pensi1m benefits 
described in Note 12, the University operates a single­
employer, defined benefit postcmployment plan. The 
University's other rostemploymcnt Benefits {OPEB} 
Plan provides puslemplciymenl medic:al, dental, and 
life insur;rnce benefits to employees who retire from 
lhe University after allaining age SS and before 
reaching aee GO with ten or more years of service, or 
after attaining age 60 with five or more years of 
servii:e. f\s nf June :m, 2014, 6,76'1 were receiving 
benefits, and an estimated 18,319 active University 
employees may become eligible to receive future 
benefits under the pl;m. Pnslemploymenl medic:al, 
dental and lite insurance benefits are also provided to 
long-term disability claimants who were vested in the 
lJniversily's Helirernent Pl;m al the dale lhe disability 
began, provided the onset date of the disability was on 
or after September 1, 1990. As of June 30, 2014, 223 
long-term disability daimanls met those eligibility 

requirements. 

lhe lerms and rnndiliuns governing the 
postemployment benefits to which employees are 
entitled are al lhe sole authority amt dis1;reliun of lhe 
University's Board of Curators. 

Basis of Accounting - The OPEB Plan's accounting 
records are prepared usine the accrual basis of 
accounting, in accordance with GASB Statements No . 
.tl3 ;md Nn. '1S, whic:h established relJlliremenGs rm 
financial reporting tor postemployment benefits other 
than pension Jilans. The <issels of lhe OPU\ lms! 1:uml 
are irrevocable and legally protected from creditors 

and dedicated to providing postemployment benefits 
in accordance with term~ of the plan. The OPEB Plan 
doe..~ rml issue <1 separate fina111:i<1l repor I. 

Contributions and Reserves Contribution 
requirermm!s nf empl11yee.s aml the llniversi1y are 
established and may be amended by the University's 
Ru;ud uf Cura!ms. I'm emplnyees retiring prim lo 
September 1, 1990, the University contributes 2/3 of 
ihe medical beneril.s premium and 1/2 of lhe denial 
plan premium. For employees who retired on or after 
SCpternber 1, 1990, the University contributes toward 
premiums h<ised on lhe employee's length nf servil:e 
and age at retirement. 

The University makes available two Broup term life 
insurance options. Option A coverage is equal to the 
retiree's sal;.iry ;it lhe dale of reliremenl, while Or>linn 
B is equal to two times that amount. For each Option, 
graded decreases in coverage arc made when the 
retiree attains specific age levels. Tile University pays 
the full cost of Option A and aP1>roxirnatcly 91% of the 
ens! of Oplion B coveroige. Coverage fm gruup term life 
insurance ends on January 1 following the retiree's 
7oth birthday. 

!For the year ended June 30, 2014, participants 
contributed $14,505,000, or approximately 36.6%, of 
!ol;d rnerniums llmmgh !heir required rnnlributi1ms, 
which vary depending on the plan and coverage 
selection. 

The University makes available two long-term disability 
uplinns In its employees. Oplinn /\ rnverage is equal lo 
60% of the employee's salary on the date the disability 
began, when integrated with benefits from all other 
smm:es. Opliun n rnver<ige is equal ln 66-2/]% of the 
employee's salary, integrated so that benefits from all 
sources will not exceed 85% of the employee's salary. 
lluth Dflliuns have a 1119-d<iy w<1iling perind and 

provide benefits until age 65. The University pays the 
full cost of lhe Oplion f\ premium, while employees 
enrolled in Option B pay the additional cost over tlllc 
Opliunal f\ premium. 
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The A11m1al llet1uired Contribution {J\HC) repre_o;e11ls a 
level ot fundine that an employer is projected to need 
in mder 111 prefund ilx llhlrgaliuns ror poslemplnyrnenl 
benefits over its employees.' years of service. The 
University has no oblieation to make contributions in 
advance of when insurance premiums or claims arc 
due tor p<lyment ~md currently funds postemployment 
benefits at a level no less than the (Jay-as-you-go basis. 
In fiscal year 2014, the University contributed 
$25,094,000, or 41.8% of the ARC, whiclh was 
$59,966,000 and represented 5.4% of annual covered 
payroll. 

Table 13.1 presents the OPEB cost tor the year, the 
amount contributed, and changes in the OPEB 
nhlig;:itinn for fiscal year 2D14: 

Table 13.1 - Changes fn Net OPEB 

Obligation (in thousands} 

Annual Required Contribution 

Interest on Existing Net OPEB Obligation 
ARC Adjustment 

Annual OPEB Cost 
Contributions Made 

Increase in net OPEB obligation 
Net OPEB obligation - beginning of year 
Net OPEB obligation ·June 30, 2014 

$ 59,966 
5,688 

(5,729) 

59,925 
(25,094) 

34,831 
142,209 

$177,040 

Funding Status and Funding Progress - As of July 1, 

2013, the date of the last valuation, the OPEB Plan was 
7.4% funded. The actuarial accrued liability (AAL) for 
postemployment benefits was $GG9,83G,OOO, with 
$49,284,000 in actuarial value of assets, resulting in an 

unfunded actuarial accruecl liability (IJML) of 
$620,552,000. The covered payroll (annual 11ayrol[ of 
;ictive employees covered by the plan) was 
$1,103,558,000, and the ratio of UAAL to covered 
p<1yroU was Sfi.2%. 

Aclmr i;il valrnitinns invnlve estimates uf the value of 
reported amounts and assumptions about the 
pmhat>ilily or events far into the future. [x;:imples 

include assumptions about future employment, 
mmlality, ;mcl !he he;:illlu:are msl hend. J\c:tu;nially 
determined amounts are subject to continual revision 
of actual results, arc compared to past expectations 
and new estimates are made about the future. The 
Schedule of Funding Progress, presented as rcquircdl 
supplementary infmm;:ition following the notes lo lhe 
financial statements, will present multiyear trend! 
infmmatior1 almul whelher the acluari;:il v.:ilue nr plan 
assets is increasinB or decreasinB over time relative to 
the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits. 

Benefit projections for financial reporting purposes arc 
b;iised on lhe benefits provided under lhe terms nf lhe 
substantive plan in effect at the time of each valuation 
and the historical pattern of cost sharine between the 
employe1 amt plan members In that 11oinl. 'I he 
projection ot benefits tor financial reporting purposes 
docs not explicitly incorporate the potential effects of 
legal or contractual tundine limitations on the pattern 
of cost sharing bct\vcen the University and plan 
members in the ruture. 

The University's annual OPEB cost al!ld net OPES ob!Dgation lo the OPEii Pl;:in rm lhe ument year, ;iilung with lhree­
ye;:ir !rend infmmalicm, were as fuilm'llS: 

Table 13.2 • OPEB Plan Three-Year Trend ~nformatfian (In thousands} 

Annual Percentage of NetOPEB 
Required Annual OPEB Contributions AOC Ob~igation 

Fiscal Vear Endln~ Coll'ltributloll'!J Cost!Aoq Made Contributed lAssetl 
6/30/2014 $ 59,966 $ 59,925 $ 25,094 41.9% $177,040 

6/30/2013 50,954 51,890 19,177 37.0% 142,209 

6/30/2012 50,954 51,667 25,477 49.3% 109,496 
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UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

For the Year Ended June 30, 20l~ 

Ac.tuar!al Methods and Assumptions - Consistent with 
the lang-tenn persper:live of ;u:lu<irial G1!r:ulalions, the 
actuJrial methods and assumptions used include 
techniques that arc designed to reduce short-tcm1 
vn!atility in ;u:lu<irial ;u:c:med liahililieii and lhe 
actuarial value of assets. The projected unit credit 
attuarial cost method was usccl in the July 1, 2013 
ac:tu;uial valu.itinn. J\ctuatial assumptions included ;:i 

4.0% investment rate of return, net of administrative 
expenses. The projected annual healthcare trend rate 
is 5.0% to 8.0% initially, reduced by 0.5% decrements 
Lu .an ul£irnale rate of S.0%. lhe lJMI. is being 
amortized as a level dollar amount on an open basis, 
level perc:enl nf pay, over a 30-year :;mmrlit.atinn 
period. 
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UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 201~ 

14. BLENDED COMPONENT UNIT 

Condensed rnrnhining infmmalion for the University's blended component unit ::is ot ::ind tor the ye;:ir ended June 
30, 2014 is presented as tollows: 

Table 14.1 ·Missouri Renewable Energy Corporation Condensed Financial Statements (in thousands) 

Condensed Statement of Net Posltion 2014 

Assets: 

Current Assets 
Non Current other Assets 

Capital Assets, Net 

'l!'otal Assets and Deferred Outflow of Resources 

Liabilities: 
Current Liabilities 

Noncurrent Lfabilities 
Total Liabilities 

Net Position: 
Net Investment in Capital ftssets 
Restricted -

Nonexpendable 
Expendable 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Position 
'l!'otal Liabilities and Net Position 

Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses 
andl Changes in Net Position 

Operating Revenues: 
Other Operating Revenue 

Total Operating Revenues 
Operating Expenses: 

Depreciation 
All Other Operating Expenses 

Total Operating Expenses 

Operating lncom~ (Loss) 
Capital Contribution 
Increase in Net Position 
Netposition, Beginning of Vear 

Net Position, End of Vear 

MREC Eliminations Total 

$ 25,333 $ (4,132) $ 21,201 
20,982 $ 20,982 

124,894 (13,305} 111,589 

$150,227 $ 3,545 $153,772 

$ 3,780 $ (3,422) $ 358 

131,102 (92,740) 38,362 
134,882 (96,162) 38,720 

3,650 75,303 78,953 

11,695 24,404 36,099 

15,345 99,707 115,052 

$150,227 $ 3,545 $153,772 

2014 

MREC Eliminations Total 

$ 2,276 $ (1,9221 $ 354 
2,276 (1,922) 354 

1,772 1,772 

2,180 (2.134) 46 

3,952 (2,134) 1,818 

{1,676) 212 (1,464) 

7,418 35,084 42,502 

S,742 35,296 41,038 
9,603 64,411 74,014 

$ 15,345 $ 99,707 $115,0SZ 

(Continued) 
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flaws 20ll4 

MREC Eliminations Total 
Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ 1,610 $ (1,662) $ (52) 

Net Cash Flows Provided by (Used In) ca pita I and Related Financing Activities 
Net Increase in Cash and Cas.h Equivalents 

8.447 1,662 10,109 

Cash and Cash Egulvalents. Begin nine of Year 
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year 

15. OPERATING EXPENSES BY FU.NCTION 

10,057 
660 

$ 10,717 $ 

10,057 
660 

• $ 10,717 

T11e operilling expenses of lhe llniver$ily a1e presented b;ised nn nillural expenditure dassificalicms. The 

University's operating expenses by functional classification arc as follows: 

Table 15.1 ·Operating Expenses by Functional and Natural Classifications (in thousands) 

Supplies, Scholarships 

Salaries and Services and and 
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, ·2014 Wa~es Benefits Other Fellowshies DeeredatiDn Total 
Instruction $ 441,841 $ 96,041 $ 84,802 $ - $ - $ 622,684 

Research 102,064 19,322 69,020 190,406 

Public Service 77,378 18,550 49,701 145,629 

Academic Support 82,559 20,822 3S,737 139,118 
Student Services 47,486 10,996 26,305 84,787 
Institutional Support· 106,067 32,401 (14,817) 123,651 
Operation and Maintenance 

of Plant 38,224 10,192 56,267 104,683 

Auxiliary Enterprises 467,830 137,933 526,784 1,132,547 

Scholarships and Fellowships 66,919 . 66,919 

Deereciation 183,250 183,250 

Total OE!eratins Exeenses ~1,363,449 ~346,257 ~ 833;199 ~ 661219 $ 183~50 ~2?93,674 
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For the Year Endro June 30, 201~ 

16. FIDUCIARY FUNDS - PENSION TRUST FUNDS COMBINING STATEMENTS 

Cmnbining fin<imfal sl<1teme11Ls fm the i:icfur:i;,iry Funds - Pension Trust Funds, which encompass the Retirement 
Trnst and OPEB Trust, are as follows: 

Table 16.1 • Statement of Plan Net Position (In thousands) 

June 30 2014 
Retirement· OPEB Total 

Assets 
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 67,325 $ 25,187 $ 92,512 
Investment of cash Collateral 263,048 263,048 
Investment Settlements Receivable 44,920 44,920 
Investments: 

Debt Securities 525,129 525,129 
Equity Seriurities 707,632 707,632 
Commingled Funds 1,772,610 66,444 1,839,054 
Nonmarketabl e Alternative Investments 2971450 297,450 
Totai Assets 316781114 9111631 3,769,745 

liabilities 

Accounts Payable and 
Accrued Uabllitiies 279 279 

Collateral Held for 
Securities Lending 263,048 263,048 

Investment Settlemenlts Pa~able 82,092 40,000 1221092 
Total Liabifrtles 345,419 40,000 385,419 
Net: ?osition Ht!Rd in Trutt for 

Retirement andl OPEB $ 3,332,695 $ 51,631 $ 3,384,326 
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Table 16.2 • Statement of Changes in Plan Net Position fin cliousonds) 

Net Revenues and Other Additions 

Investment Income: 
Interest and Dividend Income 
Net Appreciation (Depreciation} in 

F3ir Value of Investments 
Less Investment Expense 

Net Investment Income 
Contributions: 

University 

Members 
Total Contributions 

Total Net Revenues and 

Other Additions 

Expenses and Other Deductions 
Administrative Expenses 
Payments to Retirees and Beneficiaries 

Total Expenses and 

Other Deductions 

Increase (decrease) in Net Position He[d! 
in Trust far Retirement and OPED 

Net Position Held in Trust for 

Retirement & OPEB, Beginning of Year 
Net Position Held in Trurt for 

Retirement and OPES, End of Vear 

17. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS 

On August 11, 2014, University of Missouri Health 
Cue annoum:ed lhe dnsme of iis lung-lerm ;u:ule 
care facility, Missouri Rehabilitation Center {MRC), in 
Mount Vernon, Missouri. Inpatient services will 
continue throueh October 31, 2014, with certain 
outpatient services continuing through December 
31, WM. MlJHC: will rec:eive a lin<!il ;ippmpriatinn nf 

$5,014,000 trom the State of Missouri related to the 
normal operations of MRC during fiscal year 2015. 
MUI IC will rerngnize an r_'ilimaled lnss nf $7,i'H],CH)[) 

on the write-down of the facility at the time of 
closure. 

In Seplemher of 1.0M, lhe LJniversily uf Missouri, 

Santarus, Inc., Salix Pharmaceuticals, Inc., and Par 
Pharmaceutical, Inc. entered into a settlement 
agreermml regarding S;mL;irus, Im:. el al v. Par 
Pharmaceutical, Inc. (the "Zegcrid Patent 
tiligalinn"). lhe Zegericl® P;.ilenl l.iligalicm c:nnsisls 
of civil actions tor infringement of patents coverins 
certain ZegericJ0 products brought by the University 

$ 

$ 

June 30, 2014 

Retlrnment 

60,721 $ 

409,250 
(11,087) 

458,884 

113,688 
14113 

127,801 

586,685 

2,554 
169,992 

172,546 

414,139 

2,918,556 

3,332,695 $ 

OPEB 

643 s 

1,708 
(4) 

2,347 

25,094 
14505 
39,599 

41,946 

489 
39,110 

39,599 

2,347 

49,284 

51,631 $ 

Total 

61,364 

1110,958 
(11,091} 

461,231 

138,782 
28,618 

167,'iOO 

628,631 

3,043 
209,102 

212,145 

416,486 

2,967,840 

3,384,326 

and Sanl;mis ;.igainsl P;.ir in lL'i. Dislric:I C:oml. As a 
1>art of the Settlement Agreement, Par will make a 
one-lime payrnenl of $HJO million lo an est:rnw 
account approved by santarus and the University, 
and these funds will be allocated between Santarus 
;mcl lhe llniversily pursu;ml to the terms uf lhe 

Exclusive License Agreement between Santarus and 
lhe University. "lhe University has nnl determined 
the full amount ot the settlement, but expects to 
receive the funds and recognize a gain during fiscal 
year 2015. 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 201~ 
(unaudited) 

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability - Last Ten Fiscal Years (In Tl1011sand.<:) 

Total pension liability 

Service cost 

Interest 

Differences bet\veen 
expected and actual 
eicperi ence 

Changes of assumptions 

Changes of benefitterms 

Benefit payments, 
including refunds of 

employee contributions 

Net change in total 
pension liability 
Total pension Ii.ability· 
beginning 
Total pension liability -
ending (a) 

Plan fiduciary net pos£tion 

Contributions - employer 

Contri buti ans - employee 

Net investment income 

Benefit payments, 
including refunds of 
employee contri butl ons 

Other 

Net change in fiduciary net 
position 
Plan fiduciary net position 
- beginning 
Plan fiduciary net position -

ending (b) 

· Fiscal Vear End June 30, 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

$71,995 

263,566 

- - (Historical information prior to implementation of GASB 

67/68 is not required) 

(169,992) 

165,569 

3,420,930 

$3,586,499 

$113,688 

14,113 

456,330 

) 
(Historical information prior to implementation ofGASB 

(169,992 I . d) 67 68 1 s not require 

414,139 

2,918,556 

$3,332,695 
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UNIVERSITY OF MISSOURI SYSTEM 
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 

For the Year Ended JuM 30, 201.£t 
(unaudited) 

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability- Last Ten Fiscal Years (lri 'flmusurrds) 

Net pension liability -
ending~ (a)-(b) 
Plan's fiduciary net 
position as a percentage 
of the tota I pension 
liability 

Covered-employee payroll 

Net pension liability as a 
percentage of covered­
employee payrol I 

Fiscal Vear End June 30, 

2014 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 zoos 

$253,804 

(Historical information prior to implementation ofGASB 
92.92% /6 . - d) 67 8 ts not require 

$1,078,347"' 

23.54% 

*Covered-employee payroll as reported in the October 1, 201:1 funding valuation report 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 201!! 
(unaudited) 

Schedule of Contributions - Last Ten Fiscal Years (In Thousands) 

Contributions in 
Contributions as. relation to the 

%ofcovcrcd· /\ctuarlally actuarially 
Covered Employee employee determined determined 

Fi5cal Year Payroll payroll"'"' contributlan.., contribution .... 

Ended June 30, Level 1 Level 2 Levell Level 2. Level 1 level 2 level 1 level 2 

2014 $ 984,787 $93,560 10.78% 6.77% 10.78% 6.77% 10.78% 6.77% 

2013 1,046,075 - 8..88% 4.87% 8.88% 4.87% 8.88% 4.87% 

2012 1,03.1,891 . 7.07% - 7.07% 7.07% 

2011 979,888 - 5.74% . S.74% S.74% 

2010 970,060 - 4.88% - 4.88% 4.88% 

2009 954,430 - 5.87% - 5.87% 5.87% 

2008 891,648 - 7.78% - 7.78% 7.78% 

2007 846,884 - 8.699$ - 8.69% 8.69% 

2006 795,758 . 7.80% 7.80% 7.80% 

2005 753,266 - 6AO% - 6.40% 6.40% 

"'Covered-employee payroll as reported ln the October 11 2013 funding valuation report 

+•Net of employee contributions 

Contribution 
deficiency 
(excess) 

Level 1 level 2 

Schedule of Annual Maney-Weighted Rate of Return an Pension Plan Investments - Last Ten 

Fiscal Years 

Fiscal Year End June 30, 

2014 2013. 2012 2011 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 

Monev-
Weighted Rate 16.2% (Historical information prier to Implementation of GASB 67/68 is not required) 
of Return 

-----------------------------------------------------
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For the Year Ended June 30, 201"4 
(unaudited) 

Notes to Required Supplementary lnfonnatlon 

Valuation Date 

Actuarial determined cohtributlon rates are calculated as of September 
30, 21 months prior la the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are 
reported. 

Methods and assumptions used to determlnecontrlbuticn rates: 

Actuarial Cost Method 

Amortization Method 

Amortization Period 

AssetValuation Method 

Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment Ra le of Return 

inflation 

Projected Salary Increases 

Cost-of-I ivi ng Adj ustment'i 

Retirement Age 

Mortality 

Healthy lives 

Disabled lives 

Entry age normal 

Level dollar, Closed 

30 years 

Marketva lue of assets less unrecagni2:ed returns In each of the last five 
years. Unrecognized return is equal to the difference bet\veen the actual 
market return and the expected return on the market value, and is 
recognized over a five-year period. The actuarial value is further adjusted, 

if necessary, to be within 20% of the market value. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the October 1, 2013 actuarial 
valuation were based on the results of an experience study for the period 
October 1, 2007 to September 30, 2012. See Section IV of the October 1, 
2013 funding valuation report far a fol.I summary of actuarial 
assumptions. 

7.75%, net of expenses 

2.75% 

4.9% avera~e (including Inflation) for academic and administrative; 4.1% 
average (including inflation) for clerical and service 

No future retiree ad-hoc increases assul'TH!d 

See Section IV of the October l, 2013 funding valuation report for 
summary of assumption 

95%ofthe RP-2000 Combined Health Mortality Table projected to 2023 
using Scale BB 

RP-2000 Disabled Retiree Mortality Table projected to 2023 using Scale BB 
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For the Year Ended June 30, 20lli 
(unaudited) 

OPEB Plan - Schedule of Funding Progress (in thousands} 

Actuarial 
Actuarial Accrued 

Valuation of Liability Unfunded 
Actuarial AS!iets (AAL} AAL Funded Ratio 

Valuation Date {a! !bl {b-a! !alb! 
7/1/2009 37,171 646,655 609.484 5.7% 
7/1/2011 45,745 542,844 497,099 8.4% 
7/1/2013 (a)(b} 49,21M 669,836 620,552 7.4% 

Annual UAAL asa % 
Covered of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

!cl l[b-a) lc:J 
1,009,SOO 60.4% 
1,041,413 47.7% 

1,1031558 56.2% 
(a} The 7 /1/2013 Actuarial Valuatlon was revised based on a change in the disc;ount rate from 5.75% to 4.00%. 

{b} Date Qfl.ast valuation provided 

OPEB Plan - Schedule of Employer Contributions {in thousands) 

A(;tuarial Annual Net Pension 
Valuation Required Percentage Oblication 

Year Ended Date Contribution Contributed (Asset) 
6/30/2012 7/1/2011 50,954 50% 109,496 
6/30/2013 7/1/2011 50,954 38% 142,209 
6/30/2014 7 /1/2013(a) 59,965 42% 177,0llO 

(a} The 7/1/2013 Aduarial Valuation was revised based on a chan(lc In the discount rate from S.75% to 4.00'6. 

-----------------.............. _..__._.. ---c7" ... ·----~- -~-~---------~ 
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